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Management Discussion and Analysis

Ex.1/Tab 1/Sch.1 — Management Discussion and Analysis

On October 18, 2012, the Ontario Energy Board (“The Board”) issued its “Report of the Board: A
Renewed Regulatory Framework for Electricity Distributors: A Performance Based Approach”,
and subsequently commenced implementation of the Renewed Regulatory Framework. This
report set out a comprehensive performance-based approach for the Renewed Regulatory
Framework which promotes the achievement of outcomes that will benefit existing and future
customers; will align customer and distributor interests; will continue to support the achievement
of important public policy objectives; and will place a greater focus on delivering value for
money. Under this approach, a distributor is expected to demonstrate continuous improvement
in its understanding of the needs and expectations of its customers and its delivery of services.

On March 5, 2014, the Board issued its report on “Performance Measurement for Electricity
Distributors: A Scorecard Approach”. The report sets out the Board’s policies on the measures
that will be used by the Board to assess a distributor's effectiveness and improvement in
achieving customer focus, operational effectiveness, public policy responsiveness, and financial
performance to the benefit of existing and future customers. Under this approach, a distributor is
also expected to demonstrate continuous improvement in its understanding of the needs and

expectations of its customers and its delivery of services.

With the above in mind, Wellington North Power Inc. (WNP) has provided an overview of this
utility in terms of the Renewed Regulatory Framework and the Distributor Scorecard. Since
these are the measures to which a utility is held accountable, these are also the measures a
utility should address during rate application process. Therefore, this is our account of how
Wellington North Power Inc. continues to improve in its understanding of the needs and

expectations of its customers and its delivery of services.
Wellington North Power Inc.’s Vision Statement is:

“To be regarded within the province of Ontario as an industry leader in the safe, reliable and

cost efficient distribution of electricity.”
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Wellington North Power Inc.’s Mission Statement is:
“‘Wellington North Power Inc. (WNP) shall provide its customers with the most cost effective
delivery of electricity safely, reliably and efficiently. This will be done while providing superior
customer service and promoting customer education and green initiatives within its service

area.”

Wellington North Power Inc.’s Strategic Objectives:
v' Manage a safe and reliable distribution system in an efficient and cost effective manner;
v" Provide outstanding customer service;
v" Continue to increase shareholder value;
v

Meet all regulatory obligations.

Customer Focus:

In terms of service quality, WNP has always maintained the highest standards possible. In a
regulatory environment, there are humerous Service Quality Requirement targets that a utility
must achieve. In most cases, WNP consistently meets and exceeds these targets. In terms of
customer satisfaction, WNP has always strived for strong customer relations and increase
customer engagement within the community. This effort is support by the customer satisfaction
survey measure on the Distributor Scorecard. In 2014, WNP achieved a customer satisfaction
rating of “A” on its Distributor Scorecard, which is better than the Provincial and National

averages.

In terms of customer engagement, WNP has numerous methodologies by which it engages its
customers. As a local small utility and with many of the employees and Board Directors of the
company living in the service area, it means that customer concerns are communicated quite
easily just by interaction. WNP prides itself in having an office that is open 5 days a week during
business hours meaning that customers have access to LDC employees to answer questions or
to raise concerns. For example, the use of Smart Meter data has enabled Customer Service
representatives review consumption patterns with customers and assist with managing their

electricity bills.

Operational Effectiveness:
Wellington North Power Inc. continues its commitment to safety to protect the public and
employees within our community. In WNP’s Scorecard, the utility recorded zero fatalities and
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zero serious incidents within its operating service area of the urban areas of Mount Forest,
Arthur and Holstein. Furthermore, Annual audits conducted by the Electrical Safety Authority
have reported that Wellington North Power Inc. was “C” - Compliant with Ontario Regulation
22/04 (Electrical Distribution Safety). This has been achieved and maintained by our resilient

commitment to safety coupled with the adherence to company procedures & policies.

With regards to reliability, WNP continues to hold the reliability of distribution system to the
highest standards. This is supported by the low “Average Number of Hours that Power to a
Customer is interrupted” and “Average Number of Times that Power to a Customer is

interrupted” indices that are reported in WNP’s Scorecard.

Concerning its Distribution system plan, WNP has implemented new processes to expand its
planning horizon to a 10 year horizon (5 historical years and 5 forecasted years). Full details on

the Distribution System Plan can be found in Exhibit 2 — Appendix 2A

Public Policy Responsiveness: [

WNP’s Energy Savings target was 4.52 GWh (4,520,000 kWh — equivalent to approximately 4%
of annual energy consumption of all Wellington North Power Inc.’s customers in Arthur, Holstein
and Mount Forest.) At the end of 2014, the actual kW Energy Savings achieved was 3.31 GWh
(3,310,671 kWh) meaning that the utility met 73% of its set target. Although the utility did not
reach its sets target, Wellington North Power Inc. continued to forge good relationships with
residential and small businesses. This was achieved by leveraging the suite of OEB approved
CDM programs primarily designed for the residential and small commercial classes of

customers.

Financial Performance:

WNP’s financial performance continues to remain strong despite recent economic and industry
challenges posed by increased activity and complex operational demands. The main factors
contributing to the utilities financial success were a strong focus on performance and associated
financial management, efficiencies achieved throughout the financial year including reductions
in overhead expenses, and a continued focus on improving business planning and monthly
financial reporting activities. The Distribution System Plan included in this application in Exhibit
2 — Appendix 2A supports the capital and maintenance programs needed to sustain the

reliability of WNP’s distribution system as we move into the future.
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With this rate application, WNP looks to the future in terms of carrying a strong and sound
foundation forward. By building on this foundation through continuous improvement,
technological investment, and sound financial investment, WNP plans to continue to provide the
highest value in electrical distribution services, cost effectively, to our community and the

customer.

PAGE 7 OF 230



N

O~NO O W

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

22
23
24
25

26
27
28

29
30

Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

Administration

Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.1 - Legal Application

Application
ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD
EB-2015-0110
IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998,

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Wellington North Power Inc., for an
Order or Orders approving just and reasonable rates for the distribution of electricity

to be implemented as of May 1, 2016.

APPLICATION

The Applicant is Wellington North Power Inc. (referred to in this application as the “Applicant”,
the “Distributor”, the “Company”, “Wellington North Power” or “WNP”). The company is
incorporated pursuant to the Ontario Business Corporations Act, and licensed as Electricity
Distributor under the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 (the “Act”).

Wellington North Power Inc. holds Electricity Distribution Licence ED-2002-0511.

The Applicant undertakes the business of distributing electricity within the former Town of Mount
Forest, Village of Arthur and the Village of Holstein, servicing approximately 3694 residential
and general service customers. Wellington North Power’s head office is located at 290 Queen

Street West, in the Township of Wellington North in the former town of Mount Forest

Wellington North Power Inc. is applying to the Ontario Energy Board (the “Board” or the “OEB”)
pursuant to Section 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 for approval of its proposed

distribution rates and other charges, to be effective on May 1, 2016.

The Applicant’'s schedule of Tariff of Rates and Charges proposed in this Application are
identified in Exhibit 8.
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Wellington North Power Inc. requests a written hearing to address any questions raised by

Board Staff and other interested parties regarding this 2016 Cost of Service Rate Application.

The Applicant submits the proposed distribution rates contained in this Application are just and

reasonable on the following grounds:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Wellington North Power Inc. is applying for electricity distribution rates in
accordance with the Board’s “Filing Requirements for Electricity Distribution Rate
Applications — 2015 Edition for 2016 Rate Applications - Chapter 2: Cost of
Service”, issued July 16, 2015;

Wellington North Power Inc. has filed its Distribution System Plan in conjunction
with its 2016 Cost of Service rate application. The Applicant’s Distribution
System Plan has been filed in accordance with the Board’s “Filing Requirements
for Electricity Transmission and Distribution Applications - Chapter 5:
Consolidated Distribution System Plan Filing Requirements”, issued March 28,
2013;

In order for Wellington North Power Inc. to maintain a safe, reliable and efficient
electricity distribution infrastructure at a comparative cost of service rate, there is
some impact to all customer classes serviced by the LDC. Wellington North
Power Inc. believes that costs have been proportionally and equitably distributed
across the customer classes.

(Further information can be found in Exhibit 9 and in the Cost Allocation
informational filing submitted by Wellington North Power Inc. with this application
in Exhibit 8);

Other grounds as may be set out in the material accompanying this Application

Summary.

Wellington North Power Inc. applies for an Order or Orders approving the proposed distribution

rates and other charges set out in this Application to be effective May 1, 2016 or as soon as

possible thereafter. The Applicant submits these rates and charges are just and reasonable
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pursuant to section 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 being Schedule B to the Energy
Competition Act, 1998, S.O. 1998, c.15,

The address of service for the Applicant is:

Wellington North Power Inc.,
290 Queen Street West, PO Box 359
Mount Forest, ON NOG 2L0

I, Richard Bucknall, certify that the evidence provide in Wellington North Power Inc.’s 2016 Cost
of Service rate application (EB-2015-0110) is accurate, consistent and complete.

DATED: At the Township of Wellington North, in the County of Wellington in the Province of
Ontario, this 30™ day of October, 2015.

Wellington North Power Inc.
Richard Bucknall

Chief Administrative Officer
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.2 — Contact Information

Application contact information is as follows:

Main Contact;

Alternative Contact:

Applicant’s Legal Advisor:

Richard Bucknall — Chief Administrative Officer
Wellington North Power Inc.

290 Queen St W, Mount Forest, ON, NOG 2L0
Telephone:  1-519-323-1710

E-mail: rbucknall@wellingtonnorthpower.com

Raymond Petersen — Finance and Regulatory Supervisor
Wellington North Power Inc.

290 Queen St W, Mount Forest, ON, NOG 2L0
Telephone:  1-519-323-1710

E-mail: rpetersen@wellingtonnorthpower.com

James Sidlofsky, Partner Borden Ladner Gervais LLP
Scotia Plaza, 40 King Street West,

Toronto, ON, M5H 3Y4

Phone: 416-367-6277
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1 Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.3 — Confirmation of Internet Address

2  Wellington North Power Inc.’s website address is:  www.wellingtonnorthpower.com
3
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.4 — Statement of Publication

All of Wellington North Power Inc.’s customers may be affected by this application.

Upon receiving the Letter of Direction and the Notice of Application and Hearing from the Board,
Wellington North Power Inc. will immediately arrange to have the Notice of Application and
Hearing for this proceeding published in the local community not-paid-for newspaper which has

the highest circulation in its service area namely; “The Wellington Advertiser”.

Bill Impacts for Publication:

The table below provides a list of the distribution charges bill impacts applicable to the typical
usage of a Residential and General Service < 50 kW customer to be used for the publication
notice. Bill impacts for all customer classes can be found at Exhibit 8/Tab 1/Sch.14.

Table 1.1: Bill Impact Summary for Publication

2015 2016
O e Dollar B
Customer Class Distribution | Distribution
Change | Change
Charge Charge
Residnetial
9 69%
(800 KWh) $52.31 55736 35.05 :
General Service <50kKW
B
(2000 K\Wh) $115.53 $124.53 59.00 2

Once the Notice of Application and Hearing has been published in the above listed newspapers,
WNP will immediately file an Affidavit of Publication together with proof.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.5 - Bill Impacts

The 2016 distribution rates proposed by the Applicant will result in overall bill impacts for all

WNP’s customer classes as detailed in Table: 1.12 below.

Table: 1.12 — Bill Impacts

Total Bill (before tax)

Current Board Change in
RPP or Load Approved Proposed
Customer Class kwh | kw op 2016 Amount|  § %
Mon-RPP Factor Amount
Residential| RPP 800 $143.08 5144 18 $1.10 0.77%
Residential - low user (10th percentile)| RPP 310 $67.95 $71.83 $3.89 5.72%
General Service <50 KW| RPP 2.000 5342 .07 $351.01 5894 261%

General Service 50 - 999 kKW (|Non-RPP| 38,217 | 106 | 90% $5,311.23 $5,296.53 ($14.69) | -0.28%
General Service 1000 - 4999 KW |Non-RPP| 746,695 | 1,476 90% $93.711.52 B97.108.08 | $3,396.56 | 3.62%
Unmetered Scattered Load RPP| 252 $56.41 561.49 $5.08 9.00%
Sentinel Lighting|Non-RPP| 1,927 5 90% $356.99 $364.26 5727 2.04%
Streetlights|Non-RPP| 64,297 | 165 [ 90% 58,938 44 $8,694.33 ($44.11) | 0.49%

Note:
The above bill impacts are based upon the removal of the Ontario Clean Energy Benefit (OCEB)
and Debt Retirement Charges (DRC) for Residential and General Service <50kW customers.

The table below shows the bill impact relating to the Distribution Charge portion of the bill for
Residential and General Service < 50 kW customers

Table: 1.13 - Bill Impacts

2015 2016
T o Dollar o4
Customer Class Distribution | Distribution
Change | Change
Charge Charge
Residnetial
§_65%
(800 kWh) $52.31 §57.36 | $5.05 b
General Service <50kW
8%
(2000 KWh) §115.53 $124.53 59.00 2

Further information pertaining to the causes of these bill impacts can be found in Exhibit 8 /Tab
1 /Schedule 14.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.6 - Statement as to the Form of Hearing Requested

This Application is supported by written evidence. The written evidence will be pre-filed and may

be amended from time to time, prior to the Board’s final decision on the Application.

WNP requests that, pursuant to Section 34.01 of the Board’s Rules of Practice and Procedure,

this proceeding be conducted by way of written hearing.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.7 — List of Specific Approvals Requested

In its 2016 Cost of Service Rate Application, Wellington North Power Inc. is requesting the

following approvals:

a)

f)

9)

h)

)

K)

Approval to charge distribution rates effective May 1, 2016 to recover a Base Revenue
requirement of $2,592,599. This includes revenue deficiency of $258,891 as detailed in
Exhibit 6. The schedule of proposed rates is set out in Exhibit 8;

Approval of the Applicant’s Distribution System Plan as included in Exhibit 2 and filed as a
stand-alone document with this Application;

Approval of revised Low Voltage Rates as proposed and described in Exhibit 8;

Approval for an adjustment to the Retail Transmission Service Rates approved in the
Applicant’s 2015 IRM application (EB-2014-0121) as detailed in Exhibit 8;

Approval to continue to charge Wholesale Market and Rural Rate Protection charges
approved in The Board Decision and Order in the matter of WNPs 2015 distribution rates
(EB-2014-0121) detailed in Exhibit 8;

Approval to continue the specific Service Charges (with the exception of the MicroFIT
monthly Service charge) and Transformer Allowance approved in the Board Decision and
Order in the matter of WNP’s 2015 distribution rates (EB-2014- 0121) as detailed in Exhibit
8;

Approval to adjust MicroFIT monthly service charge from $5.40 to $10.00 as detailed in
Exhibit 3;

Approval of the proposed Loss Factor as detailed in Exhibit 8;

Approval of the Rate Riders for a one year disposition of the Group 1 Deferral and Variance
account balances as at December 31, 2014 along with the carrying charges projected to
April 30, 2015 in accordance with the Report of the Board on Electricity Distributors’ Deferral
and Variance Account Review Initiative (EDDVAR — July 31, 2009) as detailed in Exhibit 9;
Approval of the Rate Riders for a one year disposition of the Group 2 Deferral and Variance
account balances as at December 31, 2014 along with the carrying charges projected to
April 30, 2015 in accordance with the Report of the Board on Electricity Distributors’ Deferral
and Variance Account Review Initiative (EDDVAR — July 31, 2009) as detailed in Exhibit 9;
Approval to revise the Smart Meter mid-range typical useful life from 15 years to 10 years as
detailed in Exhibit 4 and the Applicant’s Distribution System Plan contained in Appendix 2a
of Exhibit 2;
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Approval of the Rate Riders for a one year disposition for the Loss Revenue Adjustment
Mechanism variance account (“LRAMVA”) for lost revenue from 2011-2014 resulting from
the 2011-2014 IESO (formally “OPA”) Conservation and Demand Management (“CDM”)

programs as detailed in Exhibit 4;

m) Approval to include assets relating to a new substation (built and energized in 2014) into the

p)

Applicant’s 2016 Rate Base as detailed in Exhibit 2;
(As per the Applicant’s Incentive Rate Mechanism (IRM) application for 2014 distribution
rates which included an Incremental Capital Module (ICM) for constructing and energizing
the new substation (EB-2013-0178), the Decision and Order (March 20, 2014) noted:
“The Board accepts Wellington North’s proposal to recover the resulting ICM
revenue requirement through fixed and variable rate riders to be in effect until the
issuance of the rate order arising from its next cost of service application”);
Approval for recovery of the variance between the Incremental Capital Module (ICM) Rate
Rider revenue collected in 2014 and 2014 rates versus the forecasted revenue projected in
the Applicant’'s 2014 IRM with ICM application (EB-2013-0178). This variance has been
calculated as a "true-up” as illustrated in Exhibit 2 and included in the EDDVAR model as
detailed in Exhibit 9. (The resulting Rate Rider is included within the Group 2 Deferral and
Variance account balances which the Applicant is seeking approval for a one year
disposition as summarized in point (j) above.)
Approval to construct and energize a new 2™ feeder line in 2016 and recover costs through
electricity rates as detailed in the Applicant’s Distribution System Plan that has been filed
with this application in Exhibit 2 (DSP Section 5.4.5.3.1 — “Second 44kV Feeder to Mount
Forest”); and
Approval of the Applicant’s Advanced Capital Module (ACM) to replace an aged substation
and construct a new replacement substation in 2018, as detailed in the Applicant’s
Distribution System Plan that has been filed with this application in Exhibit 2. (DSP Section
5.4.5.3.1 — “MS3 Substation Re-build (2018) — Advanced Capital Module”)
The Applicant is seeking approval of this ACM with appreciation that updated estimates and
information will be provided in the Applicant’s IRM rate application in 2017 seeking approval
for 2018 distribution rates.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.8 - Proposed Issues List

In establishing the overall appropriateness of the proposed rates, WNP anticipates that the

following issues will be addressed by the Board and Interveners.

General (Exhibit 1) - The reasonableness/suitability of:

* The overall economic and business planning assumptions for the Test Year;

* The reasonableness of the proposed revenue requirement of $258,891.

Rate Base (Exhibit 2) - The reasonableness/suitability of:

The Distribution System Plan;

WNP’s asset planning assumptions and capital planning process;

The overall capital expenditures including two “special” projects planned over the five-
year forecast horizon;

Acceptance of a “special project” to build a second 44kV feeder line to the service area
of Mount Forest, with assistance by Hydro One Networks Inc., to address demand
capacity constraints that in the near-term will limit economic growth and development;
Approval of an Advanced Capital Module to replace an aged and deteriorating
substation in 2018;

The proposed Rate Base for the 2016 Test Year;

Inclusion of 1508 asset data at NBV into the Rate Base for the 2016 Test Year;

The proposal to adjust the typical useful life for Smart Meters based on failure rate

evidence.

Operating Revenues (Exhibit 3) - The reasonableness/suitability of:

The load forecast methodology including weather normalization;

The proposed customers/connections and load forecasts (both kWh and kW) for the test
year;

The adjustment of CDM in the load forecast;

The proposed revenue offsets;

The proposal to adjust the Monthly Service Charge for MicroFIT customers.

Operating Costs (Exhibit 4) - The reasonableness/suitability of:

The overall OM&A forecast for the 2016 Test Year;.
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* The methodologies used to allocate costs;
* The proposed level of depreciation/amortization expense for the Test Year;
* The compensation costs and employee levels;

* The test year forecast of PILs.

Cost of Capital and Rate of Return (Exhibit 5) - The reasonableness/suitability of:
* The proposed capital structure;
* The cost of debt;

* The proposed return on equity.

Calculation of Revenue Deficiency (Exhibit 6) - The reasonableness/suitability of:

* The calculation of Revenue Deficiency.

Cost Allocation (Exhibit 7) - The reasonableness/suitability of:
* The appropriateness of WNP’s cost allocation;

* The proposed revenue-to-cost ratios.

Rate Design (Exhibit 8) - The reasonableness/suitability of:
* The customer charges and the fixed-variable splits for each class;
* The proposed Retail Transmission Service Rates;
* The proposed loss factors;
* The proposed Low Voltage rates;

* WNP’s proposed Tariff of Rates and Charges;

Deferral and Variance Accounts (Exhibit 9) - The reasonableness/suitability of:

¢ The account balances, cost allocation methodology and one-year disposition period.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.9 - Statement of Deviation of Filing Requirements

Except where specifically identified in the Application, WNP has adhered to Board’s filing

documents listed below in preparing this application:

o Chapter 2 of the Board’'s “Filing Requirements for Electricity Distribution Rate Applications —
2015 Edition for 2016 Rate Applications - Chapter 2: Cost of Service”, issued July 16, 2015;

o The Board’s “Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission and Distribution Applications -
Chapter 5: Consolidated Distribution System Plan Filing Requirements”, issued March 28,

2013;

Furthermore, the excel version of the “2016 Cost of Service Checklist” is being filed in

conjunction with this application.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.10 — Changes in Methodologies

The pro-forma projections for the 2016 Test Year were prepared in accordance with WNP’s
usual process, with the following exceptions:
e Rates for Distribution and Sales of Electricity are assumed to be constant for the entire
calendar year; and

e Amortization reflects the half-year rule for capital additions.
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1 Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.11 - Board Directive from Pervious Decisions

2 The Board did not issue specific directives in previous decisions.
3
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.12 - Conditions of Service

WNP’s Conditions of Services are found at http://www.wellingtonnorthpower.com/

WNP updated its Conditions of Service in 2014 to ensure consistency with Board Regulations
and Codes. The revised document was been made available to the public for review with a
notice being published in a newspaper and a message within customer’'s monthly bills. No
comments have been received from any member of the public to the utility. The Board was
notified by letter dated December 17" 2014 advising that Conditions of Service had been

revised.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.13 - Accounting Standards for Regulatory and Financial
Reporting

The useful lives proposed by WNP in this Application are consistent with the useful lives in the
Kinectrics Report commissioned by the OEB dated July 8, 2010. WNP accounting methodology
changed in this regard took effect January 1, 2012 and was approved by the Board in the
Applicant’s last Cost of Service rate application in 2012 (EB-2011-0249).

WNP attests that it does not and will continue not to capitalize administration and other general
overhead costs no longer permitted under IFRS, as clarified by the Board in its letter dated
February 24, 2010. WNP understands the need for comparability between distribution utilities.

WNP has also adopted the various account changes prescribed by the Board in relation to the
USOA (Article 210 — Chart of Accounts and Account 220 — Account Descriptions).

Consistent with recent applications to the Board, WNP no longer includes PST in its OM&A cost

estimates.

Regulatory costs and the incremental one-time cost have been normalized by allocating one
fifth of that total to the 2016 Test Year.

WNP is not proposing other changes in methodology.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.14- Accounting Treatment of Non-Utility Related Business

WNP is engaged in the delivery of the IESO’s Conservation and Demand Management
Programs. The accounting for these activities is segregated from WNP’s rate regulated activities

in accordance with the Board’s Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity Distributors.
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Ex.1/Tab 2/Sch.15 - Operating Environment

WNP is incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, and is owned by the
Shareholders of the Township of Wellington North and the Township of Southgate:
Commons Shares:  Township of Wellington North 97%

Township of Southgate 3%

WNP is managed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Township of Wellington North
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Filed: October 2015

WNP has thirteen (13) full-time employees (no part-time employees). The organagram below

illustrates the structure of the organization:

Table: 1.14 — Corporate Structure

Board of Directors

Chief Administration
Officer

Customer Service &

Customer Service
Supervisor

Chief Operating Officer

Administration Support

Lead-Hand

i L
F- Lineman
— Lineman

PAGE 27 OF 230




© 00 N o 0o b~ W DN P

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

The accountabilities of the Chief Operating Officer include, but are not limited to the following:

v

SN N N N N R

< s

Service reliability and safety of the utility’s electrical distribution system;
Capital project execution;

Budget forecasting (Capital);

Maintenance of distribution equipment;

Health & Safety compliance;

Industry compliance (ESA);

Energy Conservation planning and delivery;

Meter inspections, New services and New Connections;

Training and staff development of three linemen, one-lead-hand and an Operations
Technician;

Asset management maintenance;

Implementation of the Distribution system plan.

Customer engagement and attendance at community events

The accountabilities of the Chief Administrative Officer include, but are not limited to the

following:

v
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Regulatory Compliance with governing bodies including the OEB, IESO, Ministry of
Energy and Ministry of Finance;

Financial obligations and adherence to accounting codes and ethics;

Budget reporting and budget forecasting (Operating);

Customer Service and handling with escalated issues and complaints;

Service quality measurement and continuous improvements;

Billing and Collections;

Settlement validation;

Data validation (meter and settlement);

Measurement, tracking and measurement of WNP’s Scorecard;

Customer engagement and attendance at community events
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Executive Summary

Ex.1/Tab3/Sch.1 - Proposed Revenue Requirement

WNP proposes to recover through distribution rates a revenue requirement of $2,592,599. Table
1.5 below shows a comparison of the 2012 Board Approved Revenue Requirement versus the

2016 Test Year proposed Revenue Requirement.

Table 1.5: 2016 Test Year Proposed Revenue Requirements

CGAAP MIFRS
2012 2016
Last Board -
Particular [ — Test Year Variance
OM&A Expenses $1,500,000 $1,797,368 $297,368 19.8%
Depreciation Expense $387 630 $361,570 -526,060 6.7%
Property Taxes 512,006 $14,000 51,994 16.6%
Total Distribution Expenses $1,899,636 $2,172,938 5273,302 14 4%
Deemed Interest 191,420 5220153 528,733 15.0%
Utility Income after income tax §273,210 $350,096 §76,886 28.1%
Grossed up PlLs 52,033 50 -52.033 -100.0%
Service Revenue Requirement | $2,366,299 $2,743,188 5376,889 15.9%
Less: Revenue Offsets ($149,992) ($150.558) -5596 0.4%
Base Revenue Requirement $2,216,307 $2,592,599 $376,292 17.0%

The proposed revenue requirement for the 2016 Test Year is 17% higher than the 2012 Cost of
Service approved Revenue Requirement (equating to an increase of 3.4% per year). The major

11
12
13
14
15

16
17

contributors to the increased revenue requirements are:

a)
b)

All of these drivers are explained in their respective Exhibits

Increases in the OM&A expenses (as discussed in Exhibit 4); and

Regulated Return on Capital which has increased by $105,619 between the 2012 Board
Approved and 2016 Test Year ($570,249 - $464,630 ($191,420 + $273,210) = $105,619

~ an increase of 23%).
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.2 - Budget and Accounting Assumptions

WNP is a member of Cornerstone Hydro Electric Concepts Association Inc. (CHEC), a non-for-
profit organization consisting of similar sized and like-minded LDC’s that collaborate to tackle
industry issues. WNP has reviewed the budget processes of other CHEC LDC’s and has

adopted its own process as described below.

WNP compiles budget information for the three major components of the budgeting process:
a) Revenue forecasts;
b) Operating, maintenance and administration (“OM&A”) expenses; and
c) Capital costs under the RRFE categories:
o System Access
o System Renewal
o System Service
o General Plant

WNP’s operating expenses (OpEx) and capital expenditure (CapEx) budgets are prepared
annually by the Chief Administrate Officer (CAO) and Chief Operating Officer (COO). The
CapEx and OpEx are reviewed at WNP’s Finance Committee meeting in October/November. If
members of the Finance Committee accept the OpEx and CapEx budgets, there is a
recommendation to take this matter to the next Board of Directors meeting for approval. At the
November Board of Director's meeting, the directors discuss the proposed CapEx and OpEx
budgets and will approve it or reject it. (Any rejections lead to budget revisions which are

presented at the next Board meeting for review and acceptance.)

WNP’s OpEx and CapEx budgets are prepared before the start of each fiscal year, and in most
circumstances, approved before the start of the year. Once approved, the budgets do not
change. At monthly Board meetings, actuals are presented to show progress against the
budgets. If there is deviation against the plan, it is the responsibility of the CAO and/or COO to
know why and to propose corrective action (where possible.) WNP’s Financial Committee meets
quarterly and reviews the company’s financials and CapEx and OpEx budgets in detail. The
CAO and COO meet each month with the Finance department to review budgets against latest

actuals.
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As part of the planning process for a rate application (IRM or Cost of Service), WNP prepares a
revenue projection using most recent approved rates and actual consumption data from the last

12 months. Other Operating Revenues are projected by looking at the last 12 months actuals.

The OM&A costs presented at Exhibit 4 are the result of a business planning and work
prioritization process that ensures that the most appropriate, cost effective solutions are put in

place. The budgeting process used to determine the OM&A budget involves the following steps.

1) Detailed expenses for the past 3 years are provided to the CAO and COO. Current year
to date actual expenses are also provided. The COO and CAO are required to update
current year forecast to aid in development of full year forecast estimates.

2) Outside expenses for all department budgets are based on analysis including previous
years actual information, current year forecast, known changes in external costs and
anticipated changes in departmental activities or responsibilities in response to new
legislation/regulations/industry activities;

3) Variances in spending from prior years must be explained and documented, both at the
time of creating forecast and on a monthly basis as actuals are compiled;

4) The CAO and the Finance Department prepares a total labor budget by department
using projected wage and benefit cost. Overtime costs are based on previous years

actual.

The CAO and the Finance Department collates all forecasted OM&A expenditures to compare

the total projected expenditures and review year over year variances.

The forecasted capital budget (CapEX) is influenced, among other factors, by WNP’s capacity to
finance capital projects and the availability of internal resources to complete planned capital
projects. All proposed capital projects are assessed within the framework of its capital planning
process as outlined in WNP’s Distribution System Plan in Exhibit 2 (reference Appendix 2A —
section 5.4.2: CapEx Planning Process Overview, page 107). Topics included in the budget
process include:

e Customer expectations such as new connections;

e Customer Load Demand and forecasted growth;

e Current Load Capacity;

e System Renewal based on asset lifecycle optimisation;

* Reliability such as load switching;
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* ESA and Regulatory Requirements;

« 3" party requirements including infrastructure re-development

The Distribution System Plan presented in Exhibit 2 (Appendix 2A) supports the capital and
maintenance programs needed to maintain the reliability of WNP’s distribution system and meet

the requirements of our customers.
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.3 - Load Forecast Summary

The load forecast presented at Exhibit 3 a similar approach as was used in WNP’s last Cost of
Service application (EB-2011-0249). WNP’s forecast is based on a regression model developed
based on monthly wholesale purchased kWh from January 2005 to December 2014 as

measured at the wholesale point of delivery (exclusive of losses; i.e., not loss adjusted).

The methodology proposed in this application predicts wholesale consumption using a
regression analysis that relates historical monthly wholesale kwWh usage to monthly historical
heating degree days and cooling degree days. The regression model also uses other variables
which are tested to see their relationship and contribution to the fluctuating wholesale
purchases. More detailed model statistics can be found at Exhibit 3, Tab 1 Schedule 2.

The result of the regression analysis produces an equation that predicts the purchases based
on the explanatory variables. This prediction model is then used as the basis to forecast the
total level of weather normalized purchases for WDI for the 2015 Bridge Year and the 2016 Test
Year, which is converted to Billed kWh by rate class. A detail explanation of the process is
provided in Exhibit 3.

Weather normalized values are determined by using the regression equation with a 10-year
average monthly degree days (2005-2014). The 10-year average is consistent with recent
years’ weather and has been used in other electricity distribution rate applications and has been

accepted by the Board.

The difference between non-normalized and normalized forecast is assumed to be the amount
related to moving the forecast to a weather normal basis. This difference is assigned to those
rate classes that are weather sensitive. Allocation to specific weather sensitive rate classes
(Residential, General Service 50 and General Service 50-999kW) is based on WNP’s weather

normalization work completed by Hydro One for WNP for its’ 2007 Cost Allocation Study.
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The 2016 Load Forecast is presented below and compares the 2016 Test Year against the last

(2012) Board approved Forecast:

Table 1.6: Load Forecast

2012 Board 2016 Test Variance between
Approved Year 2016 Test Year versus

Residential Customers 3.160 3.251 91 2.9%
KWh 24 876,519 26,005 466 | 1,128,947 4 5%

Distribution Revenue 51,130,849  $1,376,020 [ 245171 21.7%

General Service = 50 kW Customers 489 476 (13) -2. 7%
kKWh 10,703,832 11,855,213 | 1,151,381 10.8%

Distribution Revenue 5400036 5453186 53,150 13.3%

General Service 50 to 999 kW Customers 40 35 (2) -5.8%
kKWh 19,816,501 13,489,914 | (6.326.587) -31.9%

kW 50,979 41,588 (9,391) -18.4%

Distribution Revenue  $298.107 5235377 (62,730) -21.0%

General Service 1000 to 4,999 kW Customers 4 5 1 14.0%
KWh 42769242 50613209 | 7.843 968 18.3%

KWW 97,926 108,301 10,375 10.6%

Distribution Revenue  $295 993 5461.076 165.083 55 8%

Street Lights Customers 886 905 19 21%
KWh 711,946 725,392 13,446 1.9%

kKWW 1.925 1,995 Fill] 3.6%

Distribution Revenue 588,595 $61,123 (27.472) -31.0%

Sentinel Lights Customers 17 29 12 74.1%
KWh 29,261 23,128 (6,133) -21.0%

KWW 80 65 (15) -18.7%
Distribution Revenue 52 545 56,560 3.012 118.2%

Unmetered Loads Connections 1 1 (0] -31.7%
kK\Wh 3.969 3,024 (945) -23.8%

Distribution Revenue 3181 3256 75 41.6%

Total

Customer/Connections 4 598 4,704 107 2.3%

KWh 98,911,269 102715347 | 3,804,078 3.8%

kKW from applicable classes 150,910 161,949 1,039 0.7%

Distribution Revenue $2 216,309 52 592 599 | $376,290 17.0%

Notes

a) The kWh and kW values in the above table are after CDM adjustment; and

b) The customer and connections counts are end-of year actuals (not averages).

Detailed explanations of the load forecast methodology, outcome and analysis can be found in

Exhibit 3 of this Application.
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.4 - Rate Base and Capital Planning

A rate base is the value of property on which a utility is permitted to earn a specified rate of
return in accordance with rules set by the Board. The rate base underlying WNP’s revenue
requirement includes a forecast of net fixed assets, plus a working capital allowance defined as
7.5% of the sum of the cost of power and controllable expenses. Controllable expenses include

operations and maintenance, billing and collecting and administration expenses.

The proposed Rate Base for the 2016 test year of $9,523,835 reflects an increase of

$2,034,517 from the 2012 Board Approved. The increase is predominately as a result of:

e The inclusion at Net Book Value of $1,383,199 in assets transferred to the 2016 Test Year
opening balance from account 1508. These assets are related to the 2014 ICM approval to
rebuild our MS-2 sub-station. Further details on the topic of the ICM project can also be
found at Exhibit 2 / Tab 5/ Schedule 7.

e The capital assets added in the Test Year, total $1,910,401, of which $1,269,062 is the
projected Capital Contribution payment for the construction of the second line feeder to
Mount Forest. Another $480,000 of the remaining capital spending is budgeted to connect
the new line into the existing distribution system. Details of these additions are discussed in
WNP’s 2015 Distribution System Plan that has been filed as Appendix 2A of Exhibit 2.

The above major investments indicate the prudent, reasonable and forward-looking investment
in the distribution assets necessary to meet other regulatory requirements such as “obligation to

connect” new growth and the need to maintain the highest electrical safety standards.

Table 1.7 below shows the derivation of the proposed 2016 Test Year Rate Base and further
details are included in Exhibit 2.

Table 1.7: Rate Base

CGAAP MIFRS
Particulars Last Board 2016 Test Variance
Approved Year
Met Capital Assets in Service:
Opening Balance 56,812,772 57,653,193 51,840,421
Ending Balance 55,913,026 59,155,083 $3.242.058
Average Balance $5,862,899 $8,404,138 $2,541,239 43.3%
Waorking Capital Allowance 51,626,419 $1,119,697 -5506,723 -31.2%
Total Rate Base $7,489,318 $9,523,835 $2,034,517 27.2%
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The utility is not proposing to recover any costs from any rate class renewable energy

connections/expansions, smart grid, and regional planning initiatives.

Table 1.8 below summarizes the change in Working Capital Allowance for the 2016 Test Year

from the Board Approved:

Table 1.8: Working Capital Allowance

CGAAP MIFRS
Expenses for Working Capital If;;ﬁ;i? 201'69 ;—:ﬁt Variance
Eligible Distnbution Expenses:
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation 5271.063 411,500 5140437 51.8%
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance $230,223 $239,500 59,277 4.0%
3650-Billing and Collecting 5325553 $395.000 569,447 21.3%
3700-Community Relations 36,304 57,000 5696 11.0%
3800-Administrative and General Expenses 5664 547 $740,368 575,821 11.4%
6105-Taxes other than Income Taxes 512,006 $14,000 51,994 16.6%
6205-Sub-account LEAP Funding 52,310 54,000 $1.690 73.2%
Total Eligible Distribution Expenses $1,512,006 $1,811,368 $299,362 10.8%
3350-Power Supply Expenses 510,105,275 $13,117.919 | $3.012.644 29 8%
Total Expenses for Working Capital $11,617,281 $14,929,287 | $3,312,007 28.5%
Working Capital factor 14.0% T.5%
Total Working Capital $1,626,419 $1,119,697 ($506,723) -M.2%

As described in the Distribution System Plan (“DSP”), WNP’s capital expenditures are modest
and as a result there are few identifiable separate “projects” to be reported on and details of
these capital expenses above the materiality threshold are presented in the DSP in Exhibit 2
(Appendix 2)

The table below summarizes WNP’s capital investment plan showing historic (actual)
investment spent for the years 2011 to 2014; current year (2015) planned investment; and

forecasted planned investment (2016-2020) grouped by the investment categories.
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Table 1.9: Capital Investment Overview — Historic, Current and Future

Overview 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Budget Forecast

(Base Plan + Special \pyecmment category Historic  Historic  Historic Historic Forecast ~ Forecast Forecast Forecast
: Bridge Year Test Year
Projects)

General Plant $327,991 5138,275 $361,688 538,617 $220,000 570,650 $138,670 $24,470 $421,850 5453,000

System Access $42,931 $107,171  $57,730 $239,084  $172,500 $60,000  $240,000  $240,000 $240,000  $60,000

System Renewal $192,014 $307,636  $293,467 $1,847,819  $155,500 450,000  $350,000 $1,924,000 $250,000 $410,000

Systems Service $34,362 $13,375  $54,802  $61,613  $212,000 $1,729,751 $0 $0 $0 s

Capital Investment Total  $507,200 $566,457 $757,686 $2,187,163  $760,000 $1,010,401 $728,670 $2,188,470 $911,850 $923,000

The above table includes “special” projects (the shaded values in years 2014, 2016 and 2018).

These special projects are:

2014 - In its 2013 Incentive Rate Mechanism (IRM) rate application seeking approval for
2014 distribution rates, WNP included an Incremental Capital Module (ICM) requesting
approval and recovery for building a new substation to replace an existing station that, in a
3" party assessment, had major deficiencies. The ICM was approved as per Decision and
Order EB-2013-0178 dated March 13™ 2014. The LDC spent $1,433,955 on this ICM project
that was energized and in-service in December 2014 (as planned).

[Note: the total amount spent by the WNP was $1,673,955 of which $240,000 was already
approved for substation investment and included in LDC’s 2014 CapEx plan as per 2012
Cost of Service rate application EB-2011-0249].

2016 — As discussed in this Distribution System Plan, WNP are seeking regulatory approval
to recover construction costs through electricity distribution rates for building a 2" feeder
line to one of its service territories (the Town of Mount Forest). Currently, there is only one
feeder to this area which is at its demand capacity and has been affected by reliability in
recent years. This project is in conjunction with Hydro One.

2018 — As discussed in this Distribution System Plan, WNP are seeking regulatory approval
to recover construction costs through electricity distribution rates to replace a municipal

substation due to age and deficiencies (as identified in a 3" party assessment study).

It should be noted that in preparing its capital investment plans and reviewing the needs for the

“special” projects, WNP considers discretionary and non-discretionary spending (i.e. are there

capital projects that can be shifted to another period or does the project need to be completed in

that particular year.) To that extent, WNP has prioritized its plans and where possible, for the

years of 2016 and 2018 when “special”’ projects have been planned, has moved discretionary

capital projects into other years.
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The below table is taken from the Ontario Energy Board‘s “Filing Requirements for Electricity Transmission and Distribution Applications -

Chapter 5 — Consolidated Distribution System Plan Filing Requirement” (March 28, 2013), table 2 page 18 and the LDC historical and planned

Capital Expenditure.

Table 1.10: Capital Expenditure Summary

First year of Forecast Period: 2016
Historical Period (previous plan' & actual Forecast Period (planned)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
CATEGORY Plan I Actual Var Plan I Actual Var Plan I Actual Var Plan I Actual Var Plan | Actual® Var 2016 17 me 2018 2020
§ 000 % § 000 % § 000 % § 000 % § 000 % § 000
System Access 156 43| -72.5% 102 107 5.1% 55 58] 52% 229 239 4.5% 173 35| -79.9% 60 240 240 240 60
System Renewal 231 192 17.0% 261 308 18.0% 273 283 3.8% 1,756 1848 52% 156 206| 326% 50 350 1,924 250 410
System Service 39 34| 121% 9 13 46.1% 56 58] -1.3% 66 62| -5.9% 212 17| -92.2% 1,730 - - - -
General Plant 243 328 34.8% 152 138 -9.3% 377 362 4.1% 25 39| 57.6% 220 77| -65.1% 4 139 24 422 453
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 670 597 -10.9% 524 566 8.0% 760 758 -0.4% 2.075 2187 54% 760 334| -56.0% 1,910 729 2,188 912 923
System O&M 5 430 5011 5 589 17.4% 570 & 888| 3.2% 583| 5 668| -2.6% 637| %5 394] -38.0% 651 667)| % 684 % 701 719
Notes to the Table:
1. Historical “previous plan” data is not required unless a plan has previously been filed
2. Indicate the number of months of "actual’ data included in the last year of the Historical Period (normally a ‘bridge’ year):

Notes:

a) Although it is not a requirement because the LDC has not filed a DSP, Wellington North Power Inc. has provided “previous plan” data.
b) 2015: Actual includes costs as at 31st August 2015.
c) The System Renewal Actual CapEx spend is currently higher than Plan (32.6%) due to a Capital Contribution project that to date has not
been started. This is a developer project that is planned for completion within the year and has a planned capital contribution of $130,000 -
this contribution will reduce the LDC's system renewal spend if it is started/completed within the year.
d) 2015: System service includes a new SCADA system being installed and implemented at the LDC. This is due to be implemented in

October 2015.

e) 2015: General Plant includes the purchasing of a pick-up truck and necessary building renovation work - these investments account for
$110,000 of planned CapEx spend and are due to be started and completed in Q4 of 2015.
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.5 - Overview of Operation Maintenance and Administrative

Costs

The operating costs consist of the required expenditures necessary to maintain and operate
WNP’s distribution system assets, the costs associated with metering, billing, collecting from its
customers, the costs associated with ensuring all stakeholders safety (public and employees)
and costs to maintain the distribution business service quality and reliability standards set by the
regulating bodies.

In WNP’s last approved Cost of Service rate application requesting approval for 2012
distribution rates (EB-2011-0249), prior to the settlement conference, the Applicant was seeking
approval for $1,704,469 for OM&A expenses. Through the settlement process, this was reduced
to $1,500,000 and approved by the Board. However, even though current rates include
$1,500,000, WNP’s actual operating costs for 2013 and 2014 were $1,744,085 and $1,726,946
respectively and the utility is projecting OM&A to be $1,750,000 in 2015. In WNP’s opinion, the
operating cost proposed in the utility’s 2012 application are more in-line with the actual costs

rather than the amount that was settled and approved.

Furthermore, by way of this 2016 Cost of Service rate application, WNP is proposing an OM&A
amount of $1,797,368 for the 2016 Test Year which, in the opinion of the Applicant, is a very
reasonable request considering this represents a 5.5% increase over the amount requested in
the 2012 application. Over the four year period from 2012 to 2016, the annual simple average
increase is 1.4% which is less than the Board’s annual inflation rate over the same period (i.e.

the percentage change in GDP-IPI).

The increase of approximately $297,368 in OM&A spending from its 2012 Cost of Service to the
2016 Test Year can be attributed to three main factors:

e Working Agreement - One of the main cost drivers is the increase in labour costs per
year incurred as part of WNP’s Employee Working Agreement. WNP’s Employee
Working Agreement is reviewed every three years. The current agreement is effective
from January 1% 2014 to 31% December 2016 and includes a 2.5% increase in salary

costs due to inflation.
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2015 Organizational Restructure and CEO Retirement - In 2015, WNP had an
organizational restructure due to the imminent retiring of the CEO / President. WNP
Board of Directors believed that this was an opportunity to promote from within the
company and restructure rather than hiring an external person to replace the CEO /
President. This restructure resulted in changes in employees’ responsibilities and a
review of pay grades. Job descriptions were revised to reflect accountabilities and

responsibilities of each position within the restructure.

Change in Regulatory Costs - WNP has experienced an increase in regulatory costs,
particularly when preparing and submitting complex and detailed rate applications (i.e. in
2011 & 2012 for a Cost of Service submission (EB-2011-0249); in 2013 & 2014 for an
Incentive Rate Mechanism application with an Incremental Capital Module (EB-2013-
0178); and in 2015 & 2016 Cost of Service application — EB-2015-0110)).

The table below illustrates the variance between OM&A spending from its 2012 Cost of Service
to the 2016 Test Year:

Table 1.11: Summary of Recoverable OM&A Expenses

Board Approved Eulilfﬁt Variance

Operations §271,062 £411,500 140,437
Maintenance $230,223 $239,500 59,277
Billing and Collecting §327 863 £395,000 567 137
Community Relations 56,304 57,000 5696
Administrative and General $664 547 5744 368 579,821
Total $1,500,000 $1,797,368 5297,368
%Change (year over year) 19.8%

WNP has provided a concise summary of year over year OM&A variances in Exhibit 4 of this

Application.
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.6 - Statement of Cost of Capital Parameters

WNP has followed the Report of the Board on Cost of Capital for Ontario’s Regulated Utilities,

December 11, 2009 in determining the cost of capital.

In calculating the cost of capital, [Utility Name] has used the deemed capital structure of 56%
long-term debt, 4% short-term debt, and 40% equity, and the Cost of Capital parameters in the
OEB letter of October 15, 2015, for the allowed return on equity and where appropriate for debt.

[Utility Name]’s cost of capital for 2015 has been calculated as 5.99%, as shown in Table 1.9
below:

Table: 1.12 — Overview of Capital Structure

Particulars Cost Rate
(%)
Debt
Long-term Debt 4.01
Short-term Debt 1.65
Total Debt 4.35
Equity
Common Equity 9.19
Preferred Shares 0.00
Total Equity 9.19
Total 5.99

The Cost of Capital parameters are consistent with the letter issued by the OEB on October 15,
2015 that sets the values as indicated below:

Table 1.13: 2016 Rate Applications — Capital Parameters

Cost of Capital Parameter Value for 2016 Applications for Rate Changes in 2016
Return on Equity (ROE) 9.19%
Deemed Long-Term Debt rate 4.54%
Deemed Short-Term Debt rate 1.65%

WNP understands that the OEB may update the ROE for 2016 at a later date, and therefore the
utility commits to updating its Application to reflect the OEB’s updated Cost of Capital

Parameters for May 1, 2016 applications and as new information is issued.
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.7 - Overview of Cost Allocation and Rate Design

The main objectives of a Cost Allocation study is to provide information on any apparent cross-
subsidization among a distributor’s rate classifications and to eventually be used in future rate

applications.

WNP has prepared and is filling a cost allocation information filing consistent with the utility’s
understanding of the Directions, the Guidelines, the Model and the Instructions issued by the

Board in November of 2006 and all subsequent updates.

WNP has prepared a Cost Allocation Study for the 2016 Test Year based on an allocation of the
2016 Test Year costs (i.e. the 2016 forecast revenue requirement) to the various customer
classes using allocators that are based on the forecast class loads (kW and kWh), by class and

by customer counts.

WNP has used the updated Board-approved Cost Allocation Model and followed the instructions
and guidelines issued by the Board to enter the 2016 data into this model.

Using the Cost Allocation model, four customer classes’ revenue to cost ratios (General Service
50-999kW, Unmetered Scattered Load, Sentinel Lighting and Street Lighting) were beyond the
Board range. For these classes, WNP has applied the same methodology as used in the
Applicant’s 2012 Cost of Service rate application (EB-2011-0249) for adjusting revenue-to-cost

ratio to be within the Board’s expected tolerance.

Table 1.14 below shows the utility’s proposed Revenue to Cost reallocation based on an
analysis of the proposed results from the Cost Allocation Study vs the Board imposed floor and
ceiling ranges.

Table 1.14: Proposed Revenue to Cost Allocation

Previously Status Quo
Approved Ratios Ratios Proposed Ratios .

Class Most Recent Policy Range

Year: (TC+TE)/(TA) | (TD+TE)!(TA)

2014

% % % %

'Residential 99.08 90.14 9476 85 - 115
'GS < 60 kW 95.36 119.93 107.74 80 - 120
'GS = 50 - 999 kW 120.00 152.26 120.00 80 - 120
'GS 1000 to 4999 kW 95.36 82.58 100.00 80 - 120
'Street Lighting 95.36 198.27 120.00 80 -120
"Sentinel Lighting 120.00 64.71 100.00 80 - 120
"Unmetered Scattered Load (USL) 95.36 134.80 120.00 80 - 120
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Distribution revenue is derived through a combination of fixed monthly charges and volumetric
charges based either on consumption (kWh'’s) or demand (kW'’s).
Revenues are collected from 7 customer classes:
e Residential;
e General Service < 50 kW;
e General Service 50 - 999 kW;
e General Service 1000-4999kW:;
e Sentinel Lighting;
e Unmetered Scattered Load; and

e Street Lighting.

Fixed rate revenue is determined by applying the current fixed monthly charge to the number of

customers or connections in each of the customer classes.

Variable rate revenue is based on a volumetric rate applied to meter readings for consumption

or demand volume.

Existing volumetric rates include a component to recover allowances for Transformer ownership

(Transformer Allowance).

Commodity Charges as well as deferral and variance Rate Riders and WNP’s specific other rate
Adders (such as Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism — LRAM) are added to the distribution

rates to arrive at a final all-encompassing bill.

WNP has incorporated the Fixed Rate design changes for Residential customer class as set out
in the Board’s paper “Implementing a New Rate Design for Electricity Distributors” (EB-2012-
0410) released July 16™ 2015. Using the residential consumption at the 10™ percentile and
applying the proposed 2016 Test Year rates the total bill was below the Board’s 10% threshold.

WNP is not proposing any rate mitigation plans and is discussed further in Exhibit 8
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.8 - Overview of Deferral and Variance Account Disposition

In this rate application, WNP is proposing to dispose of all its Deferral / Variance account

balances.

WNP proposes to dispose of a debit of $22,445 relating to Group 1 Variance/Deferral Accounts.
This debit balance includes carrying charges up to and including April 30, 2016.

WNP proposes to dispose of a debit of $153,328 relating to account 1589 RSVA — Global
Adjustments. This debit balance includes carrying charges up to and including April 30, 2016.

WNP proposes to dispose of a debit of $51,217 relating to Group 2 Variance/Deferral Accounts
which includes 1508 — Other Regulatory Assets — Sub Account. This 1508 — Other Regulatory
Assets account balance relates to the Incremental Capital Module (ICM) Rate Rider variance
between forecasted collected revenue and actual revenue collected from the Rate Rider (as
discussed in Exhibit 2).

This debit balance includes carrying charges up to and including April 30, 2016

WNP also proposes to dispose of the following;
* A net debit balance of $11,761 recorded in account 1568 being the Lost Revenue

Adjustment Mechanism Variance Account, and

All Group 1 and Group 2 DVA balances are proposed to be disposed of over a 1 year period.

WNP has followed the OEB’s guidance as provided in the OEB’s Electricity Distributor’s
Disposition of Variance Accounts Reporting Requirements Report. As of December 31, 2014,
WNP recorded principal balances in the following Board-approved deferral and variance

accounts.
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The table below summarises the account balances (principal with interest charges applied to
April 30" 2016) that WNP are seeking recovery of through this rate application:

Table 1.15: Account and Balances sought for disposition/recovery

Account $
LV Variance Account 1550 82,075
Smart Metering Entity Charge Variance Account 1551 2,209
RSVA - Wholesale Market Service Charge 1580 (83,122)
RSVA - Retail Transmission Network Charge 1584 (54,607)
RSVA - Retail Transmission Connection Charge 1586 (39,663)
RSVA - Power (excluding Global Adjustment) 1588 75,878
RSVA - Global Adjustment 1589 153,328
Disposition and Recovery/Refund of Regulatory Balances (2010) 1595 3,767
Disposition and Recovery/Refund of Regulatory Balances (2011) 1595 0
Disposition and Recovery/Refund of Regulatory Balances (2012) 1595 35.906
Total of Group 1 Accounts (excluding 1589) 22,445
Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-Account - Deferred IFRS Transition Costs 1508 49,011
Other Regulatory Assets - Sub-Account - Other * 1508 7,828
Retail Cost Variance Account — Retail 1518 3,227
Misc. Deferred Debits 1525 (5)
Retail Cost Variance Account — STR 1548 3,918
Smart Meter Capital-Recovery Offset Variance - Stranded Meter Costs 1555(1531) 6,567
HST/OVAT 1592 (19,329)
Total of Group 2 Accounts 51,217
LRAM Variance Account | 1568 11,761
Total Group 1 &2 Balances Allocated to each class (excluding 1589) $73,662
Total Balance Allocated to each class from Account 1589 $153,328
Accounting Changes Under CGAAP Balance + Return Component 1576 0
Total Balance Allocated to each class for Accounts 1575 and 1576 $0
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Ex.1/Tab 3/Sch.9 - Overview of Bill Impacts

A summary of the bill impacts by class is presented below. Detailed explanations of the bill

impacts are presented at Exhibit 8.

Table 1.16: Bill Impacts Summary — Comparing Current Rates and Proposed 2-016 Rates

Total Bill (before tax)

Current Board Change in
RPP or Non- Load Approved Proposed
Customer Class kKwh kw PP 2016 Amount S %
RPP Factor Amount

Residential RPP 800 $143.08 §144 18 51.10 0.77%

ial - low user (10th percentile) RPP 310 $67.95 571.83 £3.89 5.72%
General Senice <50 kW RPP 2,000 $342.07 5351.01 58.94 261%
General Service 50 - 999 KW Non-RPP 38,217 106 90% $5,311.23 $5.296.53 ($14.69) | 0.28%

sneral Service 1000 - 4999 kW Non-RPP| 746,695 1476 90% £93.711.52 597.108.08 | $3.396.56 | 3.62%

Unmetered Scattered Load RPP 252 356.41 $61.49 55.08 9.00%
Sentinel Lighting Non-RPP 1,927 A 90% $356.99 5364 26 $7.27 2.04%
Streetlights Non-RPP 64,297 165 90% 58,938.44 58,894 33 (544 11) | -0.49%

The above table shows the total bill impact before tax and demonstrates the effect of the
proposed 2016 rates vary by customer class, ranging from a decrease of 0.49% for the Street
Lights Class to increases of 9% for Unmetered Scattered Load.

The Residential Class total bill impact is an increase 0.77%, approximately $1.10 per month. In
calculating this change, the Ontario Clean Energy benefits (OCEB) 10% credit was removed

from both the current bill and the proposed bill so as to give a like-for-like comparison.

The percentage increases of 9% for Unmetered Scattered Lighting is exacerbated because of

the relative small bill amount.

For General Services <50kW and General Service 1000-4999kW, these increases are
predominately due to the allocation of cost-to-revenues as derived from the Cost Allocation
Model. This is discussed in Exhibit 7.

All customer classes have seen an increase in their proposed RTSR (network and connection)

rates. The RTSR rates are discussed in Exhibit 8 of this application.

Finally, all customer classes have been impacted by the proposed increase of Low Voltage (LV)
rates based on WNP’s forecast for the 2016 Test Year. As described in Exhibit 8, WNP has
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noted rising LV charges incurred from Hydro One over the past three years, largely due to LV
Rate Riders. Therefore, at the time of re-basing, the utility feels it is reasonable to adjust the LV

rates charged to customers to reflect the charges incurred from Hydro One.

In WNP’s opinion, the proposed rates for the 2016 Test Year are equitable, just and reasonable.
The proposed 2016 Test Year revenue requirement is needed to remain in compliance with the
utility’s regulatory bodies as well as meet its fulfill its mission statement to provide its customers

with the most cost effective delivery of electricity safely, reliably and efficiently.
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Applicant Overview

Ex.1/Tab 4/Sch.1 — Applicant Overview

Wellington North Power Inc.’s service territory is the urban areas of the former town of Mount

Forest, the former village of Arthur and the former village of Holstein.

The Township of Wellington North and the Township of Southgate are the Shareholders of the
Corporation. The Township of Wellington North is the primary holder, of 97% of the shares and
the Township of Southgate holding 3% of the shares.

The table below illustrates the scale of service area and assets managed by WNP
Table 1.17: Overview of WNP

2014 Supporting Information

Maximum Monthly Peak 17,897 kW  January 2014
Service Area (sq. km) 14
Kilometres of Line 86
Total Customers 3,731

Residential 3,213

General Service <50kW 478

General Service 50-999 kW 40

General Service 1000-4999 kW 5
Unmetered Scattered Load (connections) 1
Sentinel Lights (connections) 27
Street Lighting (connections) 905
Generation 301,047 kWh | Generated energy during 2014 from:

e 18 MicroFIT accounts and;
e 1 FIT account

Number of Substations (<50 kV) 6
Wholesale Meter Points 3
Poles 1841
Primary Lines (km)

Overhead 72

Underground 14
Transformers (units)

OH 518

uG 122
44kV Switches Load Break 6
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(WNP) is an embedded distributor within Hydro One’s service territory and is connected under

115kV, from two of Hydro Ones Transmissions Station feeders:

Transformer Substation Transformer Community Served within Wellington
Owner Name North Power Service Territory
Hydro One Networks Inc. |NA73-Fergus TS |Urban Area of Arthur
Hydro One Networks Inc. |NA36 - Hanover TS |Urban Areas of Holstein and Mount Forest

WNP is a registered Market Participant, dealing directly with the Independent Electricity System
Operator (IESO) for the electricity which is passed through our distribution system to

consumers.

As an embedded utility, WNP is billed monthly by Hydro One for all Transmission related
charges including Low Voltage. Transmission and Low Voltages charges are passed through to

WNP’s customers.
WNP’s service area consists of 44kV, 8kV, and 4kV high voltage systems.

WNP has two Hydro One 44kV feeders serving its distribution territory. WNP owns and operates
the electricity distribution system in its licensed service area including parts of the Township of
Wellington North and the Township of Southgate, serving approximately 4,500 Residential,
General Service, Street Lighting, Sentinel Light and Unmetered Scattered Load

customers/connections.

WNP’s distribution assets include:
e Four municipal distribution stations that steps voltage from 44kV to 4kV for distribution
within the town of Mount Forest;
e Two municipal distribution stations that steps voltage from 44kV to 4kV for distribution
within the village of Arthur, and;
¢ Distribution assets supplied by a Hydro One shared distribution station which service our

customer’s in the village of Holstein.

WNP receives power from two Hydro One 44kV circuits, one from Fergus TS and one from
Hanover TS. These 44kV circuits are used to supply our distribution assets described above.
Electricity is then distributed through WNP’s service area of 14 square kilometers through the

company’s 72km of overhead conductors and 14km of underground cable.
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The distribution voltage of 4kV is stepped down by approximately 640 transformers, both
overhead and underground, to the service voltage provided to our customers. WNP monitors its
distribution system using a station monitoring system at its main office building at 290 Queen

Street West in Mount Forest, ON.

WNP owns and maintains approximately 3,736 meters installed on its customers’ premises for
the purpose of measuring energy consumption of electricity for billing purposes. Meters vary in
type by customer and include meters capable of measuring kWh consumption, kW demand and
kVA, as well as hourly interval data. WNP completed the installation of all of its Residential and
General Service <50kW Smart Meters by December 2010 as part of the Province of Ontario’s
Smart Meter initiative. On June 25, 2008, Ontario Regulation 235/08 was filed by the Ontario
Provincial Government giving WNP authorization to proceed with its first phase of Smart Meter

installation.

In managing its distribution system assets, WNP’s main objective is to optimize performance of
the assets at a reasonable cost with due regard for system reliability, public and worker safety

and customer service requirements.

In addition to the capital needs of the network, WNP provides for maintenance planning for the
assets. WNP’s assets fall into two broad categories — distribution plant, which includes assets
such as substation building, wires, overhead and underground electricity distribution
infrastructure, transformers, meters and substations; and general plant which includes assets
such as, office building and service centre, computer equipment and software. General Plant

also includes the company’s fleet of six vehicles and stores equipment.

The following pages illustrate WNP service area maps
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WNP Service Territory Map — Mount Forest
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WNP Service Territory Map — Arthur
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WNP Service Territory Map — Holstein
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Ex.1/Tab 4/Sch.2 — Host /[Embedded Distributor

WNP is an embedded distributor who receives electricity at distribution level voltages from Hydro One

Networks Inc. WNP does not have any embedded distributors within its territory.
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Ex.1/Tab 4/Sch.3 — Transmission or High Voltage Assets

The Applicant does not have any transmission or high voltage assets deemed by the Board as

distribution assets and as such are not seeking approvals from the Board in that regards.
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Customer Engagement

Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.1 - Overview of Customer Engagement

The Report of the Board, Renewed Regulatory Framework for Electricity Distributors: A Performance
Based Approach (the “RRFE Report”) contemplates enhanced engagement between distributors and
their customers to provide better alignment between distributor operational plans and customer needs
and expectations. WNP always has, and always will, focus on its customers by striving to provide
superior service to its customer base. WNP is also becoming more customer-centric by investing in
new capabilities, programs, and technologies that allow us to communicate more effectively and
efficiently with our customers. Some of our current initiatives to maintain or improve our level of

customer engagement are as outlined over the next few pages.

WNP has summarized its customer engagement activities in table 1.18 on the following page
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Table 1.18 — OEB Appendix 2 - AC

Provide a list of customer engagement
activities

Provide a list of customer needs and preferences identified
through each engagement activity

Actions taken to respond to identified needs and preferences. If no action
was taken, explain why.

In-Office Customer Engagement

Office is open &5 days a week during
business hours where customers can
telephone, e-mail or visit and speak to a
person

a) Front Counter Engagement
b) Technical Engagement
c) Bill query support - consumption analysis

Consumer concerns and issues are dealt with immediately by knowledgeable
Customer Semvice Representatives (CSR) and in-person.

For any cancerns that cannot be resolved, the Customer Senice Representative
(CSR) will involve the CSR Supenisor or Lead-Hand and if required, also include the
Chief Operating Officer and/or Chief administrative Officer of the company.

Queries regarding service lay-out requests, power outage or partial power are
discussed with the Lead-Hand, the Operations Technician or the Chief Operating
Officer who will investigate.

CSR's assist consumers with billing queries such as understanding the bill and
reviewing electricity usage queries. For example. CSR's can print interval data for a
specified period and present to customers information showing when their
consumption appears iregular (high/low). This assists customers in understanding
TOU periods and rates.

Financial Assistance Program

WHNP provides support through two agency partners with the
province’s Low-income Energy Assistance Program (LEAP). This
emergency financial assistance programs are designed to help low-
income customers who have difficulty making their electricity bill
payments.

WNP continues to promote verbally the emergency financial assistance programs
that are available to assist low-income customers

Customer Connect and on-line payment
senvices

WNP provides a self-service tool, accessible through the LDC's
website where a customer can review their consumption history and
payment records. Customers can view their information anytime

Customers contact the LDC to request initial set-up. No further action is necessary
as this is a self-senvice tool.

Customer Surveys

UtilityPULSE (3rd party) telephone survey in 2013 and 2014

VWNP received complaints from customers about being interrupted to participate in a
survey. For example, of 989 residential and small businesses contacted, VWWMNP staff
and Board Directors received negative faedback from 19 customers (2%) advising
they had been interrupted or if they had a problem with their local hydro company,
they would tell us directly.

VNP is investigating the benefits and cost of using "pull” surveys i.e. where
customers complete a survey in their own time and convenience.

Annual Spring/Fall Fairs in the
communities of Arthur and Mount Forest

a) Conservation and usage reduction for small business and
residential customers, Customer Connect, billing queries and
Electrical Safety awareness

General awareness of conservation activities and programs as well as electrical
safaty

Regional Planning Engagements

a) WNP is invited to participate in IESO regional planning meetings
b) Meetings with Hydro One

a) To date, there are regional planned projects that affect WHNP

b) WNP and Hydro One meet annually. if required. to address any issues. For
example, WNP has been working with Hydro One on a 2nd-line feeder to Mount
Forest proposal to address current capacity limitations as well as reliability
concerns. This proposal has been included in this rate application seeking OEB
approval to recover the project cost from ratepayers.

Customer Education literature

WHNP publishes advertisements and includes bill inserts regarding
energy conservation, electrical safety and annual updates regarding
major capital projects completed or planned by the LDC

WNP received feedback from one customer advising the annual updates were
informative but what was cost to print this information. WNP contacted the customer
by telephone (and followed up by e-mail) thanking him for the feedback and advising
the article was written in-house and the only cost was placing the notice in the
newspaper ($395+HST). The LDC is using social media (Twitter and Facebook) to
provide updates as this incurs no cost and will be re-launching its website in 2016
which will contain capital project information for consumers to review at their
convenience

Social Media

During a power outage, customers want updated information about
restoration times. WHNP introduced social media (Twitter and
Facebook) and provide real-time updates of outages, promotion of
electrical safety, energy conservation and events that the LDC will be

The LOC has received positive customers feedback regarding notification of power
outages and restoration times via social media

Public meetings

In March 2015, WNP hosted two public meetings to share information
regarding proposed capital plans and energy conservation programs.

Regrettably, there was zero attendance despite promoting the events
in newspaper adverts and bill inserts.

WP is considering alternative methods to interact with consumers, such as
speaking at a Chamber of Commerce and holding a Questions & Answers session.

Industrial and Commercial consumer
interaction

If there is a power outage (even a momentarily interruption) Industrial
and Commercial contact the Chief Operating Officer (COO) on his
cell. The COO maintains persenal contact with these customers
advising of updates and progress.

The COO also personally meets with these customers periodically
throughout the year to discuss matters including sharing of
information regarding changing their shift patterns, expansion,
reduction and demand capacity requirements

Industrial and Commercial customer appreciate the accessibility to knowledgeable
WNP staff who take action and support their requirements. For example, there is a
current demand capacity constraint which in the near future will affect growth in
Mount Forest. WINP has worked with intensive energy users to understand their
future energy demands and provided updated demand forecast data to Hydro One to
explore opportunities. Hydro One and WHNP have worked on a 2nd line feeder
proposal which is included in this rate application and has support from
industrial/commercial customers
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.2 - Customer Satisfaction Survey

WNP incorporates customer feedback into its capital planning process. As a local small utility and with
many of the employees and Board Directors of the company living in the service area, it means that
customer concerns are communicated quite easily just by interaction. WNP prides itself in having an
office that is open 5 days a week during business hours meaning that customers have access to LDC

employees to answer guestions or to raise concerns.

WNP has been conducting surveys of their customer base over the last few years of years, with
responses constantly indicating that customers are satisfied with the LDC’s service levels, capital
spending program and reliability of the distribution system. Customers have also indicated that energy
costs have an impact on their budget and that cost of energy is a concern. The surveys conducted and
customer engagement events that WNP have patrticipated in include:
a) CHEC (Cornerstone Hydro Electric Concepts Inc.) Joint Utilities Customer Satisfaction Survey
utilizing the services of UtilityPULSE (June 2013);
b) WNP Customer Satisfaction Survey utilizing the services of UtilityPULSE (June 2014);
c) Public meetings in March 2015;
d) General Service 1,000 — 4,999kW Survey (December 2014)
e) Attendance at local community events — such as Homeshows and Spring / Fall fairs;
f) BIll inserts and newspaper advertising promoting energy conservation tips and electrical
awareness;
g) Annual newspaper adverts informing consumers of projects completed by WNP during the year
as well as planned projects;

h) Social media postings promoting energy conservation tips and electrical awareness.

In 2014, as part of the preparing for WNP’s 2016 Cost of Service rate application, the LDC
commissioned UtilityPULSE to conduct a telephone satisfaction of its customers. In this survey 966
customers (residential and small businesses) were contacted and 366 interviews completed
representing a response rate of 37% (providing a confidence level of 95% (+/- 5.1%). (A summary of

the survey results are included in Appendix 1A.

Details of WNP’s 2014 Customer Satisfaction results was posted on the LDC’s website

(http://mww.wellingtonnorthpower.com/downloads/WNP  UtilityPULSE Summary2014.pdf) and a

summary was included as a bill insert in electricity bills issued in September 2014 thanking customers

for sharing their opinion of their local hydro company.
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The table below provides a comprehensive summary of the results of the 2014 Customer Satisfaction

survey:
Table 1.19: 2014 Customer Satisfaction Survey - Summary
Area Score
1 Electricity bill payers who are “very or fairly” satisfied with Wellington North Power 91%
2 | Cost of electricity is reasonable when compared to other utilities 63%
3 Proactive in communicating changes and issues affecting customers 84%
4 | Deals professionally with customers’ problems 90%
5 Delivers on its service commitments to customers 89%
6 Provides consistent and reliable electricity 93%
7 | Quickly handles and restores power 90%
8 | Makes electricity safety a top priority for employees and contractors 90%
9 | Operates a cost effective electricity system 78%
10 | Overall the utility provides excellent quality services 88%

WNP reviewed the above information as a good indicator of how the company is being perceived by its
customers. The LDC recognizes that there are areas for improvement, such as improving customer
communication and engagement when planning distribution projects because WNP believes this
activity will offer consumer awareness and diminish any negative perception towards the company not
operating a cost-effective electricity system. With this in mind, WNP organized two public meetings at

public locations within the service territory in March 2015 with the objectives of:

a) Presenting WNP’s Capital Expenditure projects planned for 2015 together with proposed
investment plans for 2016 to 2020;

b) Promoting energy conservation as well as tips and energy saving advice.

Notices advertising the public meetings were placed in two local newspapers. Regrettably, there was
no attendance at either meeting. The LDC is disappointed with the response and is now exploring what

other initiatives can be used to engage customers to gather input into WNP’s capital projects.
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As part of the 2014 Customer Satisfaction survey, customers were also asked about WNP’s

effectiveness during an unplanned outage. The table below summarizes the results:

Table 1.20 2014 Customer Satisfaction Survey

— WNP’s Effectiveness during an Unplanned Outage

Area Satisfaction
Score
1 Responding to questions 72%
2 Providing a reason for the outage 71%
3 Providing an estimate when the power was restored 72%
4 Responding to the power outage 88%
5 Restoring power quickly 91%
6 Communicating updates periodically 71%
7 Posting information to the website 35%
8 Using media channels for providing updates 52%

As an embedded distributor, in “Loss of Supply” unplanned outages, the LDC is reliant upon Hydro One
to restore power upstream of the service area. WNP acknowledges this and attempts to impart latest
information that is made available by Hydro One. Where the loss of supply is on WNP’s distribution
system, the Operations team provides periodic updates to Customer Service Representatives (CSRs)

who can share information with customers.

WNP acknowledge that its current website has a limited capability, with updates having to be loaded by
a 3" party. With this in mind, in Quarter 4 2015, the LDC is migrating to a new web hosting company
and as part of the solution, the LDC will be able to post its own updates to its website — this will be real-
time information that the LDC currently posts on social media sites. With this project, it is envisaged
that this will address the poor satisfaction score of 35% received during the 2014 Satisfaction Survey

for “posting information to the website”.

In Quarter 1 of 2015, WNP began posting communication messages to customers using social media
(Facebook and Twitter). Messages include weather warnings, notice of planned outages, updates of
restoration times during unplanned outages, energy saving tips, electrical safety awareness messages,
invitations to events that WNP will be attending (e.g. Homeshows and Spring/Fall Fairs) and
notifications that bills have been mailed. This has been implemented as a result of the feedback

gathered from the 2014 Scorecard survey regarding use of media channels.
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Included in the 2014 Customer Satisfaction survey, customers were also asked about priority

investments and the table below summarizes the responses:

Table 1.21: 2014 Customer Satisfaction Survey — Priority Investments

Area Satisfaction Score
1 Investing more in the electricity grid to reduce the number of outages 65%
2 Burying overhead wires 55%
3 Developing a smart phone application 27%
4 Maintaining and upgrading equipment 78%
5 Providing sponsorships to local community causes 43%
6 Making better use of social media 31%
7 Providing more self-serve services on the website 28%
8 Educating customers about energy conservation 73%
9 Reducing the time needed to restore power 80%
10 Invest more in tree trimming 59%

WNP appreciates the feedback from its customers and with this information, has implemented or

planned the following initiatives:

a) Use of social media - in Quarter 1 of 2015, WNP began posting communication messages to
customers using social media (Facebook and Twitter). In WNP’s 2015 Communications Plan, the
LDC has recorded the messages that are shared with its customers and through what forms of
media. This is an evolving document, that throughout 2015, the LDC will update to reflect learnings.
For example, the reviewing the 2011 Census statistics for one of the LDC'’s service area, the urban
area of Mount Forest, 33% of the population is over the age of 60; therefore using the social media

as forms of communication may not be effective for all consumers.

Table 1.22: Age Demographics for Mount Forest (2011 Census data)

Age Range Population: } % of Total Population
Mount Forest, Ontario

0 to 19 years 985 21%
20 to 29 years 465 10%
30 to 39 years 440 9%
40 to 49 years 630 13%
50 to 59 years 655 14%
60 years and over 1,580 33%

Total 4,755

Median age of the population 43
% of the population aged 20 and over " 79%
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Self-service website - in March 2015, WNP launched “Customer Connect” which is an
on-line portal where customers can view their historic electricity consumption as well as
payment history. Furthermore, in Quarter 4 2015, the LDC is migrating to a new web
hosting company and as part of the solution, the LDC will be able to post its own
updates to its website — this will be real-time information that the LDC currently posts on
social media sites.
Smart-phone application — the re-launched website planned for Quarter 4 2015 will be
Smart-phone compatible.
“Tree-trimming” — in April 2013 and December 2013, the LDC’s service territory was
affected by major ice-storms causing extensive tree damage and power outages due to
“Loss of Supply”. Since 2012 to date, WNP has increased the amount of resources
committed to line-clearing and vegetation control. WNP adheres to the ESA
requirements for tree trimming using EUSA utility best practices. WNP does not perform
tree removals. Townships are natified if there is a concern with a particular tree and the
Township is involved in any decision regarding tree removal.
The planned CapEXx initiatives planned for 2015 to 2020 include projects where cables

will be buried underground as summarized below:

Table 1.23: Planned Underground Projects — 2015 to 2020

Year

Project Category OEB Invest. Category Estimated Cost

2015 Frederick Round About Pole Line Project - Modification due to 3rd party System Access s 88,500

Underground Distribution Projects - Capital System Access -

2015 Lucas Subdivision Contribution Capital Contribution -5130,000
2018 UG Rebuild - Holstein Rear-lot Conversion (partial) Underground Distribution Projects System Renewal 5 70,000
2020 Underground Projects to be named nearer date Pole Line Projects System Renewal 5 130,000

e.

Investing more to reduce the number of outages - in April 2013 and December 2013, the
LDC'’s service territory was affected by major ice-storms causing extensive tree damage
and power outages due to “Loss of Supply”. On April 12" 2013 a major ice-storm
downed 44kV hydro poles to the north of WNP’s service territory and due to the this
upstream loss of supply, the Town of Mount Forest (serviced by WNP) has a power
outage lasting nearly 18 hours and negatively impacting the manufacturing and small
business consumers as well as critical load customers in Mount Forest. The outage
further demonstrates the need for an alternate power supply to ensure critical loads
(hospital, seniors housing complex and warming station) are maintained and switching

options are available to transfer loads. As contained in this Distribution System Plan, in
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conjunction with Hydro One, WNP has proposed a solution to provide a 2™ feed to the
Town of Mount Forest to address current load capacity constraints as well as reliability
concerns — this is discussed in WNP’s Distribution System Plan in Exhibit 2 (Appendix

2A - Section 5.4.5.3.1))

In Quarter 1 of 2015, the LDC surveyed its General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW customers with the

results illustrated in the table below:
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WNP Survey - Interval Customers (General Service 1000 - 4999kW)

wu

Question Very Satisfied Fairly satisfied Fairly Dissatisfied Very Dissatisfied
1 How satisfied are you with overall service? a
Yes MNo
2a Have you experienced and power outages in last 12 months? 3 1
Yes No
2b Did you try to contact WNP about outage? 4
Telephone Fax E-Mail Social Media Letter In Person Other
2c What Method did you use to contact WNP? a 2 1
3 The following items relate to the Operations side. Does WNP Agree Disagree Undecided No Comment
i Provide consistent, reliable electricity 3 1
Delivers on its service to customers 4
i Accurate billing 4
iv Quickly handles outages 3 1
v Makes electricity safety a priority 3 1
vi Uses responsible environmental practices 3 1
vii Efficient at managing the electric system 2 2
Provides excellent quality service 4
4 The following items relate to the WNP as a company. Is WNP Agree Disagree Undecided No Comment
i Respected in the Community a
ii Maintain high standards of business ethics 3 1
A leader in promoting energy conservation 3 1
iv Keeps it promises to customers and community 2 2
v Is a socially responsible company 2 2
vi Is a trusted and trustworthy company 3 1
Is a company you would recommend 3 1
Operates a cost-effective hydro system 2 2
ix Having a local company a benefit a
One Time Two Times 3 to 5 Times 6-1Times More then 1 Times MNone
5a How many unplanned outages over last 12 months? a4
Less than 15 Minutes 16 - 3 Minutes 31-6 Minutes 1-2 Hours 3-5 Hours 6-12 hours More then 12 hours
b How long is average outage? 2 1 2 1
Telephone Fax Website Social Media Main In Person
5Sc Primary contact method during outage? a 1
6 Is WNP effective during unplanned outage? Very Effective Somewhat Effective Somewhat Ineffective  Very Ineffective No Comment
i Responding to questions 3 1
ii Providing reason for outage 3 1
Providing an estimated for power restoration 3 1
iv Responding to power outage 3 1
v Communicating updates periodically 3 1
vi Posting information on the website 1 1 2
vii Using media channels for providing updates 1 3
7 Priori ng investments and activities? Very High Priority High Priority Low Priority Very Low Priority No Comment
i Investing more in in electricity grid 3 1
Burying overhead wires 1 1 1 1
Maintaining and upgrading equipment 2 2
iv Providing sponsorship to causes 1 1 2
v Making better use of social media 2 2
vi Providing more self-service on website 2 2
vii Educating customers about conservation 2 1 1
Reducing response time to outages 1 1 1 1
X Investing more in tree trimming 1 1 2
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WNP has five General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW customers of which four completed the survey.

From reviewing the responses, WNP has made the following observations:

a)

b)

d)

Customers are “very satisfied” with the service they receive from WNP;

When there is a power outage, General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW customers contact WNP
with their preference being by telephone. These customers have the Chief Operating
Officer cell number and contact him directly even when there are momentarily power
interruptions. This is very useful information to receive and aids WNP in decision-making —
i.e. to perform line patrols across its service area and whether to contact Ontario Grid

Control Centre (OGCC) to establish if there are upstream issues.

Efficient at managing the electric system — 50% of customer did not comment on this
question. In WNP’s opinion, there may be customer frustration with their local hydro
company not being able to resolve a power outage problem expediently because it is as a
result of an issue beyond the LDC’s service territory. During the April 2013 major ice storm,
WNP is aware that the two General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW customers operating in the
Town of Mount Forest were affected by the 18 hour power outage and the LDC had no
ability to switch load to another supply. WNP, working with Hydro One has proposed a 2™
feeder to this area which is discussed in detail in WNP’s Distribution System Plan in Exhibit
2 (Appendix 2A - Section 5.4.5.3.1).

“Keeps it promises” and “Is a socially responsible company” both had mixed results with 2

customers agreeing with these statements and 2 customers providing no comment.

“Operates a cost-effective hydro system” also provided mixed results. These customers
incur the Global Adjustment element on their electricity accounts and WNP has explained
that, although this represents a significant portion of their total bill, the LDC has not control
over this charge. All four customers respect this information yet feel frustrated with the
inability to control or predict this fluctuating electricity component. WNP has worked with all
its General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW customers to undertake CDM programs to conserve

energy and install energy demand savings devices.
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f)  “Investing more in the electricity grid” — 75% of respondents rated this as a very high
priority. As mentioned above, these intensive energy users are affected by momentary
power interruptions. WNP is aware that the two General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW
customers operating in the Town of Mount Forest were affected by the 18 hour power
outage and the LDC had no ability to switch load to another supply. WNP, working with
Hydro One has proposed a 2™ feeder to this area which is discussed in detail in WNP’s

Distribution System Plan in Exhibit 2 (Appendix 2A - Section 5.4.5.3.1).

From the responses received, WNP has adapted its operating and capital plans to address the

needs and expectations of its General Service 1,000 — 4,999 kW customers.

PAGE 66 OF 230



© 00 N O O b~ WO N P

[
R O

[N
N

Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.3 — Front Desk Support

WNP maintains front desk support allowing the customer and the utility to interact on a direct
basis. Social interaction is still one of the best ways to be in close contact with the customer.
People love being heard and they like giving feedback, which is conveniently done when paying

their electrical bill at the front counter of your local utility.

With a front desk, information is exchanged regularly with every customer interaction. Data
gathered though these interactions can then be used to improve business outcomes. In this
sense, front desk staff becomes pivotal to the business and bridges the gap between the
customer and other utility staff. WNP plans on continuing its front desk operations as a form of

customer engagement and to ensure expected customer service levels are maintained.
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.4 — Publications

All of WNP’s customers receive a physical bill in the mail each month. WNP takes advantage of
this opportunity to communicate additional information by bill inserts. Many of these messages
are coordinated with announcements from the OEB, IESO, and other agencies, and include
information about retailers, rate changes, conservation and demand management programs,

electrical safety awareness and references to our website.
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.5 —Advertisements

WNP posts notices and announcements in local newspapers For example, when customers are
affected by planned outages across a wide area (for instance on December 7" 2014, there was
planned outage by Hydro One which affected the town of Mount Forest between 2am and 5pm.

WNP published a newspaper notice advising customers of this outage.)
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.6 — Conservation and Demand Management

Conservation and Demand Management (“CDM”) work conducted by WNP includes a number
of initiatives that involves outreach to our customers. Reaching out to customers through CDM
programs helps customers to better understand their local utility, while they become more
knowledgeable about energy conservation. WNP continues to participate in a number of

community events to highlight CDM program offerings.

In addition to the above, a number of customers have express the need for extra consultation
and assistance with various CDM programs. In response to this, utility staff makes direct
contact with customers to assist them with their concerns and/or CDM program applications on
an individual basis. These efforts provide a communication channel to energy conscious
customers so that the needs and desires of these customers are better understood and
addressed.

One extremely important CDM initiative that WNP has undertaken for the past several years is
that of the Roving Energy Manager (REM) program. CHEC Association Members, including
WNP, currently share a REM across their respective distribution territories in order to make this
position as cost effective as possible. Key areas of responsibility for the REM include performing
site visits, assessing potential areas for energy savings, and providing written reports where

required.

The REM has been instrumental in assisting WNP with meeting its CDM goals and objectives,
while engaging WNP’s, commercial, and industrial customers. Under the REM program, a
mutually beneficial relationship is created whereby the needs and wants of the utilities larger
customers are satisfied through CDM offerings, while the REM becomes a significant resource
of knowledge to the utility. At the present time, WNP expects the REM program to continue into
the foreseeable future.
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.7 — Community Involvement

It is important to WNP and its Shareholders that its employees support and give back to their
community, and as such the utility participates in several community projects and events (at no
cost to ratepayers) such as:
e Christmas Lights: WNP assists with wiring, set-up and removal of Christmas lights
throughout the towns of Arthur, Holstein and Mount Forest;
e ALS Ice Bucket challenge — the utility participated in this worthy cause;

e Attendance at local community meetings and events.
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.8 — Social Services

WNP provides support through partnerships with the province’s Low-income Energy Assistance
Program (LEAP) program. This financial assistance program is designed to help low-income

customers who have difficulty making their electricity bill payments.
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Ex.1/Tab 5/Sch.9 — Other Engagement Activities

Other Customer centric engagement activities Include:

Newsletters and bill inserts;

Education — school programs promoting electrical safety in conjunction with the ESA,
Outage Notification — Planned

Website

Customer Connect — an-online portal enabling WNP customers to securely logon to their
account to access consumption and payment history

Facebook and Twitter messaging advising of power restoration times during outages as

well as promoting energy saving tips and TOU rates.
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Financial Information
Ex.1/Tab 6/Sch.1 - Historical Financial Statements
Historical Audited Financial Statements have been included in the Appendix of this Exhibit

The following attachments are presented in this next section.

* Appendix 1B Year ended 31 December, 2012
* Appendix 1C Year ended 31 December, 2012
* Appendix 1D Year ended 31 December, 2012
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Ex.1/Tab 6/Sch.2 - Reconciliation between Financial Statements and

Results Field

A detailed reconciliation between the financial results shown in WNP annual RRR filings,
Audited Financial Statements and with the regulatory financial results filed in the application is
included in Appendix 1E for the years 29012, 2013 and 2014.
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Ex.1/Tab 6/Sch.3 - Annual Report

WNP does not publish an annual report to its Shareholders. Financial statements are presented

yearly to the Shareholder at an annual Shareholder meeting.
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1 Ex.1l/Tab 6/Sch.4 - Prospectus and Recent Debt/Share Issuance Update

2  WNP does not issue debt or share nor do they publish any prospectus.

3
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Ex.1/Tab 6/Sch.5 - Other Relevant Information

The Applicant is not seeking any changes to its tax status in this application.

Existing/Proposed Accounting Orders:

The Account Standard (“AcSB”) deferred mandatory adoption of IFRS for qualifying rate
regulated entities to January 1, 2016. However, per the Board’s letter of July 17, 2013,
electricity distributors electing to remain on CGAAP were required to implement regulatory

accounting changes for depreciation expenses and capitalization policies by January 1, 2013.

WNP choose to implement the change in useful lives under CGAAP as of January 1, 2012 and
included this in WNP’s 2012 Cost of Service rate application (EB-2011-0249). This application
was approved by the Board as per Decision and Order September 20, 2012.

WNP has prepared this 2016 Cost of Service rate application under MIFRS.

Accounting Standards used in Application:

In accordance with the Board’s Filing Requirements, WNP has provided information for 2012,
2013, and 2014 Actual under CGAAP. The 2014 Actual, 2015 Bridge Year and 2016 Test Year
have been provided under MIFRS.

The only implication for WNP is the reallocation of Account 1995 Contributed Capital to Account
2240 Deferred Revenue. There were no monetary impacts or revenue requirement impact from

this change as provided in Appendix 2-Y, illustrated below.

Table 1.24: Impact of Transition to IFRS

Appendix 2-Y
Summary of Impacts to Revenue Requirement
from Transition to MIFRS

2016 2016 Difference Reasons why the revenue requirement
Revenue Requirement Component MIFRS CGAAP without| component is different under

policy changes
7,653,193 [ 7,653,193
9,155,083 9,155,083
5.404.138 5.404.138
1.119.687 1.119.657
9.623.835 9.623.835

Closing NBV 2015
Closing NBV 2016
Average NBV
‘Working Capital
Rate Base

Return on Rate Base 570,249 570,248

OM&A

Depreciation

PILs or Income Taxes
Property Taxes

Less: Revenue Offsets

1,797,368
361,570

1,797,368
361,570

14.000
150,588

14,000
150,588 |-

dalen|enlenlen| |ea] [enlen|enlenlen
dalen|ealenlen| |en| [en|en|en|en

en|ea)en|en|enlen|en|en|en|enlenlen| [ea]en|en|enlen

Insert description of additional item(s)
Total Base Revenue Requirement 5 25925995 2592598
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Materiality Threshold

Ex.1/Tab 7/Sch.1 - Materiality Threshold

The Minimum Filing Requirements state that a distributor with a distribution revenue
requirement of less than $10 million must use $50,000 as a materiality threshold. With a
proposed base revenue requirement of $2,592,599, WNP has used this amount as a materiality

threshold throughout this application.
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Corporate Governance

Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.1 - Corporate Governance Structure

WNP is incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, and is owned by the

Shareholders of the Township of Wellington North and the Township of Southgate:

Commons Shares:  Township of Wellington North 97%
Township of Southgate 3%

WNP is managed by a Board of Directors appointed by the Township of Wellington North. In
May 2015, the majority shareholder carried a motion to appoint two new directors to WNP’s
Board of Directors. Consequently, this increased the number of Board Directors from five to

seven.

The composite of the Board of Directors is:

3 Directors - representatives of the Township of Wellington North
1 Director - an employee of Wellington North Power Inc.
3 Directors - independent and affiliated to neither the Township nor the utility

This composite complies with the Affiliates Relationship Code (“ARC”) whereby at least 33% of

the directors must remain independent from the Affiliate.

Table 1.25: Corporate Governance Structure

Major
Shareholder
[Township of

Wellington

Morth)

- ,
I " - T . T N T S T . T N 1
w w .

[ " I\ - . - . .-\.
|J Director J Director U Director u Director \J Director |J Director ‘U Director
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Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.2 — Board of Directors

WNP has 3 corporate independent board members, (meaning that they are not an employee or
officer of the utility). This conforms to the Affiliate Relationship Code (“ARC”) whereby at least
one-third of its directors must remain independent from Affiliate Boards. When a Board member
is appointed, they sign an attestation acknowledging acceptance of the Code of Conduct which

speaks to conflicts of interest as well as a Confidentiality Agreement.

Open, frank and honest discussions are encouraged at all Board and Committee meetings.

The Chief Operating Officer and/or Chief Administrative Officer provides the WNP’s Board with
all the written reports, presentations, verbal and written responses to WNP’s Board enquires,
that are crucial to the success of the corporate goals and objectives. These practices enable
WNP’s Board of Directors appreciates the challenges and opportunities that confront the utility

and assist the Board in making strategic decisions.

The background of each [Utility Name] Board Member is as follows:
1) Alan Rawlins (Chair) - Appointed December 1% 2014, Director
a. WNP Board Director from January 1% 2008 to November 30" 2014
b. Attends WNP’s Finance Committee, Operations Committee and Organization,
Personnel and Market Relations Committee meetings
Retired Sales Manager and Estimating Manager
d. Lions Club member and active participant

e. An independent Director on WNP Board

2) Andrew Lennox (Vice-Chair), Appointed December 1% 2014
a. Attends WNP’s Finance Committee meetings

Mayor of the Township of Wellington North

Owner / Consultant for Greenleaf Strategy

Owner of Lennox Farms

Former Product Manager and Marketing Communications Manager

-~ 0o a0 o

Business Education and experience in management and business planning
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3) David Commissiong, Appointed April 26™ 2001

a)

b)
c)
d)

e)

Attends WNP’s Organization, Personnel and Market Relations Committee
meetings

Retired

Former VP of Marketing & Sales at Ontario Hydro

Former Brand Manager at GE Appliances

Wealth of hydro and marketing experience combined with strategic planning

and change management

4) Mike Givens, Appointed May 11" 2015

a)
b)
c)
d)

Chief Administrative Officer at Township of Wellington North

Former Treasurer at the Township of Wellington North

Former Director of Finance at the Township of Mapleton

Wealth of knowledge regarding governance and experience in the public
sector

5) Gerald Shepetunko, Appointed June 5™ 2012

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

Attends WNP’s Finance Committee, Operations Committee meetings
Retired

Former Contracts Administrator at SPAR Aerospace Ltd

Attends all local community events

Extensive procurement and contract management background

6) Daniel Yake, Appointed May 11" 2015

a)

b)
c)
d)
e)

f)

Attends WNP’s Organization, Personnel and Market Relations Committee
meetings

Wastewater Operator & Mechanic at Ontario Clean Water Agency
Municipal councillor since 1994

Former Shipping & Receiver specialist

Former press operator

Leadership and people skills
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7) Richard Bucknall, Appointed May 11" 2015

a)

b)
c)
d)

e)

Attends WNP’s Finance Committee, Operations Committee and
Organization, Personnel and Market Relations Committee meetings
CAO at Wellington North Power Inc.

Former Regulatory and Office Manager at Wellington North Power Inc.
Former Commercial Manager at RWE npower in UK

Extensive European electricity knowledge
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Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.3 — Board Mandate

WNP’s Board mandate is as per below:

1. General Accountability:

The Board's primary duty is to supervise the management of the business and affairs of
Wellington North Power Inc. (the "Company") and to protect the investment of the

Shareholders by managing the exposure to inherent risks

The Board's oversight relationship with management and accountability to
shareholder(s) is to be guided by the Company's Statement of Mission, Vision and
Values.

Directors are expected to work with their fellow Directors to fulfill the mandates of the

Board and the Committees of the Board.

2. Specific Accountabilities

Each Director is expected to be familiar with the Shareholder Agreement and By-laws of
the Company, Board Policies, the mandates of the Board and the mandates of the
Committees of the Board on which the Director serves.

Each Director will be well-informed on the business and affairs of the Company and on
the economic, regulatory and community environments in which the Company
operates.

Each Director is expected to work cooperatively with his or her fellow Directors for the
long term benefit of the Company, the shareholder(s) and to provide thoughtful and
informed counsel to management.

Each Director is at all times expected to possess and demonstrate the highest levels of
personal and professional integrity.

Each Director is expected to demonstrate his or her commitment to the Board and the
Company, through preparation for and participation in meetings of the Board and
Committees of the Board on which the Director sits, and to engage in full and frank

discussions of all matters before the Board and those Committees.
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Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.4 — Board Meetings

In 2014, the WNP Board of Directors had 11 regular meetings as well as one extra-ordinary
meeting and 2 special meetings. Extra-ordinary meetings are defined as gatherings for
potential employee interviews and/or meetings with its shareholder. Special meetings are
defined as presentations from companies or individuals on various electrical subjects or
EDA/MEARIE conferences.

Table: 1.26 — Board Meeting Schedule

Wellington North Power Inc.
Board Meeting Schedule - 2014

Tuesday, January 28, 2014
Tuesday, February 25, 2014
Tuesday, March 25, 2014
Tuesday, April 29, 2014
Tuesday, May 27, 2014
Tuesday, June 24, 2014
Tuesday, July 29, 2014
Tuesday, August 26, 2014
Tuesday, September 30, 2014

Tuesday, October 28, 2014

Tuesday, Movember 25, 2014

The overall attendance of the WNP Board Members has been exemplary, at minimum, each
Directors has attended 92% of the meetings in 2014 and 96% of the board meetings to date in
2015.
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Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.5 — Orientation and Continuing Education

WNP values best practices of corporate governance and strives to maintain and adopt policies
to promote maximum effectiveness. The Board recognizes that a Director Orientation and

Continuing Education Policy is an essential tool to that effect.

The orientation and education process includes, but not limited to, the following information:

Orientation:

e Shareholder Directive and Confidentiality Agreement;

e Board Governance Policies (including Board Roles, Board Charters and Work Plans);

e Board Structure and Contacts;

¢ Board Meeting Schedule;

¢ Board Minutes (from previous year(s));

e Operating Bylaw / Corporate Policies / Corporate Background / Organizational Chart;

e Strategic Plan / Sales & Marketing Plan;

e Current Year Budget, Directors’ & Officers’ Insurance;

e EDA publications; and

o Health & Safety Orientation (building access/security, emergency evacuation, respect in
the workplace (including Bill 168-workplace violence), privacy, accessible customer

service

Continuing Education:

The Board is responsible for ensuring Directors are provided with continuing education
opportunities. Each Director shall assess his/her development needs annually during the Board
evaluation process and inform the Chairperson of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
his/her development requirements. Education and training is then scheduled based on the

results of each assessment.
Additionally, informal training occurs by way of exposure to the following:

e Attendance at industry associated meetings such as EDA meetings and conferences.

e Education in regulatory directives and rate-setting.

PAGE 86 OF 230



0 N o o b~ WwN

Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.6 — Ethical Business Conduct

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Officers. Each Director and Officer
is required to read and sign the Code of Conduct annually. A copy of the Code of Conduct is

provided in Appendix 1E.

Potential conflicts of interest are declared and assessed at the outset of all Committee and

Board meetings.
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Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.7 — Nomination of Directors

When there is a vacancy (as a result of a resignation or a term-period expiring) a notice is
posted in the regional newspaper seeking suitable candidates to apply. The applications are
addressed to the CAO of the Township of Wellington North (the majority shareholder). It is the
duty of shareholder to interview and select suitable a candidate. The shareholder is appreciates
WNP’s Board is composed of highly qualified and respected individuals who are knowledgeable
with respect to the challenges facing them and whose commitment to the interests of the

Corporation is beyond reproach. Appointees are selected with this in mind.
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Ex.1/Tab 8/Sch.8 — Board Committees

The WNP Board Committees consist of the following:

a) Operations Committee — meets every month to review capital investment plans, CapEx

budgets versus actual, health and safety activities and CDM activities;

b) Finance Committee — meets each quarter to review WNP’s latest financials and study
the CapEx and OpEx budgets versus actuals;

c) Organization, Personnel and Market Relations Committee — meets each quarter to

review strategic and tactical plans, communication plans and discuss HR matters.

A copy of each Board Committee mandate is included in Appendix 1G of this Exhibit.
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Letters of Comment

Ex.1/Tab 9/Sch.1 - Letter of Comment

WNP confirms that it does not have any letter of comments to at the time of the filing
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Scorecard Evaluation

Ex.1/Tab 10/Sch.1 — Scorecard Performance Evaluation

Under the Renewed Regulatory Framework a distributor is expected to continuously improve its
understanding of the needs and expectations of its customers and its delivery of services.

WNP’s 2014 Scorecard can be found below. WNP is measured on four main categories:

Customer Focus - Service Quality:

Over the past five years WNP has exceeded all of the service quality measures including new
services connected on time, scheduled appointments met, telephone calls answered within 30
seconds, first contact resolution, billing accuracy and customer satisfaction. WNP attributes this
success to its open door policy to its customers. Employees answer the telephone themselves
with no automated phone system, and make personal arrangements for appointments. At the
first point of contact, whether on the phone or in one of the two offices, customers are generally
helped immediately with questions or issues.

Customer Focus — Satisfaction Survey Results:

Customer Satisfaction Survey is a new scorecard measure introduced by the Ontario Energy
Board (OEB) for the 2014 scorecard. Currently, there is no standardized definition and
therefore this measure may differ from other utilities in the Province.

In 2014, Wellington North Power Inc. engaged a third-party organization to conduct a customer
satisfaction survey. This statistical survey canvassed a number of key areas including power
guality and reliability, price, biling and payments, communications, and the overall customer
service experience.

Wellington North Power Inc. considers this satisfaction survey to be useful tool for engagement
to identify customer requirements with respect to the provision of electricity services as well as
identifying areas that may require improvement. For 2014, Wellington North Power Inc.

received a rating of “A” on its customer satisfaction survey

Operational Effectiveness:

Annual audits conducted by the Electrical Safety Authority have reported that Wellington North
Power Inc. was “C” - Compliant with Ontario Regulation 22/04 (Electrical Distribution Safety).
This has been achieved and maintained by our resilient commitment to safety coupled with the

adherence to company procedures & policies.
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Wellington North Power Inc. will continue to construct and maintain the electrical distribution

system in accordance with the safety standards set-out by the Ontario Regulation 22/04 code.

The average number of hours that power to a customer is interrupted is a measure of system
reliability or the ability of a system to perform its required function. Wellington North Power Inc.
considers the reliability of electrical service as a high priority for its customers and constantly
monitors its distribution system for signs of reliability degradation. Regularly maintenance of

equipment is required to ensure the level of reliability is kept as high as possible.

In 2014, Wellington North Power Inc. achieved 0.12 average hours of interrupted power which is
within the range of its historical performance for interrupted power and is consistent with other

measures over the five-year period between 2010 and 2014.

The average number of times that power to a customer is interrupted is also a measure of
system reliability and is also a high priority for Wellington North Power Inc. As outlined above,
the OEB also typically requires a utility to keep this measure within the rage of its historical
performance and outside factors can also greatly impact this measure.

In 2014, Wellington North Power Inc. experienced interrupted power 0.11 times, which is within
the range of its historical performance for interrupted power and consistent with other measures
over the five-year period between 2010 and 2014.

WNP is submitting its Distribution System Plan with this rate application.

Public Policy Responsiveness:

Net Cumulative Energy Savings (Percent of target achieved) - Wellington North Power Inc.’s
Energy Savings target was 4.52 GWh (4,520,000 kWh — equivalent to approximately 4% of
annual energy consumption of all Wellington North Power Inc.’s customers in Arthur, Holstein

and Mount Forest.)

At the end of 2014, the actual kW Energy Savings achieved was 3.31 GWh (3,310,671 kWh)
meaning that the utility met 73% of its set target. Although the utility did not reach its sets
target, Wellington North Power Inc. continued to forge good relationships with residential and
small businesses. This was achieved by leveraging the suite of OEB approved CDM programs

primarily designed for the residential and small commercial classes of customers.
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In 2015, a new CDM framework was mandated by the Ministry of Energy for the program period
2015 - 2020. Wellington North Power Inc. Energy Conservation Plan has been approved by the
Independent Electricity System Operator — a copy of this plan is available on Wellington North

Power Inc.’s website: http://www.wellingtonnorthpower.com

In 2014, Wellington North Power Inc. received no new micro-embedded generation

facility requests within its territory

Financial Ratios:

Wellington North Power Inc. achieved a ROE of 5.74% in 2014, which is just beyond the +/-3%

range allowed by the Ontario Energy Board (see above paragraph) — a variance of 3.38% lower

than the deemed ROE of 9.12%.

The ROE over the past four years for Wellington North Power Inc. has continued to steadily

increase each year. In 2014, Wellington North Power Inc. incurred costs that were due to

unplanned events, namely:

a) 3rd party costs incurred in conducting a Customer Satisfaction Survey in 2014;

b) Higher than forecasted annual regulatory rate application costs. (2014 Incentive Rate
Mechanism application included an Incremental Capital Module for a replacement
substation which required additional preparation time and incurred Intervenor costs);

c) Advertising, recruitment and selection process costs incurred to hire and train two new
members of staff (these are not additional employees but filing vacancy positions as a result
of two staff members leaving the company in 2014);

d) Advertising costs, 3rd party consultant costs and hiring of a "new" Manager of Operations;

e) Internal unplanned costs incurred in calculating, testing and implementing accounting (IFRS)
changes in the company's Fixed Asset Module;

f) 3rd party consultancy fees in reviewing account balances and providing staff training.
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Customer Satisfaction

Operational Effectiveness

Continuous improwvement in
productivity and cost
performance is achiewved; and
distributors deliver on system
reliability and quality
objectives.

System Reliability

Asset Management

Cost Control

Public Policy Responsiveness

Distributors deliver on
obligations mandated by

government [e.g., in legislation
and in regulatory requirements
imposed further to Ministerial
directives to the Board).

Financial Ratios

Notes:

1. These figures were generated by the Board based on the total cost benchmarking analysis conducted by Pacific Economics Group Research, LLG and based on the distributor's annual reported information.

Scorecard - Wellington North Power Inc.

MNew Residential/Small Business Services Connected
on Time

Scheduled Appointments Met On Time

Telephone Calls Answered On Time

First Contact Resolution

Billing Accuracy

Customer Satisfaction Survey Results

Level of Fublic awareness [measure to be determined]
Level of Compliance with Ontaric Regulation 22/04
Mumber of General Public Incidents
Rate per 10, 100, 1000 km of line

Sericus Elechical
Incident Index

Average Number of Hours that Power to 8 Customer is
Intemrupted
Average Number of Times that Power to 8 Customer is
Intemrupted

Distribution System Plan Implementation Progress
Efficiency Assessment

Total Cost per Customer !

Total Cost per Km of Line !

"

Met Annual Peak Demand Savings {Percent of target achieved)
MNet Cumulative Energy Savings (Percent of target achieved)

Renewsble Generation Connection Impact Assessments
Completed Cn Time

New Micro-embedded Generation Facilities Connected On Time

Liguidity: Cument Ratio (Cument Assets/Cument Liabilities)

Leverage: Total Debt {(includes short-term and long-term debt) to

Equity Ratio

Profitability: Regulatory
Return on Equity

Deemed (included in rates)
Achieved

2. The Conservation & Demand Mansgement net annusl peak demand savings include any persisting pesk demand savings from the previous years.

100.00%

95.850%
100.00%

0.000

0.00

0.04

3672
531,829

1.18

074

100.00%

o7.80%
100.00%

0.000

.22

0.40

3784
535,441

3.968%
13.07%

12

.84

5.57%
-7.58%

100.00%

85.20%
100.00%

0.000
0.44

0.15

740
535,543

18.42%
46.35%

1.01

0.84

9.12%
1.68%

3/2/2015

100.00% 100.00% = 50.00%
100.00% 100.00% K 50.00%
100.00% 100.00% = 65.00%
99.91%
99.73% = 58.00%
A
c E = c
0 O = 0
0.000 0000 o 0.000
0.14 012 gy g‘folgasctnghin
0.10 011 gy 310':5;:1;”"
‘On Target
4 4
S7TES 5785
522,175 338,552
24.88% 51.70% @ 0.33MW
65.48% 72.24% @ 4.52GWh
100.00%
50.00%
1.52 0.72
1.30 1.39
5.12% 5.12%
4.35% 5.74%
Legend: g3 up @) down oy flat

@ target met @ target not met
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. Appendix 1A — 2014 UtilityPULSE Survey
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Customer Satisfaction Survey
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UtilityPULSE

The purpose of this report is to profile the connection
between Wellington North Power and its customers.

The primary objective of the Electric Utility Customer Satisfaction
Survey is to provide information that will support discussions about
improving customer care at every level in your utility.

The UtilityPULSE Report Card® and survey analysis contained in this
report do not merely capture state of mind or perceptions about your
customers’ needs and wants - the information contained in this survey
provides actionable and measurable feedback from your customers.

This is privileged and confidential material and no part may be used

outside of Wellington North Power without written permission from
UtilityPULSE, the electric utility survey division of Simul Corporation.

All comments and questions should be addressed to:

Sid Ridgley, UtilityPULSE division, Simul Corporation
Toll free: 1-888-291-7892 or Local 905-895-7900
Email: sidridgley@utilitypulse.com or sridgley@simulcorp com

2
June 2014
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Executive summary

Rosemarie LeClair, Chair of the Ontario Energy Board, in a recent presentation (Ontario Energy
Network, April 28, 2014) said the OEB's consumer centric regulatory framework defines the utility's
obligation for planning, obligations for customer engagement and its responsibilities for monitoring and
measuring performance results.

EB-2010-0379 Report of the Board: Scorecard Approach (ROB-SA) (March 5, 2014)

Throughout this report are connections to the OEB’s Report of the Board. Where possible we have
addressed the specifics in the document and, the “spirit” of the Scorecard Approach.

We believe that the data from interviewing over 10,000 electric utility customers so far, in 2014,
supports 3 main conclusions:
1- Customers, almost universally, are concerned about the cost of electricity
~ 2- Customers are resilient and can adapt to adversity, in fact, they are very
;u tolerant when a utility goes through a very difficult situation [
I_— 3- In a utility world that is used to “pushing information out”, it has to invest in . \ \

A R : A -l 2
and hone its competencies in having 2-way interactions with customers.

UtilityPULSE -
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Reasonable costs

9,943 Ontario survey respondents were asked if they agree or disagree with the following statement
“The cost of electricity is reasonable when compared to other utilities”. 50% agree in 2014, and 62%
agreed in 2010. Satisfaction with the utility is about the same in those respective years.

We can also say that issues in the electricity industry, as a whole, show that satisfaction ratings and
other important measures are lower in 2014 than they were in 2013. A customer may be upset with
the amount that electricity costs, or what is going on in the industry, but that may not translate to being
upset with their own local utility.

Data from the 2014 survey shows that respondents who give their utilities high marks for respect,
trust, and social responsibility also give their utilities high marks for providing high quality services,
and better marks for both cost efficiency and reasonableness of costs.

The attributes which help an LDC to be seen as trusted and highly credible are: knowledge, integrity,

involvement and trust. On demonstrating Credibility and Trust, Wellington North Power has done well.
Overall, Wellington North Power 86% [Ontario 77%; National 80%].

~ EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Comparability

Your 2014 report contains data comparisons to:
- An Ontario-wide LDC benchmark

- A National LDC benchmark

- Previous year's ratings (where available)

UtilityPULSE o

JII
Il al
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- Ontario LDCs participating in the 2014 survey
- UtilityPULSE database

EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Customer Focus Electricity bill payers who are 'very
or fairly' satisfied with ...
There are 2 identified Performance Categories in the OEB Very

Report, they are Customer Satisfaction & Service Quality. Satisfied,
Performance measurements for these areas range from
‘relatively easy to attain production statistics’ to ‘harder to
define and measure qualitative items'. None-the-less this

-

Wellington North National Ontario

survey provides you with insights about how customers Power
perceive performance of the utility. Base: total respondants

EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Customer Focus - Customer Satisfaction - Satisfaction Survey Results

Customer satisfaction is one of the measures in the consumer centric regulatory framework. This rating is known
as an effectiveness rating as it represents a sum total of perceptions and expectations that a customer has

- about their utility. Those expectations go far beyond “keeping the lights on”, “billing me properly”, and “restoring
power quickly”.

UtilityPULSE s
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Wellington North Power SATISFACTION SCORES - Electricity customers’ satisfaction « Satisfaction happens

when whility core

Top 2 Boxes: 3 5 services meel or exceed

2 2 0

“vary + falrly satisfied’ ol 20 bl cusfomer's meeds,
PRE: Initial Satisfaction — ) _ A O M petaRas

Scores o Loyalty (Affinity) occurs

. when a customer makes

POST: End of Interview 92% - - an amolional connection

with their electric wulility
on a diverse range of

expeciations beyand
COMe SENVICes.

Base: fotal respondents /(<) not & paticipant of the sunsey year

Customer Affinity
Loyalty, for private industry, is a behavioural metric. Lovalty, for natural
monopolies (ike LDCs) is an atfitudinal metric,

Customer Loyalty Groups

[USTOMER
EXPERIENCE

Favorable Indifferent

Wellington North Power

2014 3% B% 56% 5%
Base: iotal respondents B

Even if customers can't defect, there is enormous value in making more of them loyal. Customers .
— after all make the company's reputation. Reputation is ultimately what customers think - nothing else.
I= To be successful and profitable, companies must take account of how they are perceived because

companies do operate in a climate of opinion.

UtilityPULSE -
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Loyal customers are more likely to see the world the way hydro management sees it. Customers feel
their interests and the hydro's are often in common. Our survey results do reveal, loyal customers
enhance the value of the utility. One example, 100% of Secure customers agree that overall
Wellington North Power ‘provides excellent quality services' versus 65% of At Risk customers.

The Loyalty Factor

W Welington North Power @ National @ Ontarlo

5%

At risk

56%

Indifferent
5T%

Stil favorable

Secure

Base: total respondents

=
l o Utilities benefit from a trusted relationship with their empowered Customers. Higher levels of trust are
the halimarks of Secure customers. When people interact, either face-to-face, by telephone or on-
line, if people do not trust each other, the interaction is not going to be efficient. Trust improves the

7

UﬁlityPUl.SE : T June2014
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speed at which the interaction can be accomplished. At Risk customers recall experiencing more
outages and more billing problems than Secure customers. What makes matters worse is, At Risk

customers are about 2X more likely to contact the utility to deal with it.

None-the-less problems will happen.

The Killer B's (Blackouts and Bills)

It is inevitable that there will be blackouts/power outages - the key is how a utility anticipates outages

and more importantly, how it deals with them.
between what a utility might call a “billing problem” and what a customer
defines as a “billing problem™. Though both viewpoints are valid, employees

It should also be noted that there is a disconnect

need to be trained to answer those which cause the most concern with BILLS &
BLACKOUTS
customers,
Percentage of Respondents indicating that they had a
Blackout or Outage problem in the last 12 months
r:z;':lg;‘:zr National Ontario
2014 25% 47% 49%
2013
— 41% 35% ‘
2012 44% 46% \
[e—xo] \
I— ! kb 5% 3% y
2010 D 45% 41%
Base: total respondents / (-) not @ participant of the survey year
*ye 8
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Percentage of Respondents indicating that they had a
Billing problem in the last 12 months

Wellington North

National Ontario
Power
2014 16% 16% 25%
2013 - 8% 10%
2012 . 12% 13%
2011 . 10% 16%
2010 - 10% 12%
Base: total respondents / (-) not a participart of the survey year

What method
did you use to
contact your
electric utility
when you had
a problem? Telepho ) Twitter

88% 0%

Base: data from
the full 2014
database

=
I ; I Customers may prefer a particular communication channel today (i.e., 88% telephone), however, that
T— does not mean the customer who prefers the telephone will not want, or eventually want another
channel for communications. In addition, there could be variances in preferences based on the type of
issue or transaction.

UtilityPULSE 0
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EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Customer Focus — Customer Satisfaction — Billing Accuracy

There is a difference between what a customer believes is a biling problem versus a technical or
production level measurement. Without the benefit of production level numbers, 88% of respondents
‘agree strongly + somewhat' that the ulility has "accurate billing”. The Ontario benchmark rating is
TT%.

EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Customer Focus = Customer Satisfaction - First Contact Resolution

This performance measure is not defined in the EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA March 5, 2014 document,
First contact resolution is an outcome base measurement which is affected by: type of problem,
competency levels of staff, empowerment levels of staff, and organization culture to name a few.

Your 2014 survey gives you the following information from respondents:
1- Satisfaction with the contact expernence

2- A problem solved rating
3- A Customer Experience Performance rating (CEPr)

UtilityPULSE 0

PAGE 107 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.

EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents

Filed: October 2015

Satisfaction with the contact experience

When there are problems, how they are handled can validate or invalidate a customer's perception
about the ulility's competency in handling the problem, and in running the operation. Here is how
Customers, who contacted your LOC, rated their one-on-one transaction,

Customer Service

P EWellingtan North Power H National B Ontario

91%

it B2
e 75%

The time i took tocontact The time it took someone The helpfidness of the staff The knowledge of the staff The level of coutesyof the The quality of information
SN todeal with your probiesn  who dealt with you who dealt with you daffwho dealwithyoy  provided by the staff whe

il with you

; Base total respondénts who cortached the ulilty
EI I Customer expectations are on the rise and continue to change. Customers expect their utility to have
|_ customer care practices and services that are in-line with any other organization that is important to
— their everyday life. Setting realistic expectations and consistently delivering to those expectations are

keys to higher levels of Customer satisfaction. The setting of customer expectations is tough, but the
harder part is to deliver consistency.

UtilityPULSE
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UtilityF

Overall satisfaction with most recent experience

Wellington North

Power Mational

Top 2 Boxes: 'very + fairly satisfied’ 82% T5%

Ontario

Base tofal respondents who contached the Lty

Problem solved rating

Respondents who said that they contacted the utility were also asked “Do you
consider the problem solved or not solved?” 63% of your LDC's respondents said
the problem was solved. The Ontario benchmark rating is 61%.

Customer Experience Performance rating (CEPr)
What do customers anticipate contact will be with their local utility when they have
a problem? Will it be adversarial, or cooperative, or pleasant, etc. High numbers

in CEPr indicate that a large majority of customers would agree that their next
contact will be a good or positive one.

Customer Experience Performance rating (CEPr)
Wellington North

Power National
CEPr: all respondents B7% BZ%

Base: tolal respancents

Cntario

79%

12
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EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Customer Focus — Service Quality

The three performance measures identified are all time based measures. They are: NMew Residential
Senvices Connected on Time, Scheduled Appointments Met en Time; and, Telephone Calls Answered
on Time. These are good examples of efficiency measures. In addition to time, there are other
dimensions of Service Quality that Customers value.

Customer Service Quality

Wellington

Top 2 boxes, ‘strongly + somewhat agree' North Power Mational Ontario
Deals professionally with customers' problems 0% 82% 8%
ch;-;c;::;In communicating changes and issues affecting 84% 74% 739,
Quickly deals with Issues that affect customers 87% T9% T4%
Customer-focused and treats customers as if they're valued 86% T4% 72%
Is a company that is "easy to do business with' BE% To% 75%
Cost of electricity is reasonable when compared to other 83% B0% 5%,
utilities

- Provides good value for money 75% E7% B3%

I — Delivers on its service commitments to customers 89% B4% B2%
— Base- total respondents with an opnicn

UtilityPULSE
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EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA: Operational Effectiveness

With the exception of the Public Safety measure, which is yet to be defined, perfformance measures

would typically take the form of a monitoring and measuring (guantitative) rating. Though custormers

may not have the benefit of numbers, they do have a perception.

Management Operations

Wellington

Top 2 boxes, ‘strongly + somewhat agree' North Power National

Provides consistent, reliable electricity 23% BS% B5%
Quickly handles outages and restores power 90% BE% B3%
::'::ler:;ﬁmcﬂy safety a top priority for employees and a0, B9, B7%
Operates a cost effective electricity system T8% 9% B2%
Overall the utility provides excellent quality services Ba% B3% BO%

Base: 1otal respondents with an oprsen

UtilityPULSE Report Card

The purpose of the UtilityPULSE Report Card is to provide your utility with a snapshot of performance

— it represents the sum total of respondents’ ratings on & categories of attributes that research has

-
I — I shown are important to customers in influencing satisfaction and affinity levels with their utility.

UtilityPULSE
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Wellington North Power's UtilityPULSE Report Card”

Performance

CATEGORY Wellington North Power  National Ontario
1 Customer Care A B+ B
Price and Value B+ B C+
Customer Service A B+ B
2 | company Image A B+ B+
Company Leadarship A B+ B+
Corporate Stewardship A A B+
3 Management Operations A A A
Operational Effectiveness A A B+
Power Quality and Reliability A+ ) A
OVERALL A B+ B+
- Base total responcents
s A
UtilityPULSE s
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Corporate Image

Reputation, image, brand have to be aclively managed. Positive impressions beget positive perceptions.
Marketing communication includes positioning the utility in a way that makes customers want your utility
and its services. Every utility has a brand, why not have the brand you want?

Attributes strongly linked to a hydro utility's image
Wellington

North Power National COntario
Is a respected company in the community B9% 81% TE%
A leader in promoting energy conservation Bd% TE% TT%
Keeps its promises to customers and the community B7% 9% TE%
Is a socially responsible company B3% 78% 7%
Is a trusted and trustworthy company 8% 82% 7%
Adapts well to changes in customer expectations 20% % 68%
Is ‘easy to do business with’ BB% T9% T5%
Provides good value for your money 5% 67% 653%
Ovarall the utility provides excellent quality services B8% 83% 80%
Operates a cost effective hydro-electric system 8% 69% 62%

Base 1otal respondents wilh an operesn

Customers, as human beings, are both rational and emotional. The rational side of the customer holds

-
the LDC accountable for doing its job (as contracted), thereby fulfilling the customer’s basic needs. The

—
—— emotional side of the customer is about fulfilling expectations. Meeting rational needs — at best — gets the

custormer to a neutral state and at worst creates dissatisfaction. Emotional needs, when met, assuming
base level rational needs are met, can move a customer from neutral to higher levels of satisfaction. The

Uﬁli t}fP ULSE June 2[:112
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industry is obsessed with rational concermns about customer behaviour, but the real motivation for
customer behaviour is emotional, not rational.

What do customers think about electricity costs?

Ask a utility customer — anywhere in the province of Ontario = what do they think about electricity,
there is a very high probability they will say electricity costs are too high or too expensive. For
customers who said that they had a billing problem in the last 12 months, and stated that the problem
was “high bills" or “high rates or charges”, there was very litle variability between customers who
could be called Secure, Favourable, Indifferent or At Risk. There was also very little variability
between age groupings or iNCome groupings.

Qur survey database shows 50% more customers in 2014 citing complaints with “high bills™ or “high
rates or charges” than in 2010. There is a growing concern over electricity costs, especially as it

relates to its portion of a household budget. This means the industry needs to monitor “ability to pay”.

Is paying for electricity a worry or major problem ...

Wellington North

Power Mational Ontario
Not really a worry 53% 63% 59%
|
Sometimes | worry 29% 20% 25%
I
I — ] Often it is a major problem 8% % 1%
Depends 2% 3% 2%
Base: botal respondents

UtilityPULSE
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Supplemental Insights
Recognizing that customers’ interests and needs continue to shift, we have provided data and
insights, on a number of subjects such as e-care, e-billing, conservation and more.

Electric Industry Knowledge & SMART Grid
Beyond knowing that they need electricity to maintain their day to day activities, does the average
person feel that they are actually knowledgeable about the electric utility industry?

Knowledge level about the electric utility industry

Extremely knowledgeable 2%
Very knowledgeable 1%
Moderately knowledgeabl 47%
Slightly knowledgeable 26%
Not very knowledgeable 14%
Don't know 1%
- Base. total responderts from the Ontano Benchmark survey
I = Two-thirds (60%) of those polled in the Ontario Benchmark survey considered themselves moderately

to extremely knowledgeable about the electric industry.

UtilityPULSE
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While itis evident that the SMART grid is still not a much talked about concept, only 34% have a basic
or good understanding of what it is, oddly enough, 60% still think that it is important to pursue SMART
grid implementation. It is also clear that the majority of respondents are very + somewhat supportive
of the utility working with neighbouring utilities on SMART grid initiatives.

Level of knowledge about the SMART Grid

I have a fairly good understanding of what it is and how it might benefit homes and businesses 9%
I have a basic understanding of what it is and how it might work 25%
I've heard of the term, but don't know much about it 36%
I have not heard of the term 29%
Don't know 1%

Base: total respondents from the Ontano Benchmark survey
Efforts to reduce energy consumption
Do customers believe there is a real pay-off for trying to reduce their energy consumption? Does this
impact overall efforts to reduce consumption? Respondents were asked “How active have you been in

- trying to reduce your electricity consumption?” (2ase total responcerts from the Ontario Benchmark survey)

I * 94% feel they are “very + somewhat active” in trying to reduce electricity consumption, and
==mn
= * 81% of those do believe their efforts have resulted in reduced energy consumption, of which

* 44% estimate that they were able to offset an energy consumption reduction of more than 10%, and
* 72% believe that these efforts translated to savings on their electricity bills.

UtilityPULSE

19
June 2014

PAGE 116 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.

EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents

Filed: October 2015

Level of Activity in trying to reduce electricity consumption Active efforts have reduced energy consumption

Very active 52% [ »
0

; 81%
Somewhat active 42%
Meither proactive or inactive O3

16%
Mot active 2%
Mot very active 3% Base iotal respandents from the Ortana Benchmiak sunaey whi hing been
@ciive in nang [0 reduce energy Consumpion

Base iotal respondents from the Ortarnio Benchimarnk Surey

Efforts to conserve have translated into savings on your
electricity bill

Estimate of percentage reduction in consumption

e - =N 2%
3I=5% 10%
6-8% 4%
24%
9-10 % 15%
| I Mﬂl‘e 'han ‘m 44% ?;;tﬁﬁi;?ﬁm&;ﬂ&tﬁmém Benchmark suneey whidsa active
e | '
l — . Don't know 21%

Elage- lotal respandents Trem (he Orfarc Berchmank sufvey whose acthe eficrs
have feduced cordumption
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Energy Conservation & Efficiency

Energy efficiency can be broken down into two areas: betfer use of energy through improved
energy-efficient technologies; and energy saving through changes in customer awareness and
behaviour.

3

Efforts to conserve energy

Ontaric LDCs - F‘g;:':? Don't Know
Install energy-efficient light bulbs or lighting equipment 19% 9% 0% 1%
Install timers on lights or equipment 12% 50% 35% 2%
Shift use of electricity to lower cost periods 2% 17% 58% 3%
Install window blinds or awnings 12% 27% &60% 2%
Install a programmable thermostat 13% 25% 50% 2%
Have an energy expert conduct an energy audit % 1% 16% 4%
Remaoving old refrigerator or freezer for free 14% 44" 38% A%
Join the peaksaverPLUS™ program 15% 49% 21% 16%
— Replacing fumace with a high efficlency model 12% 1[/% 52% 4%
I = Replacing air-conditioner with a high efficiency model 14% 8% 44% 4%
Use a coupon to purchase qualified energy saving products 35% 3% 2% 5%

Base: An aggregate of respondants from 2014 particapating LUGS
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|
=
=

E-care and E-billing
Technology — specifically the internet—has allowed people

access to far more information than ever before and the
ability to do more than ever before.

Over the past six months have you accessed your local

utility website? 29 OA) 7 0 %

e [PVES NO

2014 participating
LOCs

Do you have access to the internet?

Yes

87%

No

13%

Base. An aggregate of respondents from 2014 paticipating LDCs.

N

Frequency of accessing the utility's website

W Ontario LDCs

(about once per
week)

ar
30% T
— —1

Several times a week 3-4timesamonth 2-3timesamonth  once permonth

per month

less often than once

Base: An aggregate of respondents from 2014 panticipating LOCs
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Likelihood of using the internet for future customer care needs for things such as:

Top 2 Boxes: ‘very + somewhat likely Ontario LDCs
Setting up a new account 31%
Arranging a move 38%
Accessing Information about your bill 55%
Accessing information about your electricity usage 54%
Accessing energy saving tips and advice 45%
A{:cessing information about Time Of Use rates 519
Maintaining infermatien about your account or preferences 51%
Paying your bill through the wtility's website 32%
Getting information about power outages 47%
Arranging for service 40%

Bage. An apgregate of respondents from 2014 patopabing LDCs

As society becomes increasingly more familiar with technology it will become a more popular
medium for giving and receiving information. One could also say, demographics will also put

=
more pressure on the technology channels. Unfortunately, custormers adopt technology on their
I — | own timetable. This causes the utility to continue to improve existing channels while building the

technological channels wanted by some today, but by the year 2020, demanded by many. Will
your utility be ready?
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Communications Strategy

Although technology is changing the way customers engage with all types of service providers
including their electric utility, our survey indicates that personal interaction is still highly regarded. The

complex nature of the electric industry and customers' need to be kept informed mean that some

level of personal interaction will remain an important component of overall channel strategy. The need

for clarity and transparency is also driven by regulators protecting consumer interests more than ever

before.

Importance of modes of communication for communicating Wellington North Power’s operational plans

Telephone

_ 82%

‘ BILL
E—J
Bill insert

76%

Newspaper

70%

AR

' MWSUTTEN ’i

Company
newsletter

61%

Utility’s
website

Townhall
meetings

Visit the
office

Social
media

UtilityPULSE
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Priority Investments

While regulation and reliability are top concerns in the utility industry, aging infrastructure is now a
top operational concern. Customers agree with industry insiders that infrastructure renewal is a high
priority. This year, respondents were asked for their views about prioritizing investments.

Priority investments - top 2 boxes

@ Wellington North Power @ Ontario LDCs

83%
74% 78%

65% IR
55%50%

80%79%
59%58%
43%43%

38%
27%31% 31%30%  28%

Investing more Burying Developinga Maintaining
inthe

Providing  Making better Providing more

Educating Reducing the  Investing more
overhead wires  smartphone  and upgrading sporsorshipsto  use of sacial

self serve stomers  time needed to intree
electrcity grid application oquipment lecal media services onthe about energy  restore power timeming
toreduce the community website consenvaton
number of aues
outages

Base: An aggregate of respondents from 2014 participating LDCs / total respondents from local utity

~
-_ Some findings shown above correlate with some of the suggestions made by respondents on things the
I Pl utility could do to improve. Percentage of comments received from all Ontario respondents were:
14% improve reliability (10% in 2010)

- 11% better maintenance (3% in 2010)
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- 10% better communication (7% in 2010)

Outage Management

Whether an outage is planned or unplanned, the reality is that it is going to cause disruption and

inconvenience under best case scenario and under worst case scenarios there could be safety and
financial consequences.

However, one thing for certain, no matter what the scenario happens to be, customers are expecting
their utility to keep them continually updated on the status of cutages. Most importantly, and top
priority, is to know the estimated restoration time. They also want to know the cause of the outage
because they do not want to be a frequent outage customer.

Number of unplanned outages last 12 months

 Ontario LDCs
32

- Base: An

— ] aporegate of
respondents from

e 2014 participating

I LOCs

one time two times 3-5times 6- 10 times 11+ none don't know
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UtilityPULSE - 27

When an unplanned outage occurs, how long, on average, is the outage?
3%

% 4 .
10% 4 Ii More
21% p, Ii 'G'::éZ than 12

1% 4 . Ii 3t05
10% 1to2 || hours
18% “ 31-60 ) hours
‘ 15_30—“ minutes
II stk H""“""’ 24% Don't know
 minutes

Base: An aggregate of respondents from 2014 particpating LDCs

How a utility chooses to handle, manage and communicate with customers during an outage situation
does affect customers’ satisfaction with their utility. Customers want timely, accurate and relevant
information about an outage and customers expect a utility to use various communication channels to
ensure their message is getting out there. This means not only obtaining information via the call
centre and IVR but customers have increasing expectations for proactive two-way communication
through social media, utility websites and modern communication devices (e.g. tablets, smartphones)
and apps.
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Inability to provide the above information accurately and in a timely manner will result in customer
complaints, increased call volumes to your call centres, create unwanted public and media attention,
and negatively impact customer satisfaction.

Utility's effectiveness during an unplanned outage

Top 2 Boxes: ‘very + somewhat effective’ Ontario LDCs Wellington North Power
Responding to questions 61% 72%
Providing a reason for the outage 61% 1%
Providing an estimate when power will be restored 60% 72%
Responding to the power outage 81% 88%
Restoring power quickly 85% 91%
Communicating updates periodically 64% 71%
Posting information to the website 35% 35%
Using media channels for providing updates 53% 52%

Base An aggregate of responderts from 2014 partiapating LOCs / 1o%al respondents from local Wity

On December 20, 2013, a severe ice storm struck the central and eastern portions of Canada and the
northeastern United States. The storm's devastation caused major damage to utility distribution lines,
towers, transformers, poles and entire substations and resulted in large scale outages and blackouts
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for long periods of time. The data suggests that customers are both tolerant and understanding when

major outages take place,
Percentage of Respondents who contacted thelr utility

DOidf you have a about the ice storm power cutage

It
pod wr_ 1&;{:::9& 58% Wellington North Power
ice storm in
December Hu 279, Yes 13%
20137 J No Ba%
Base: total I‘,

responcents Base: total responcents affected by the e storm

Wellington North Power
Length of outage (during lce Storm 2013)

12-18 hours
or ¥ -%

day

19-24 hours 1to1.5 16to2 More than 2
or 1 day days days days

Lessthan ., , ... 4*+hoursor

2 hours Y day

1% 20% 19% 2% B% 10% 4% 1%

Hase: total respondents affecied by the e storm

Using social media and multi-channel communication modes still appear to be the excepfion when it
comes to customers contacting their utilities. Results from this year's survey indicate that the
telephone is still the most used and the preferred method of contact. Overall, 87% of all Ontario
respondents affected by the ice storm who informed their local utility they were experiencing a power
outage did so via telephone; 92% of Wellington Morth Power respondents used the telephone, 3% the
utility's website and 3% did not recall.
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X3

29
June 2014

PAGE 126 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.

EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents

Filed: October 2015

In your view, what is an acceptable period of [ +None (the power shouldn't be going out) l 2%

time to go without electricity in sifuations like

the ice storm? [ +Less than 2 hours l 3%
| -2-4nours | 16%
| <4+ hours or 172 day | 15%
[ +12-18 hours or 112 day to 314 day | %
[ +19-24 hours or 1 day | 14%
[ “1to15days | 6%
[ +1.6to 2days l 8%

Base total respondents aflected by the ice storm [ ~More than 2 days l -

Safety and Reliability
Wellington North respondents were asked if they agree that “Wellington North Power's current strategy for
ensuring public safety and reliability in delivering electricity meets your expectations...”

thbkribibititatd dy

tititd

” it ¥ * FETE 87% of respondents agreed Safetymatters
’ * ’ * * * * * * * (‘agree strongly + agree
* * * ‘ * * * * * * * somewhat’) with the statement.

(R R 0L
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Customer Centric Engagement Index (CCEI)

The EB-2010-0379 ROB-SA report includes the following:
“better engage with their customers to better understand and
respond to their needs..." Conducting surveys (like this
one), holding town hall meetings, focus groups, etc. are
examples of engaging your customers. We call this an
activity based definition of engagement. Asking 100 people

to complete a survey is an engagement activity. This survey & Customer
R g 2 i Engagement
also provides you with an emotional look at engagement. 5 \

The CCEIl index is a gauge of the amount of goodwill that

has been generated. High numbers in CCEI suggests that there is a high level of goodwill amongst
your customers — this is important for two reasons. First when something goes awry for the utility,
goodwill helps the utility to be resilient. Second, goodwill encourages active participation in requests
to participate in engagement activities or program offerings from the utility.

Utility Customer Centric Engagement Index (CCEI)

o Welhr;’got::rNonh National Ontario
= CCEl 84% 79% 76%
Base total responderts
*yge 31
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Good research leads to good ideas — good ideas lead to smart strategies. Reasons to conduct
Customer Satisfaction Surveys include:

demonstrating commitment to listen to the customer

improve operations

reduce cost of operations

improve quality of service

improve customer satisfaction and loyalty

learn about areas that need to be improved, and many more.

It bears repeating that the reality is that policies and processes don't create higher levels of
satisfaction, it is the people behind them that do. As we all know there is a huge difference in the
delivery of a service or in the process of resolving a problem between a committed and enthusiastic
employee and one that is going through the motions. Pay attention to your Corporate culture
especially as it relates to Customer Satisfaction. There will always be a corporate culture, why not
develop and maintain the culture that you want?

In a world of chaos and confusion what will a customer do? Find someone to help. In the electricity
industry, the vast majority of customers turn to, and rely on, their local utility. Knowing that
customers will turn to their electric utility requires utilities to really know their customers. Not easy
when customer expectations continue to shift.

The shift is on. 15 years ago a utility could think about their customers in terms of usage, now they
have to think about them in terms of personas (i.e., customer type). Currently, customer

_—
II il |

segmentation, for most utilities, consists of a number of “personas”. While this may be adequate
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today, in order to achieve high customer participation in programs and to optimize business
processes there will be a need for granular targeting of communications.

Most utilities are quite comfortable “pushing” out communications in a one-way world. However, the
shift is on because the new channels are 2-way; even without the new channels customers are
expecting 2-way dialogue. The impact on a utility’s marketing-communications is significant.

Value is what a customer perceives they get in exchange for what they give up. The real challenge is
educating customers on the value they receive. In the absence of a value proposition the primary
thing people will talk about is cost.

We recommend having meaningful two-way dialogue with employees (and others) to leverage the
results from your 2014 customer satisfaction survey derived from speaking with 366 Wellington North
Power customers [April 24 - June 23, 2014]. The electric utility business has demanding customers
with high expectations.

UtilityPULSE

— Sid Ridgley
I — Simul/UtilityPULSE

Email: sidridgley@utilitypulse.com or sridgley@simulcorp.com
June, 2014
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Simul , UtilityPULSE,
)1 Ve

Good things happen when work places work. You'll receive both strategic and pragmatic guidance about how to
improve Customer satisfaction & Employee engagement with leaders that lead and a front-line that is inspired. We
provide: training, consulting, surveys, diagnostic tools and keynotes. The electric utility industry is a market segment
that we specialize in, We've done work for the Ontario Electrical League, the Ontario Energy Network, and both large
and small utilities. For sixteen years we have been talking to 1000's of utility customers in Ontario and across Canada
and we have expertise that is beneficial to every utility.

Culture, Leadership & Performance — Focus Groups, Surveys, Polls, Customer Service Excellence
Organizational Develop Diagnostics
. Diagnostics ie. Change Readiness, Leadership . <
Leadership development Ectieness. Msososrial Conpaeacies Service Excellence Leadership
Strategic Planning Surveys & Polis Telephone Skills
) Customer Satisfaction and Loyalty
Teambuilding Benchmarking Surveys Customer Care
_—— s ati Dealing with
Organizational Culture Transformation Organization Culture Surveys Difficutt Customers

Benefit from our expertise in Customer Satisfaction, Leadership development, Strategy development or review, and
Front-line & Top-line driven-change. We're experts in helping you assess and then transform your organization's
culture to one where achieving goals while creating higher levels of customer satisfaction is important. Call us when
creating an organization where more employees satisfy more customers more often, is important.

Your personal contact is:
Sid Ridgley, CSP, MBA
Phone: (905) 895-7900 Fax: (905) 895-7970 E-mail: sidridgley@utilitypulse.com or sridgley@simulcorp.com
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Wellington North Power Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wellington North Power Inc., which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2012, and the statement of operations,
statement of retained earnings and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such
Internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Wellington North Power Inc. as at December 31, 2012 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.

PAGE 134 OF 230



N

Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinfon, we draw attention to Note 19 to the financial statements, which
explains that the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been amended
for a correction of an error from those on which we originally reported on April 26, 2013.

gbo Canade. LP

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Orangeville, Ontario
April 26, 2013, except as to Note 6, 7, 15 and 19 which are as of June 19, 2013
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Balance Sheet

-2

December 315t 2012 2011
{Restated)
{Mola 17)
Assets
Current
Cash % - % 290532
Accounts receivable (Mate 15) 2,380,135 2,032,645
Inventory 85,382 00,053
Payments in lisu of income taxes recoverable 12,510 57653
Prepaid expenses 59,441 70,081
2,537 468 2,550,864
Capital assets (Nate 2) 5.540.248 4,825,185
Other assets (Note 3) 2,145 2,145
Regulatory assets (Nole 4) 223,178 1,025,344
Future income taxes (Mole 13) 240,000 247,000
$ B543636 5 5650538
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current
Bank indebledness (Maba 5) $ 101,892 5 -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,085,627 2,081,458
Current portion of notes payvable (Note 6) 61,865 58,185
Current portian of customer deposits 25,000 25,000
2,284,384 2,185,653
Notes payable (Note &) 2,030,612 2052477
Other liabilities (Mote 7) 157,369 115,663
Customer deposits 242,912 288,157
Regulatory liabilities (Nate 4) 1,089,472 1,314,874
Post-employment benefits (Note 4) 124,921 112,351
5.929.670 6,057,175
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (Note 8) 1,634,404 1,634 404
Retained eamings (Page 4) 479,562 858,958
2,613,966 2,693,363
i | $ 8543636 5 8650538
A /
{;:" & Diracior s Directar

/

Tha actompanying notes an an integral part of Tess finarcial statemants
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Statement of Retained Earnings

For the year ¢nded Decembaer 31 2012 2011
(Rastated)
(Mote 17)
Retained earnings, beginning of the year L1 958059 % 1.011.128
Prior period adjustment (Note 17) - 28,020
Retained earnings, as restated 958,050 1,049,148
Met incomae (loss) for the year 20,603 (90,189)
R__aiainad ranarnlnasJ and of the year 5 G708 562 5 958,958

Tha accompanying notes are an infiogral part of these Anancial siloments.

[,
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For the year ended December 31

Wellington North Power Inc.
Statement of Operations

2012 2011

Service revenue

Cost of power

Distribution services

Other operating revenue

Operating expenses

Operations and maintenance 586,654 530,456
Biling and collections 350,586 378,729
Administration and general 659,195 B48.001
Amaortization 621,934 A0T 242
Interest expanse 133,650 123,852
Property laxes 14,806 12,204

2,377,825 2,097 484

Met income (loss) before payments in lieu of income taxes 20,603 {135,708)

Recovery in lisu of income taxes (Note 13)

Net income IIW!I for the year

$ 9393450 § 8072028

9,393,450 8,872 828

2,255,551 1.820.021

142,877 141,754

2,398,428 1.961.775

(45,520)

$ 20,603 5 (90.188)

Thiy pecompanying nolos an an inegral part of thesa fisancial statesants
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Wellington Morth Power Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2012 2011

Cash provided by (used in)

Qperating activities

Met income (loss) for the year 5 20603 §  (90,189)
Items. naot invehving cagh
Amortization of capilal assets 400,579 478,215
Increase in post-employment benefits 12,570 9,029
Loss (gain) on disposal of capital assels 2,237 .
435,988 387 755
Changas in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts recelvable (347 ,490) {145,573)
Inventory 14,571 =
Prepaid expenses 10,640 (64,725)
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities 14,169 (68,051)
Payments im lleu of income taxes receivable or payable 45,143 {12,086)
173,022 107,320
Change in customer deposits [13.245) (54,430)
188,777 52 &80
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assels (562,905) {576.,440)
Met change in regulatory assels and liabilifies 16,502 (89,261}
Met change in fulure income takes 7,000 (17,000)
Met change in other labilities 41,706 115,663
{497 B97) (537,038)

Financing activities
Reduction in capital lease obligation

Repayment of long term debt (59,185) {133,313)
Proceads from long term debt - 323,847
Capital contributions recaived 4,691 -
(54,504) 190,534

Decrease in cash during the year (302,424) {293,614)
Cash, beginning of the year 280,532 584,146
Cash {bank Indab‘ladmuh and of the year $ (101,882) 5 290532

Tha sccompanying notes aro an integral pan of thoss sancinl statemenis.
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business Wellingten North Power Inc. (the "company”) was incorporated
under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) on May 26, 2000
and is engaged in the distribution of electricity and associated
business activities. The company is licensed by the Ontaric
Energy Board (OEB) to supply eleclricity to customers as
described in the Transitional Distribution License and thereafter by
the Distribution License issued to the company by the OEB.
Additionally there are requirements imposed on the company by
various codes referred fo in the License and by the Electricity Act
and the Ontario Energy Board Act. The company Is limited to
operate within their Licensed Territory as defined in the
Distribution License.

Basis of Presentation The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles for electrical utilities in Ontario as required
by the Ontario Energy Board under the autherity of Sections 57,
70(2) and 78 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, and reflect
the policies as set forth in the "Accounting Precedures Handbook
for Utilities in Ontario”. All principles employed are in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian generally accepled accounting principles requires
management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabllities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from management’s best estimates as additional information
becomes available in the future. Estimates are primarily related to
the determination of an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Regulation and Rate Setting The company is required to follow regulations as set by the OEB.
The OEB approves and sets rates for the distribution of electricity,
ensures distribution companies fulfill their obligations to connect
and service customers, and has the authority to provide rate
protection for certain electricity customers.

The OEB sets rates on an annual basis with rates becoming
effective on May 1st through April 30th of the following year. The
regulation and monitoring of Ontario’s Energy Sector is completed
by the OEB through application of codes, rules and guidelines, the
licensing of market participants, assisting firms with the
management of regulatory requirements, monitoring and enforcing
compliance and adjudication,
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Assots Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is provided for

on a straight-line basis using the following rates:

Buildings 15-80 years
Distribution stations 20-55 years
Distribution lines 45-65 years
Distribution transformers 40 years
Distribution meters 5-30 years
Distribution services 40-60 years
Other capital assets 5-10 years

During the year, the company elected to account for capital assets
based on a depreciation study commissioned by the Ontario
Energy Board to assist distributors In their eventual transition to
IFRS. Depreciation rates were adjusted to be in line with the new
depreciation expense and capitalization policies.

Regulatory Assets

(Liabilities) Regulatory assets (liabilities) represent costs (receipts) that have
been deferred according to OEB regulatory guidelines.
Reguiatory assets (liabilities) are reflected on the balance sheet
until the manner and timing of disposition is determined by the
OEB.

Effective January 1, 2009, the company adopted amended
standards. The new standards require the recognition of future
income tax assels and liabilities in accordance with Handbook
Section 3465 as well as a separate regulatory asset or liability
balance for the amount of future income taxes expected lo be
included In future rates and recovered from or paid to customers,
and retain existing requirements to disclose the effect of rate
requlation.

Customer Deposits Customer deposits are cash collections from customers to
guarantee the payment of energy bilis, The customer deposits
liability includes interest credited to customers' deposit accounts,
with the debit charged to interest expense. Deposits expected to
be refunded to customers within the next fiscal year are classified
as a current lability.

Employee Future Benefits Employee future benefits other than pension provided by the
company includes life insurance. This plan provides benefits to
employees when they are no longer providing active service.

Employee future benefits expense is recognized in the period in
which employees render services on an accrued basis. The
accrued benefit obligations and current service cosls are
calculated using the projected benefit method prorated on service
and based on assumptions that reflect management's best
estimates.

PAGE 141 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

N

Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Pension Plan The company provides a pension plan for its full-ime employees
through Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
(OMERS). OMERS is a multi-employer, contributory, defined
benefit pension plan. Both participating employers and employees
are required to make plan contributions based on participating
employees' contributery earnings. The company recognizes the
expense related 1o this plan as contributions are made.

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized in the financial statements on the accrual
basis when the energy is supplied to the users, whether billed or
unbilled,

Payments in Lieu of

Income Taxes Under the Electricity Act, the company Is required to make
Payments in Lleu of Corporate Taxes (PILs) to the Ontario
Electricity Financial Corporation. These payments are caiculated
in accordance with the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Taxation
Act, 2007 (Ontario) as modified by regulations made under the
Electricity Act and related regulations. This effectively results in
the company paying taxes similar to what would be impcsed
under the Federal and Ontario Tax Acts.

In computing its income for PlLs purposes, the company
recognizes regulatory assets and liabilities representing deferral of
costs and revenues that are anticipated to be recovered through
future tax rate Increases to be approved by the OEB.

The company follows the liability method of accounting for income
taxes. Under this method, future Income tax liabllities and assets
are recognized for the estimated income tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis.
Future income tax liabilities and assets are measured using
substantively enacted tax rates.

10

PAGE 142 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

N

Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments On initial recognition, all financial instruments that meet the
definition of a financial asset or financial liability are recorded at
fair value, unless fair value cannot be reliably determined.
Subsequent measurement depends on whether the financial
instrument has been classified as "held-for-trading”, "available-for-
sale”, "held-to-maturity”, “loans and receivables” or "other financial
liabilities". The company has elected the following balance sheet
classifications with respect to its financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Cash and other assets are classified as "held-for-trading™ and are
measured at fair value,

Accounts receivabie are classified as "loans and receivables” and
are measured at amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is
considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent measurements
are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method, The carrying amounts of accounls receivable
approximates their fair value due to their relatively short periods to
maturity.

Bank indebtedness and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
are classified as "cther financial liabilities® and are initially
measured at fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, The
carrying amount of these instruments approximates their fair value
due to their relatively short periods to maturity.

Customer deposits and other liabilities are classified as “other
financial liabilities® and are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cos! using
the effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value because of the short maturity of the current
portion, and the discounted long-term portion approximates the
carrying value, taking into account interest accrued on the
outstanding balance.

Notes payable are ciassified as “other financia! liabflities” and are
Initially measured at fair value. Subsequent measurements are
recorded at amortized cost, based on an initial fair value as
determined at the time using quoted market price for similar debt
instruments. The carrying amount of notes payable approximates
fair value,

11
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December 31, 2012

Wellington North Power Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcies (continued)

MNow Accounting

Pronouncements Recant accounting pronouncaments thal have been issued bul
are not yel effective, and have a poteniial implication for the
company, ara as follows:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

On February 13, 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board
(AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be
reguired o adopt International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFR3) in place of Canadian GAAP for interim and annual
reporting purpases for fiscal years baginning on or afler January 1,
2011, A limited number of conwerged or IFRS-based standards will
be incorporated into Canadian GAAP, with the remaining
standards to be adopted al the change over data.

On Sepltember 10, 2010, the AcSB granted an optional cne year
defarral for IFRS adoption for entities sublect to rate regulation.
This decision came In light of the uncerainty created by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in regard to the
rate-regulated projact which is assessing the potential recognition
of regulatory assets and regulatory liablities wnder IFRS,
Subsequently, the Canadian Securities Administrators announced
that entities subject to rate regulation may defer the adoption of
IFRS for up o cne year, consisient with the one year deferral
granted by the AcSEB,

I March 2012 and February 2013, the AcSE decided 1o extend
the deferral of the mandatory IFRS changeover date for rate
regulated entities. The changeover date is now January 1, 2015
and the company has decided to defer adoption of IFRS to 2015,

Given the continued uncerainty around the timing, scope and
evanlual adoption of a rate-regulated accounting (RRA) standard
under IFRS and the potential material impact of RRA on the
company's financial statements, the company has decided (o elect
the oplional deferral of its adoplion of IFRS. Accordingly, the
company will continue io prepare its financial statements in
accordance with Canadian GAAF agegunting standards in Part V
of the CICA Handbook.

Az a result of these developments related to RRA under IFRS and
the uncerainty regarding the impact of IFRS on the OEB
alectricity distribution rates application process, the company
cannol reasonably quantify the full impact that adopting IFRS
would have on its future financial position and results of
operations.

Tha company will continuea 1o actively manitor LASE developments
wilh raspact to RRA and non-RRA IFRS developments and their
potential impacts.

12
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December 31, 2012

Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

2.

Capital Assals

2012 2011

{Restated)

{Mote 18)

Accumulated Accumulated

Cost  Amortization Cost  Amortization

Land $ 50,459 % - % 45809 S -
Buildings 501,443 197,826 444 880 186,962
Distribution stations 1,019,423 652,976 1,008,858 638,316
Distribution Enes - overhead 4,815,212 2,488,777 4,608,805 2,477,710
Digtribution Enes - underground 628,438 299,588 606,173 280,933
Distribution transformers 1,270,608 420,529 1,182 942 408,312
Distribution maters 915,887 252,009 712,463 398,033
Distribution services 568,415 420,715 547 566 424,585
Other capital assets 2,597,307 1,764,306 2,305,070 1,472,674

Contributions and grants (395,348) {63,488) (390,658) (46,402)
Construclion work in progress 11,727 - - -
m&s.m $ 6443330 S 11076308 & 6251123

Mat book value § 5,540,248 § 4.825185

As at December 31, 2012, the net book value of stranded meters related to the deployment of
amarl mebers amounts to $0 (2011 - $201,233). In the absence of rate ragulation, capital
assets would have been 50 lower as at December 31, 2012 (2011 - $201,233).

As at December 31, 2012, work in progress - equipment of $11,727 was not being amortized
as it was not yet in use.

3. Other Assets
2012 2011
2,145.28 preferred payment shares of Utilismart Corporation & 2145 § 2,145
The carrying value of these shares approximates their fair value,
13
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2012
4. Regulatory Assets (Liabilities)
2012 2011
Regulatory assels
Retall cost variance accounts 5 - % 128130
Other deferred cosis 43,338 58, 357
Smar meters and stranded meters 180,437 838,857
Special purpose charge variance = o
$ 223775 § 1025344
Regulatory llabllities
Retail settlement variance accounts $  (210,516) § (488,435)
Retail cost vardance accounts (30,034) -
Low voltage variance (40,445) {157,520)
Regulalory assets recovery account (568,463) {420,678)
Special purpose charge variance (14) (1,243)
Fulure income faxes —_(240,000) {247,000)
i !1|I_]I!-'B I?ZE 5 51 314 S?di
{a) Smart Meters and Stranded Meters:
Smart melers
The smarl meler regulatory assel account relates to the Province of Ontario’s decision to
install smart meters throughout Onfarie by 2010. During 2006 the QEB developed
recommendations on smart melers with regard to cost recovery during the phase-in period of
this equipment. The OEB stated that given the increased need for electricity and the
impartance of consarvation, specific funding for smart maters could be included in the 2008
rates for all Local Distibution Companies (LDC's). Variance accounts were established to
track revenues collecled with respect to smart meters and associaled costs of the initatives.
The majority of the installation of all smart meters within its service territory was completed in
2010. The OEB approved the request to add a rate rider of $2.50 ($1.00 prior to May 1, 2011)
per customer par manth to fund Smart Meter activities until April 30, 2012,
On September 20, 2012 the company obtained approval from the OEB for the final disposition
and recovery of costs related to the smart meter deployment, offset by smart meters funding
adder (SMFA) revenues collected fram May 1, 2008 to April 30, 2012, As a direct result of this
approval the following occumred:
Smarl meters with a cost of $1,001.198 nel of accumulaled amorization of $149,763 as at
December 31, 2011 were transferred from regulatory assets to capital assets.
Smart meters customer revenues which had been deferred from May 1, 2006 1o April 30, 2012
aof $281,316 were transferred from regulatory assels and recognized as sendce revenue for
the year ended Decembear 31, 2012,
14
2
3
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

4. Regulatory Assets (Liabilities) (continued)

Smart meter operating expenses which had been deferred from May 1, 2006 to April 30, 2012
of $105,542 were transferred from regulatory assets and were recognized as expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2012.

Smart meter amortization expenses which had been deferred from May 1, 2006 to December
31, 2011 of $148,763 were transferred from regulatory assets and recognized as amortization
expense for the year ended December 31, 2012,

Stranded melers

On September 20, 2012 the company obtained approved from the OEB to continue to use the
established smart meter regulatory asset account to track the remaining cost of the stranded
meters related to the deployment of smart meters which were formerly Included in capital
assets (Note 2). As a direct result of this approval the following has cccurred:

Stranded meters with a cost of $510,743 net of accumulated amortization of $309,510 were
transferred from capital assets to regulatory assets. In the absence of rate regulation, these
stranded meters would have previously been expensed.

(b) Regulatory Assets Recovery Account

The regulatory assets recovery account (RARA) consists of balances of regulatory assets or
regulatory liabilities approved for disposition by the OEB through rate riders. The RARA is
subject to carrying charges following the OEB prescribed methodology and related rates.

In 2010, the OEB approved the disposition of net reguiatory liabilities of $706,974 over the
four-year pericd ending April 30, 2014,

In 2012, the OEB approved the dispositions of net regulatory liabilities of $366,676 over a two
year period ending April 30, 2014.

(c) Future Income Taxes

This regulatory liability account relates to the expected future electricity distribution rate
reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the recognition of future tax assets.

The company accounts for the differences between its financial statement carrying value and
tax basis of assets and Habilities following the liability methed in accordance with CICA
Handbook Section 3465.

(d) Retail Settlement Variance Accounts and Low Voltage Variance

These accounts are comprised of the variances between amounts charged by the company to
customers, based on regulated rates, and the corresponding cost of non-competitive
electricity service incurred by the company after May 1, 2002. The settiement variances relate
primarily to service charges, non-competitive electricity charges, imported power charges and
the global adjustment, Accordingly, the company has deferred the variances between the
costs incurred and the related recoveries in accordance with the criteria set out in the
accounting principles prescribed by the OEB in the AP Handbook.

15
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Motes to Financial Statements

Decamber 31, 2012

4. Regulatory Assets (Liabilities) (continuad)
{e) Retail Cost Variance Accounis

These accounts are comprised of the billing, collection and administrative expenses related to
the maintenance of retailer customer accounts offsel by recoveries approved by the QEB to
date,

5. Bank indebtedness

The company has an available operating line of credit, 1o a maximumn amount of $500.000, at
bank prime rate. The balance ulilized at December 31, 2012 was $MNIL (2011 - $MIL). Tha
following has been provided as security: a General Security Agreement representing a first
charge on all assels and undertaking and an assignment of liability insurance to cover the
letter of credit described in Note 10.

Under the terms of tha operating line, the company must satisfy certain restrictive covenants
such as maintaining a mindmum interest coverage ratio and a maxdimum total interest bearing
debt to capitalization ratio.
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Wellington North Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2012

Notes Payable
2012 2011

Township of Wellington North, promissory note, interest only
at 4.41%, payable quarterly in arrears $ 985015 § 985015

Infrastructure Ontario, loan payable, interest at 4.42%,
payable in monthly instalments, due 2028, secured by a

General Security Agreement 1,107,462 1,166,657

2,092,477 2,151,672

Less amounts due within one year 61,865 59,195

2,030,612 2,002,477

On June 3, 2013, the Coundil of the Township of Wellington North passed a resolution to defer
all future principal payments on the existing promissory note and that interest will continue to be
payable at 4.41%.

Under the terms of the Infrastructure Ontario loan, the company must satisfy certain restrictive
covenants such as maintaining @ minimum debt service coverage ratio, a minimum current
ratio, and a maximum debt to capital ratio. The company was in compliance with the minimum
current ratio covenant as at December 31, 2012.

Included on the Statement of Operations is interest on long-term debt of $98,347 (2011 -
$104,508). Principal payments scheduled to be paid on long-term debt for the next five years
and thereafter are as follows:

2013 $ 61,865
2014 64,655
2015 67,571
2016 70,619
2017 and thereafter 1,827,767

17
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7. Other Liabilities

In support of the Ontario Government mandate to promote Conservation and Demand
Management (C&DM) Initiatives from January 1, 2011 1o December 31, 2015, the Ontario
Power Authority (OPA) provides funding through the Program Administration Budget (PAB) to
all electricity distribution companies. This funding is provided twice a year (January and July)
for the duration of the program and is reported as other liabilities (non-current) on the financial
statements, The OPA requires an annual reconciliation between the funds received and
disbursements by the electricity distribution companies. It is expected that all balances will be
settled with the OPA at the conclusion of the program in 2015. The 2010 reconciliation and
settiement with the OPA did not occur until 2013, and Wellington North Power Inc. believes
this delay in the settlement process will aiso occur for the 2011 ~ 2015 programs,

8. Share Capital

Authorized Unfimited Common shares
Unlimited Special shares, issuable in series
Issued 2012 2011
1.557 Common shares $ 1,634404 $ 1634404

9. Public Liability Insurance

The company is a member of the Municipal Electrical Association Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange. The Municipal Electrical Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange is a pooling
of the public liability insurance risks of the municipal utilities in Ontario, All members of the
pool are subject to assessment for losses experienced by the pool for the years in which they
were members on a pro rata basis, based on the total of their respective service revenues. It
is anticipated that should such an assessment occur it would be funded over a period of up to
five years. No assessments have been made with respect to 2012,

18
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10. Related Party Transactions
The Township of Wellington North is the majority sharehoider of the utility.

Wellington North Power Inc. provides water and sewage billing and collection services to its
customers in the Town of Mount Forest and the Village of Arthur within the Township of
Wellington North, as well as supplying streetlighting energy and streetlighting maintenance
services to the Town of Mount Forest and the Village of Arthur within the Township of
Wellington North,

The amount charged to the Township of Wellington North for water and sewer billing services
for the year was $82,675 (2011 - $82,086).

These transactions are In the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange
value (the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which
approximates the arm’s length equivaient for sales of services.

In addition to the promissory notes payabie described in Note 6, the utility has an amount of
$744,924 (2011 - $696,461) payable to the Township of Wellington North included in accounts
payable.

The utility has an amount of $13,428 (2011 - $9,531) receivable from the Township of
Wellington North included in accounts receivable.

The company pald $31,501 (2011 - $14,636) in fees to the Cornerstone Hydro Electric
Concepts Association Inc. (CHEC).

11. Contractual Obligations

The company has a letter of credit of $558,879 issued to the Independent Electricity System
Operator, No amounts have been drawn as at December 31, 2012.

12. Statement of Cash Flows

N

2012 2011
Interest pald i 98,347 § 104|508
Payments (recoveries) in lieu of taxes $ ‘45|533p (33,434)
19
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December 31, 2012

13. Payments in Lieu of Income Taxes

The provision for payments in lieu of income taxes differs from the result which would be
obtained by applying the combined Canadian Federal and Provincial Statutory income tax
rates 1o income before income taxes. This difference results from the following items:

2012 2011
Income (loss) before payments in lieu of income taxes $ 20,603 $ (135,709)
Statutory income tax rate 15.50 % 15.50 %
Expected income tax expense (recovery) 3,193 (21,035)
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Permanent differences 1,948 1.401
Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization (5,339) (40,151)
Loss carried forward 198 12,995
Other tax adjustiments - 1.270
Payment (recovery) in lieu of income tax expense $ - $  (45.520)

At December 31, 2011 the company eslimated a recovery in lieu of income taxes of 45,520 as
a result of losses carried back to 2009 and 2010. Subsequent to year end, the company
determined that the full amount was not refunded due to corporate minimum tax leaving a
balance recoverable of $12,510.

Corporate minimum tax paid may be carried forward and credited against corporate income
tax payable in a subsequent year. However, given the uncertainty of realizing this tax credit,
the company anticipates that the balance recoverable will be expensed in 2013,

As at December 31, 2012, the company had non-capital losses of approximately $80,000
which are available to reduce taxable income in future years. If unused this loss will expire as
follows:

2031 $80,000
——

As at December 31, 2012, the company also has recorded a future income tax asset and
cerresponding regulatory liability of $240,000. Prior to January 1, 2009, Section 3465 of the
CICA Handbock did not require rate regulated enterprises to recognize future income taxes if
future Income taxes were expected to be included in the approved rate charged to customers
in the future and were expected to be recovered from future customers.
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14. Post-Employment Benefits

(a) The company makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS). OMERS is a multi-employer plan, therefore any pension plan surpiuses or
deficits are a joint responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees.
As a result, the company does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus
or deficit. The last avallable report for the OMERS plan was December 31, 2012, At that
time the plan reported a $9.9 billion actuarial deficit (2011 - $7.3 billion actuarial deficit),
based on actuarial liabilities of $69.1 billion (2011 - $64.5 billion) and actuarial assets of
$59.2 billion (2011 - $57.2 billion). Ongoing adequacy of the current contribution rates will
need to be monitored and the recent severe decline in the financial markets may lead to
increased future funding requirements. The plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies
the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the
length of service and rates of pay. The amount contributed to OMERS for 2012 was
$82,816 (2011 - $60,033).

(b) The company also pays the life insurance premiums for retired employees until ceath.
An actuarial valuation Is completed on a triennial basis. The foliowing post-employment
benefit obligation was estimated by the company using the actuarial valuation dated
December 31, 2012:

2012 2011
Obligation at January 1 $ 1123518% 103322
Current service cost 2,632 2,506
Benefit payments (1,655) (3,238)
Interest on benefits 8,090 7,812
Past service cost 3,503 1,848
Obligation at December 31 $ 124|921 $ 112I351

The significant assumptions adopted in estimating the company's accrued benefit obligation
are as follows:

Discount Rate 3.85%

Withdrawal Rate 2%
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15. Capital Management
The company’s objectives when managing its capital are to:
. maintain a financial position suitable for supporting the company's operations and

growth strategies;
. provide an adequate retumn to its shareholder;
. comply with covenants related to its credit facilities; and

. align its capital structure for regulated activities with debt to equity structure
recommended by the OEB, which is 60% debt and 40% equity.

The company defines capital as the aggregate of shareholders' equity and notes payable.
This definition has remained unchanged from December 31, 2010. As at December 31, 2012,
shareholders’ equity amounts to $2,613,966 (2011 - $2,593,363) and notes payable amounts
to $2,092,477 (2011 - $2,151,672). The company’s capital structure as at December 31, 2012
Is 44% debt and 56% equity (2011 - 45% debt and 55% equity). There have been no changes
in the company’s overall capital management strategy during the year.

The company has externally imposed capital requirements in the form of credit facility
agreements that contain various covenants. The company’s credit facility limits the debt to
capitalization ratio to 60%, requires that they maintain a debl service coverage ratio of at least
11to 1 and a minimum current ratio of 1.1 to 1. As at December 31, 2012, the debt to
capitalization ratio was 30.77% (2011 - 32.95%), the debt service coverage was 1.34 10 1
(2011 - 1.09 to 1) and the current ratio was 1.11 to 1 (2011 - 1.18 1o 1). The company was in
compliance with the current ratio as at December 31, 2012,

16. Financial Instrument Risk Management

The following is a discussion of risks and related mitigation strategies that have been
identified by the company for financial instruments. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks,
nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed.

The company’s activities provide for a variety of financial risks, particularly credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments are exposed to credit risk due to the risk of a counter-party defaulting on
its obligations. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value
of its financial assets. The company's objective is to maximize credit collection and minimize
bad debt expense. Credit risk is managed by monitoring and limiting exposure to credit risk on
a continuous basis. The company carries credit risk insurance to mitigate payment default.
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16. Financial Instrument Risk Management (continued)

The credit risk associated with accounts receivable s the collection of amounts due from
customers, The majority of the company’s customers are residential customers. The
company has procedures in place to ensure timely follow up on overdue amounts and to
ensure additional credit is not extended to customers with certain arrears. The company
collects security deposits from customers in accordance with directions provided by the OEB.
As at December 31, 2012, the company held security deposits in the amount of $267,912
(2011 - $281,157). The company alsc has a customer credit insurance policy in place to
mitigate this risk.

The carrying amount of accounts recelvable is reduced through the use of an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the financial condition of counter-parties and by applying to total
accounts receivable a percentage based on past experience. The amount of the related
impairment loss is recognized in the statement of operations. Subsequent recoveries of
receivables previously provisioned are credited to the statement of operations.

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is as follows:

2012 2011
Accounts receivable outstanding for:
Not more than 30 days $ 2,352,554 8 2024309
More than 30 days 43,474 19.274
Total accounts receivable 2,396,028 2,043,583
Aliowance for doubtful accounts (15,893) (10,938)
Total accounts receivable, net i 2,380,135 $ 2032645

At December 31, 2012, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to
any class of financial assets or counterparties.

Liquidity Risk

The following liquidity risks are associated with financial instruments: accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are due within one year; and noles payable (Nole 6). The company's
objective is to ensure that it has access to sufficient funds to meet cash flow commitments
related to financial instruments, Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring cash balances and
having access to credit facilities (Note 5).

Interest Rate Risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on its notes payable and bank indebtedness.
The company’s objective is to minimize net interest expense. Interest rate risk is managed by
entering into long-term fixed-rate debt.
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17. Prior Period Adjustment

Due to the implementation of a new asset management system management determined that
the comparative balances of accumulated amortization required adjustment. These amounts
have been corrected by restating opening retained eamings and accumulated amortization.
Opening retained earnings for the year ended December 31, 2011 has been increased by
$38.020 and accumulated amortization has been decreased by the same amount.

18. Changes in Presentation of Comparative Financial Statements

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's financial
statements presentation,

19. Correction of an Error

Subsequent to the issue of the company's December 31, 2012 financial statements
management determined that:

(i) A waiver from Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation had not been received as of
the reporting date. A waiver was subsequently received.

(ii) Certain OPA Funding, to be returned to the OPA in 2016 or 2017 had been misclassified
as current. Accordingly $157,369 was reclassified to other liabilities.

(fii) On June 3, 2013, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Wellington North
passed a resolution to defer all future $100,000 principal payments on the existing promissory
note which has a current balance of $885,016. Accordingly, $100,000 was reclassified from
current portion o notes payable.

After these reclassifying adjustments were made, management determined that the company
was now in compliance with the restrictive covenants,
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KPMG LLP Telsphone (516 747-8800
115 King Stroet South Fax 519 747-8830
20d Floor Intermet www.kpmg.ca

Waterco ON N2J 543

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Shareholder of Wellington North Power Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wellington North Power Inc., which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2013, the statements of eamings and retained
earnings and cash fiows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, we consider internal contrel relevant to the entity'’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PG LLP o 5 CandBan erwted behiity saryieshg ot & manter fem of the KPAMAG
st of dependors member frra stilated werh KIS Intormator Coopantee
{"XPME intaeratonal ). 8 Swas en
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Opinion
In cur opinion, the financial statements present fairy, in all material respects, the financial position of

Wellington Norh Power Inc. as at Decamber 31, 2013, and its results of operations and its cash
flovws for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepled accounting principles,

Comparative Information

The financial statements of Wellington North Power Inc. as at and for the year ended December 31,
2042 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
staterments on June 18, 2013,

Lis 442
,.--""’HFH_F'_._-—

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

April 23, 2014
Waterloo, Canada
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.
Balance Sheet
Decernber 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012
2013 2012
Assets
Current assels:
Cash § 913,339 .
Accounts receivable 2,781,489 2,380,135
Inventary az.221 85382
Payments in eu of income taxes recoverable - 12,510
Prepaid expenses 58 398 58 441
3,835,427 2,537 468
Property, plant and equipment (note 2) 5,818,357 5,540 248
Other assets 2,145 2,145
Regulatory assets (nofe 3) 112,753 223,775
Future income taxes 310,000 240,000
$ 10,078,682 8,543,635
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Bank indebledness 5 - 101,892
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities 2,326,406 2,005,627
Income taxes payable 6,580 -
Current portion of customer deposils - 25,000
Current portion of notes payable (note 4) 184,267 61.865
Regulatory liabilities (mote 3) 765444 1,089.472
3,282 607 3,373,855
Motes payable (note 4) 3,481,765 2030612
Other labilitios 127,349 157,369
Customer deposils 234 755 242 912
Post employment benefits (note 5) 139,323 124,821
3,983,153 2,555,814
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital (note &) 1,634 404 1,634,404
Petained earnings 1,178,388 979,562
2812792 2)613,966
% 10078682 8,543.636
See accompanying notes to financial statemeants,
Director ﬁl—‘/» “ M Director
I e
1
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Statement of Eamnings and Retained Eamings

Year ended Decamber 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012

2013 2012
Service revenue 5 11,381,869 § 0,393450
Cost of power {11,381,869) {9,393 450)
Distribution services 2,429,752 2,255,551
Other operating revenue 114,282 142 877
2,544,054 2,398,428
Expensaes:
Operations and maintenance 587,974 588,654
Billing and collections 343,220 358,586
Administration and general 510,048 659,195
Amortization 457,735 621,934
Interest 111,391 133,850
Property taxes 15,770 14,806
2,326,138 2377825
Eamings before income taxes 217,916 20,603
Income taxes (note B) 19,080
Met eamings 198,826 20,603
Retained earings, beginning of year 479,562 958,958
Fetained sarnings, end of year § 1,178,388 5 979.562

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended Decembar 31, 2013, with comparative information for 2012
2013 2012
Cash pravided by (used n):
Operations:
Met earnings 198,826 5 20,603
Items not invalving cash:
Amortization of capital assets 457 735 400,578
Increasze in post-employment benefits 14,402 12,570
Loss on disposal of capital assets - 2,237
670,963 435,989
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Acoounts receivable (401,334) (347 450)
Inventory 3,181 14,571
Prepaid expenses 1,043 10,640
Aceounts payable and accrued liabilities 230,779 14,169
Payments in lieu of income taxes recoverable or
payable 19,080 45,143
Custamer depasits (33,157} (13,245)
(180,418) (276,212)
450,545 158,777
Financing:
Repayment of long term debt (71,684) {59,185)
Capital contributions receiwed = 4,691
Proceeds from new debt 1,845,240 -
1,573,556 (54.504)
Imvesting:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (735,844) (562,905)
Met change in regulatory assets and abilities (283,006) 16,502
Future income taxes - 7.000
Met changs in other abilkies {30,0:20) 41.706
(1,048,870) {497 697}
Increase (decrease) in cash 1,015,231 (352,424)
Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year (101,892) 290,532
Cash (bank indebledness), end of year 913,329 $ (101,892)
Supplemental cash flow information:
Payments in heu of corporate income taxes paid
{refunded) - 5 (45,533)
Interest on long-term debt 56,400 08,347
See accampanying notes to financial statements.
3
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2013

Nature of operations:

Wellington North Power Inc. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act
(Ontario) on May 26, 2000 and is engaged in the distribution of electricity and associated business
activities. The Company is licensed by the Ontario Energy Board ("OEB") to supply electricity to
customers as described in the Transitional Distribution License and thereafter by the Distribution
License issued to the company by the OEB. Additionally there are requirements imposed on the
Company by various codes referred to in the License and by the Electricity Act and the Ontario
Energy Board Act. The Company is limited to operate within their Licensed Territory as defined in the
Distribution License.

1. Significant accounting policies:
(a) Basis of presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles as described in Part V of the CPA Canada Handbook and
on the basis of accounting principles for electrical utilities in Ontario as required by Ontario
Energy Board ("OEB") under the authority of Section 52, 70(2) and (78) of the Ontario
Energy Board Act, 1998, and reflect the policies as set forth in the "Accounting Procedures
Handbook for Electric Distribution Utilities” ("APH").

(b) Financial instruments:
() Initial measurement:

The financial instruments are classified in one of five categories: held-for-trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or other
financial liabilities. All financial instruments, including derivatives, are measured on
the balance sheet at fair value except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost,
Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial
classification, as follows: held-for-trading financial assets are measured at fair value
and changes in fair value are recognized in net earnings; available-for-sale financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other
comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time
the amounts would be recorded in net earnings,
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies:
(b) Financial instruments:
(i) Initial measurement (continued).

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP”), the
Company has undertaken the following:

« Cash is classified as “assets held-for-trading” and is measured at fair value.

« Marketable securities as “available-for-sale™ are measured at fair value.

« Accounts receivable are classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured
at amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair
value.

« Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt are classified as "other
financial liabilities" and are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method,

Comprehensive income:

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income for the period plus other revenues,
expenses, gains, and losses that are excluded from net income but recognized as
changes in equity (net assets). The Company includes the unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale financial assets as comprehensive income.

(c) Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
inciude the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment; provisions for impairment of
trade accounts receivable; future income taxes, and assets and obligations related to
employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies:
(d) Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and market value, where cost is generally
determined on the average cost basis and market value determined at net realizable value,

(e) Employee future benefits:

The Company provides post-employment health, dental and life insurance benefits to
certain of its retired employeas as a defined benefit plan.

The Company accrues its obligations under the defined benefit plan as the employees
render the senices necessary to eam the benefits, The defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year is determined based on the most recent actuarial valuation report prepared
for accounting purpases. The measurement date of the defined benefit obligation coincides
with the Company’s fiscal year-end, The date of the most recent actuarial valuation of the
pension plan prepared for accounting purpose was January 1, 2011,

At year end the Company recognizes, in the balance sheet, the defined benefit obligation.
The cost of the plan for the year is recognized in income. Past service costs arising from
plan amendrments are immediately recognized into income at the date of the amendment.

Remeasurements and other items comprise the aggregate of the actuarial gains and
losses; the past service costs; and the gains and losses arising from seftlements and
curailments and are recognized in income at the time of the remeasurement.

() Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated amoriization.
Amartization is provided wsing the straight-line method and following annual rates:

EBuildings 15-60 years
Distribution stations 20-55 years
Distribution lines 45-65 years
Distribution transformers 40 years
Distribution meters 5-30 years
Distribution services 40-50 years
Other capital assets 5-10 years
&
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year anded December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies:

(g} Pension pian;

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontaric Municipal
Emplayees Retrement System ("OMERS"). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan,
which operates as the Ontario Municipal Employees Refirement Fund (the "Fund’) and
provides pensions for employees of Ontario municipaliies, local boards, public utilities, and
schoo! boards. The Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed
by equal contributions from participating employers and employees, and by the investment
earnings of the Fund,

(h) Rewvenue recognition:

Revenue i recognized in the financial statements on the accrual basis when the energy is
supplied to the users, whether billed or unbilled,

(i) Regulatory accounts and rate setting:

Regulatory assets represent costs that have been deferred because they will be recovered
in future rates. Regulatory assets recognized at December 31, 2012 are disclosed in note
3. If recovery through future rates was no longer considered probable, the amounts weuld
be charged to the results of operations in the pericd that the assessment was made,

On April 13, 2012, the Company filed an application with the OEB seeking approval of a
revenue requirement and related rates for the rate years 2012 to 2016. On September 20,
2012, the OEB approved a base revenue requirement amount of $2,366,300, along with the
Company's tariff of rates and charges reflecting the Board's decision. The approved base
revenue requirement will allow the Company to recover all distribution expenses, payments
in lieu of income taxes ("PILs") requirements, and will aliow the Company to earn a return
on deemed equity of 9.12%, For regulatory purposes, deemed equily is equal to 6.2% of
the defined rate base of assets. In addition, the OEBE ordered a reduction of rates for the
disposition of net regulatary liabilities in the amount of $386 676 over a two year period.
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Significant accounting policies:

(i) Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes:

The Company provides for PILs relating to its regulated business using the taxes payable
method as permitted by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada Handbook
Book ("CPA Canada") Part V - Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the OEB.

The Company is generally exempt from tax under the Income Tax Act (Canada), if not less
than 90% of its capital is owned by the Township of Centre Wellingten and not more than
10% of its income is derived from activities carried on outside the municipal boundaries of
the Township. A corporation exempt under the Income Tax Act (Canada) is also generally
exempt from tax under the Corporations Tax Act.

The Company is a municipal electric utility (MEU) for purposes of the PlLs regime
contained in the Electricity Act, 1998. This Act provides that a MEU that is exempt from tax
under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act is required to make, for
each taxation year, a payment in lieu of taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corperation in an amount approximating the tax that it would be liable to pay if it were not
exempt from tax.

The OEB's Electricity Distribution Rate Handbook provides for the recovery of PILs through
annual distribution rate adjustments as permitted by the OEB.

The PILs regime came into effect on October 1, 2001, at which time the Company was
deemed to have commenced a new taxation year for purpose of determining its liability for
PlLs. Accordingly, the Company was deemed to have disposed of its assets at their then
fair market value and to have reacquired such assets at that same amount.

The Company provides for PILs using the asset and liability method. Under this method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized, to the extent such are determined likely to
be realized, for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the date of
enactment or substantive enactment.
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

2.

Property, plant and equipment:

2013 2012
Accumulated Net bock Net book
Cost amortization value value
Land $ 61,227 -8 61,227 $ 50,459
Buildings 504,893 209,633 295,260 303617
Distribution stations 1,069,031 668,266 400,765 366,447
Distribution lines - overhead 4,982,657 2,536,973 2,445,684 2,316,435
Distribution lines -
underground 633,699 309,613 324,086 328,849
Distribution transformers 1,347,072 428,734 918,338 850,077
Distribution meters 882,740 291,063 591,677 663,798
Distribution services 602,770 416,928 185,842 147,701
Other capital assets 2,920,268 2,010,402 909,866 833,001
Contributions and grants (394,564) (64,001) (330,563) (331,863)
12,609,793 6,807,611 5,802,182 5,628,521
Construction work in progress 16,175 - 16,175 11,727
$ 12625668 $ 6807611 $ 5818357 $ 5540248
Regulatory assets (liabilities):
2013 2012
Other deferred costs $ 54,857 $ 43,338
Smart meters and stranded meters 57,896 180,437
Regulatory assets $ 112,753 $ 223,775
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.
MNotes to Financial Statements (continued)
Year ended December 31, 2013
3. Regulatory asscts (liabilities):
2013 2012
Retail settlemeant variance accounts % (278,272) 4 (210,516)
Retail cost variance accounts (13.,948) (30,034)
Low voltage variance (3,624) (40,445)
Regulatory assets recovery account (161,588) (968,453)
Special purpose charge vanance (14) {14}
Future income taxes (310,000 (240,000)
Regulatory [@bilities $ [T65,444) % (1,080.472)
4. MNotes payable:
2013 2012
Township of Wellington Morth, promissony note,
interest only at 4.41%, payable quarterly in
arrears L1 985,015 § 985,015
Infrastructure Ontario, loan payable, interest at
4.42%, payable in monthly instalments, due 2028,
secured by a General Securty Agreement 2681018 1,107 462
3666033 2,082 477
Less current porticn of leng-term debt 184 267 61,865
5 3481766 $ 2030612
On June 3, 2013, the Council of the Township of Wellington Morth passed a resolution to defer
all future principal payments on the existing promissory note and that interest will continue to be
payabla at 4.41%.
Under the terms of the Infrastructure Ontario loan, the Company must satisfy certain restrictive
covenants such as maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio, a minimum current ratio,
and a maximum debt to capital ratio, The Company was in compliance with the minimum current
ratio covenant as at December 31, 2013,
10
2
3
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

4. Notes payable:

Included on the Statement of Earnings is interest on long-term debt of $95,400 (2012 - $98,347).
Principal payments scheduled to be paid on long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

2014 $ 64,655
2015 67,655
2016 67,571
2017 70,619
2018 and thereafter 3,211,266

$ 3,481,766

5. Post employment benefits:

Employee future benefits provided by the Company include medical and life insurance benefits.
These plans provide benefits to certain employees when they are no longer providing active
service. Employee future benefit expense is recognized in the period in which the employees
render the services.

The Company pays certain health, dental and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the accrued benefit obligation are
as follows:

2013
Discount rate 3.85%
Withdrawal rate 2.00 %

Information about the Company's defined benefit plan is as follows:

11
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

5. Post employment benefits:

2013 2012
Balance beginning of year 124,921 5 112,351
Current service cost 3,583 2632
Benefit paymenis (3,502) (1,855)
Interest on benefits 7,502 8,090
Past service cost 4,979 3,503
Actuarial loss 1,840 =
139,323 g 124,921
6. Share capital:
2013 2012
Authorized:
Unlimited number of common shares
Unlimited number of special shares, issuable in
senes
Issued:
1,557 commeon shares 1,634,404 $ 1,634,404

12
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

7. Related party transactions:

The Company provides water and sewage billing and collection services to the customers of the
Town of Mount Forest and the Village of Arthur within the Township of Wellington North, as well
as supplying street lighting energy and street lighting maintenance services to the Town of
Mount Forest and the Village of Arthur within the Township of Wellington North.

Revenue includes $89,527 (2012 - $82,675) from the Township. These transactions are in the
normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

In addition to the promissory notes payable described in note 4, the utility has an amount of
$780,053 (2012 - $744,924) payable to the Township of Wellington North included in accounts

payable.

The utility has an amount of $13,734 (2012 - $13,428) receivable from the Township of
Wellington North included in accounts receivable.

8. Income taxes

For income tax purposes, the Company has losses which can be applied to reduce future years'
taxable income, These losses expire as follows:

2013 2012
Earnings before income taxes S 217,916 3 20,603
Expected income tax expense $ 33,777 S 3,193
Permanent differences 155 1,948
Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization (14,842) (5,339)
Other differences - 198
Income tax expense $ 19,090 $ -

13
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2013

8. Income taxes (continued):

Corporate income tax expense differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the
federal and provincial statutory tax rates of 15,5% (2012 - 15.5%) to earnings from aperalions.
The reasons for the differences and related tax effects are as follows:

As prescribed by a regulatory rate order, income tax expense is recovered through customer
rates based on the taxes payable method based on regulatory taxable income. Therefore, rates
do not include the recovery of future income taxes related to temporary differences betwean the
tax basis of property, plant and equipment and their carfying amounts for accounting purposes,
while the Company has recognized future income taxes associated with these differences.

9. Commitments:

Bank letters of credit have been issued lo provide security for the Company's liability for power
purchases from the Independent Electricity System Operator (*IES07). These letiers of credit will
be drawn upon if the Company is in default of payment of its obligation to the IESQ. The
maximum potential payment is the face value of the bank letters of credit. At December 31,
2013, the latters of credit outstanding totalled $558,878 (2012 - 558 879).

10. Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards:

Publicly accountable enterprises in Canada were required fo adopt International Financial
Reparting Standards (IFRS") in place of Canadian GAAP for annual reparting purposes for
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011, The Accounting Standards Board granted an
optional deferral up to January 1, 2015 for IFRS adoption for entities subject to rate regulation.
The Company elected to take the optional deferral of its adoption of IFRS; therefore, it continues
fo prepane its consolidated financial staternents in accordance with CPA Canada Handbook Part
V - Canadian GAAP accounting standards.

14

PAGE 173 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

. Appendix 1D — 2013 WNP’s Audited

2 Financial Statement

Financial Statements of

WELLINGTON NORTH
POWER INC.

Year ended December 31, 2014

w

N

PAGE 174 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.
EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents
Filed: October 2015

N

KPMG LLP Telophone (5180 M7-5800
15 King Serest Sciath Fax (5150 MTEH30
v Floor Insarmat wnan kP ca

Watardoo ON NI 643

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholder of Wellington North Power Inc,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wellington North Power Inc., which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2014, the statements of earmings and retained
earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibilily for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibée for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such intermal contrdl &3
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
fram material messtatement, whether duee to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility 1= (o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
emor, In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the enlity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumnstances, bul naot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controd, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the awdit evidence we have oblained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for aur audit opinion.

PG UL it Brrbend ket gl i el B v e o 1 PRAG
Py, o wliairabes] iywhue Pevres SFeEs with PG nBormstessl Cocpeislion
Yl Il Lon ] 3 Swews ek By

o] Cievadih prbcne chd. e vtk 1 PRAG LLP
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial staternents present fairly, in all material respects, the financial pesition of

Wellinglon Merth Power Inc. as at December 31, 2014, and its resulls of nperatila@ and =15 cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles

& 44F
.L/@f

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Publc Accountants

March 31, 2015

Waterloo, Canada
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014, with comparative infermation for 2013
2014 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Cash 5 - 5 913,339
Accounts receivable 2,835,278 2,781.469
Inventory 109,852 82221
Prepaid expenses 17,485 58,398
Current portion of requlatory assets (note 3) 138,520 =
3,101,435 3,835,427
Property, plant and equipment {nate 2) 5,960,830 5,818,357
Other assals 2,145 2,145
Regulatory assets (note 3) 1,471,702 112,753
Future income taxes 296,000 310,000
5 10832121 3 10,078,682
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Bank indebtedness 5 B29,206 $ -
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliies 2,724 027 2,357,243
Income taxes payable 29612 21,539
Current portion of notes payable (note 4) 160,538 184 267
Current portion of regulatory liabilties {note 3) 19,326 455 444
3,702,709 3,018,493
Notes payable (note 4) 3.291.228 3481766
Regulatory liabilities (note 3) 256,000 310,000
Customer deposils 217,981 234,755
Post employment benefits (note 5) 142,040 139,323
3,947,248 4,165,844
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital {note &) 1,634,404 1,634,404
Retained earnings 1,457,759 1,259 541
3,092,163 2,594,345
Subsequent event (note 4)
$ 10,832,121 3 10078682
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
On behalf of the?rd' O
= .- —
x%}“ﬁ 4{ f‘ § \-._.;:I Director — Director
f _/l /
1
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Statement of Earnings and Retained Eamings

Year ended December 31, 2014, with comparative information for 2013

2014 2013

Service revenus & 10212158 % 11,381869
Cost af pawer {10,212 158) (11,381,869)
Distribution services 2.446,230 24297492
Other operating revenue 140,834 114,262
2,587,064 2,544 054

Expenses:

Operations and maintenance 567,948 587974
Billing and collections 354,887 343,220
Administration and general 800,127 810,051
Amartization 464,010 457,735
Interest 164,373 111,388
Property taxes 15,6888 15,770

2 367 245 2,326,138

Eamings before income taxes 219,819 217,916
Income taxes (note B) 22 01 18,080
het earnings 197,818 198 B26
Retained earnings, beginning of year 1,259,941 1,061,115
Retained eamings, end of year $ 1457750 $  1,2595941

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.
Staternent of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2014, with comparative information for 2013
2014 2013
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Met earnings $ 197,818 3 198,826
Iterms not involving cash:
Amorization of capital assels 484,010 AT 738
Increase in past-employment benefits 2717 14,402
Gain on dispesal of capital assets (494) =
G54,051 670,963
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Accounts receivable {53.809) (401,334)
Inventory (27.631) 3,161
Prepaid expenses 40,913 1,043
Accounts payable and accrued liablities 366,784 230,779
Payments in lieu of income taxes recoverable or
payable 8,073 19,090
Customer deposils {16,774} (33,157)
317,556 (180,418)
981,607 490,545
Financing:
Repayment of long term debt (184 267) (71.684)
Proceeds from new dabt - 1,645,240
(184,267) 1,573,555
Imvesting:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (623.4588) (735,844)
Net change in regulatory assets and liabilities {1.933,887) (283,008)
Met change in other liabilities - (30,020)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 17,500 -
(2,539 885) (1,048 870)
Increase (decrease) in cash (1,742 ,545) 1,015,231
Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year 913,339 (101,892)
Cash (bank indebtedness), end of year 53 (828,206) 3 913,338
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest on long-term debt : 149,634 $ 96,400
See sccompanying notes to financial statements.
3
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Motes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2014

Mature of operations:

Wellington North Power Inc. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the Business Corporatiens Act
{Ontario) on May 26, 2000 and is engaged in the distribution of electricity and associated business
activiies. The Company is icensed by the Ontarie Energy Beard ("OEE") lo supply electricity to
customers as described in the Transifional Distribution License and thereafter by the Distribution
License issued fo the company by the OEB. Additionally there are requirements imposed on the
Company by various codes referred to in the License and by the Electricity Act and the Ontario
Energy Board Act. The Company is limited to aperate within their Licensed Territory as defined in the
Distributson Licensa.

1. Significant accounting policies:
{a) Basls of presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles as described in Part V' of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada ("CPA Canada") Handbook and on the basis of accounting
principles for elecirical ufilities in Ontarie as required by the OEB under the authority of
Section 52, 70{2) and (78) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, and reflect the policies
as set forth in the "Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electric Distribution Utilities™
"AFPH".

(b) Financial mstruments:
(i} Initial measurement:

The financial instruments are classified in one of five categories: held-for-trading,
held-fo-maturity, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or olher
financial liabilities. Al financial instruments, including derivatives, are measured on
the balance sheet at fair value except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost.
Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial
classification, as follows; held-for-trading financial assets are measured at fair value
and changes in fair value are recognized in net earnings; available-for-sale financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in other
comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time
the amounts would be recorded in net earmings.
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

1. Significant accounting policies:
(b) Financial instruments:
() Initial measurement (continued):

In accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP”), the
Company has undertaken the following:

« Cash is classified as "assets held-for-trading” and is measured at fair value.

« Marketable securities as “avallable-for-sale” are measured at fair value.

« Accounts receivable are classified as “loans and receivables” and are measured
at amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair
value,

« Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt are classified as “other
financial liabilities™ and are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Comprehensive income:

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income for the period plus other revenues,
expenses, gains, and losses that are excluded from net income but recognized as
changes in equity (net assets). The Company includes the unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale financial assets as comprehensive income.

(c) Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment; provisions for impairment of
trade accounts receivable; future income taxes, and assets and obligations related to
employee future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

1. Significant accounting policies:
(d) Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and market value, where cost is generally
determined on the average cost basis and market value determined at net realizable value.

(e) Employee future benefits:

The Company provides post-employment health, dental and life insurance benefits to
certain of its retired employees as a defined benefit plan.

The Company accrues its obligations under the defined benefit plan as the employees
render the services necessary to earn the benefits. The defined benefit obligation at the
end of the year is determined based on the most recent actuarial valuation report prepared
for accounting purposes. The measurement date of the defined benefit obligation coincides
with the Company's fiscal year-end. The date of the most recent actuarial valuation of the
pension plan prepared for accounting purpose was January 1, 2014,

At year end the Company recognizes, in the balance sheet, the defined benefit obligation.
The cost of the plan for the year is recognized in income. Past service costs arising from
plan amendments are immediately recognized into income at the date of the amendment.

Remeasurements and other items comprise the aggregate of. the actuarial gains and
losses; the past service costs; and the gains and losses arising from settlements and
curtailments and are recognized in income at the time of the remeasurement.

() Property, plant anc equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization
Amortization is provided using the straight-line method and following annual rates:

Buildings 15-60 years
Distribution stations 20-55 years
Distribution lines 45-65 years
Distribution transformers 40 years
Distribution meters 5-30 years
Distribution services 40-60 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 5-8 years
System supervisory equipment 10 years
Other capital assets 5-10 years
6
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

1. Significant accounting policies:
(g) Pension plan:

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System ("OMERS"). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan,
which operates as the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (the *Fund®) and
provides pensions for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and
school boards. The Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed
by equal contributions from participating employers and employees, and by the investment
earnings of the Fund.,

(h) Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized in the financial statements on the accrual basis when the energy is
supplied to the users, whether billed or unbilled.

(i) Regulatory accounts and rate setting:

Regulatory assets represent costs that have been deferred because they will be recovered
in future rates. Regulatory assets recognized at December 31, 2014 are disclosed in note
3, If recovery through future rates was no longer considered probable, the amounts would
be charged to the results of operations in the period that the assessment was made.

On April 13, 2012, the Company filed an application with the OEB seeking approval of a
revenue requirement and related rates for the rate years 2012 to 2016, On September 20,
2012, the OEB approved a base revenue requirement amount of $2,366,300, along with the
Company’s tariff of rates and charges refiecting the Board's decision. The approved base
revenue requirement will allow the Company to recover all distribution expenses, payments
in lieu of income taxes ("PILs") requirements, and will allow the Company to earn a return
on deemed equity of 9.12%. For regulatory purposes, deemed equity is equal to 6.2% of
the defined rate base of assets. In addition, the OEB ordered a reduction of rates for the
disposition of net regulatory liabilities in the amount of $366,676 over a two year period.

On September 26, 2013, the Company filed an Incentive Rate Mechanism rate application
with the OEB seeking approval of Incremental Capital Medule funding for rebuild of the
company's MS-2 Substation. The OEB approved the company's application to recovery
revenue through fixed and variable rate riders to be in effect until the issuance of the rate
order arising from its next cost of service application. In addition, the OEV approved the
disposition of net regulatory liabilities in the amount of $253,967 to be disposed over a one
year period from May 1, 2014 to April 30, 2015.
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

1. Significant accounting policies:
(i) Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes

The Company provides for PlLs relating to its regulated business using the taxes payable
methed as permitted by Part V of the CPA Canada Handbook and the OEB.

The Company is generally exempt from tax under the Income Tax Act (Canada), if not less
than 90% of its capital is owned by the Township of Wellington North and not more than
10% of its income is derived from activities carried on outside the municipal boundaries of
the Township. A corporation exempt under the Income Tax Act (Canada) is also generally
exempt from tax under the Corperations Tax Act.

The Company is a municipal electric utility (MEU) for purposes of the PiLs regime
contained in the Electricity Act, 1998. This Act provides that a MEU that is exempt from tax
under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act is required to make, for
each taxation year, a payment in lieu of taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corporation in an amount approximating the tax that it would be liable to pay if it were not
exempt from tax.

The OEB's Electricity Distribution Rate Handbook provides for the recovery of PlLs through
annual distribution rate adjustments as permitted by the OEB.

The PILs regime came into effect on October 1, 2001, at which time the Company was
deemed to have commenced a new taxation year for purpose of determining its liability for
PiLs. Accordingly, the Company was deemed to have disposed of its assets at their then
fair market value and to have reacquired such assets at that same amount.

The Company provides for PiLs using the asset and liability method. Under this method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized, to the extent such are determined likely to
be realized, for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the date of
enactment or substantive enactment.

PAGE 184 OF 230



N

Wellington North Power Inc.

EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents

Filed: October 2015

WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Motes to Financial Statements (continuad)

Year ended December 31, 2014

2. Property, plant and equipment:

2014 2013
Accumulated Met book Met bock
Cost  amortization value valug
Land 3 70638 3 - % TOEME 3 61,227
Buildings 500,143 221,517 287,626 295,260
Distnibution stations 1,230,987 612448 518,539 400,765
Distribution lines - overhead 5 118,604 2 861 202 2527 402 2 445 684
Distribution lines -
underground 756,265 320,357 435,808 324,085
Distribution transformers 1,269 980 447970 822 010 759,803
Distribution meters B35 553 349623 486,930 533,169
Distribution services 673,845 410,022 263,823 185,842
Computer equipment 1,250,589 993,254 257,295 385,577
Transportation equipment B33 656 534,033 298623 368,753
System supervisory
equipment 348,127 274,384 73,743 87,770
Meters - spare 44,059 - 44 058 58,509
Transformers - spare 165418 . 165,418 158,534
Other 304352 262 861 41,491 67,766
Contributeons and grants {507.861) (74,195) (433 666) (330,563)
12,0904 445 5,943 606 5,960,839 5,802,182
Construction work in progress - - - 16,175
$ 12004445 § G043606 § 5960839 3 5818357
3. Regulatory assets (liabilities):
2014 2013
Retail settlement variance accounts % 131,819 -1 =
Retail cost variance accounts 7,001 -
Smart meter entity and stranded melers 8674 57,806
Distribution assets 1,411,007 -
Other deferred costs 52,021 54 857
Regulatory assels $ 1610522 ] 112,753
g
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

3.

Regulatory assets (liabilities):

2014 2013
Retail settlement variance accounts $ - $ (276,272)
Retail cost variance accounts - (13,846)
Low voltage variance - (3.624)
Regulatory assets recovery account (19,312) (161,588)
Special purpose charge variance (14) (14)
Future income taxes (296,000) (310,000)
Regulatory habiiities $  (315326) $  (765444)
Notes payable:
2014 2013
Township of Wellington North, promissory note,
interest only at 4.41%, payable quarterly in
arrears $ 985,015 $ 985,015
Infrastructure Ontario, loan payable, interest at
2.46%, payable in monthly instalments, due 2018,
secured by a General Security Agreement 422,717 524,281
Infrastructure Ontario, loan payable, interest at 4.42%,
payable in monthly instalments, due 2026, secured by a
General Security Agreement 980,943 1,045,598
Infrastructure Ontario, loan payable, interest at 4.49%,
payable in monthly instaiments, due 2043, secured by a
General Security Agreement 1,093,091 1,111,139
3,481,766 3,666,033
Less current portion of long-term debt 190,538 184,267
$ 3291228 $ 3.481,766

On June 3, 2013, the Council of the Township of Wellington North passed a resolution to defer
all future principal payments on the existing promissory note and that interest will continue to be

payable at 4.41%.

10
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Motas to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

4. Notes payable:

Under the terms of the Infrastructure Ontario loan, the Company must satisfy certain restrictive
covenants such as maintaining a minimum debt service coverage ratio, a minimum current ratio,
and a maximum debt to capital ratio. The Company obtained a waiver related to the the
minimum cufrent ratic covenant as at December 31, 2014 until March 2, 2015, the closing date
on the additional financing.

Subsequent to December 31, 2014, the Company obtained additional financing of 51,150,000
through an Infrastructure Ontario 30 year term loan bearing an interest rate of 3,28%, payable in
manthly installments. Proceeds from the loan were used to fund the Company's MS-2
Substation,

Included on the Statement of Earnings is interest on long-term debt of $149,834 (2013 -
396,400). Principal payments scheduled 1o be paid on long-term debt for the next five years and
thereafter are as follows:

2015 ] 190,538
2016 197,040
2007 203,785
2018 201,336
2019 and thereatter 2,569,067

§ 3381766

5. Post employment benefits:

Emplayee future benefits provided by the Company include medical and life insurance benefits.
These plans pravide benefits to certain employees when they are no longer providing active
service. Employee future benefit expense is recognized in the peried in which the employees
render the services.

The Company pays certain health, dental and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees.

The significant actuarial assumpfions adopted in measuring the accrued benefit obligation are

as follows:

2014
Discount rate 4.00%
Withdrawal rate 1,50% - 2.75%
Information about the Company's defined banafit plan is as follows:

1"
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Maotes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

5. Post employment benefits:

2014 2013
Balance beginning of year 3 139,323 1 124,921
Current service cost 3,814 3,583
Banafit payments {13.898) (3,502}
Interest on benefits 7,723 7,502
Past service cost 4 878 4979
Actuarial loss - 1,840
3 142,040 3 139,323
6. Share capital:
2014 2013
Authorized.
Unlimited number of common shares
Unlimited number of special shares, issuable in
Series
Issued:
1,557 common shares 5 1,634,404 5 1,634,404

12
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

7. Related party transactions:

The Company provides water and sewage billing and collection services to the customers of the
communities of Mount Forest and the Arthur within the Township of Wellington North, as well as
supplying street lighting energy and sireet lighting maintenance services to these communities.

Revenue includes $85,431 (2013 - $89,527) from the Township. These transactions are in the
normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties, Related expenses are recorded
in billings and collections,

In addition to the promissory notes payable described in note 4, the utility has an amount of
$778,881 (2013 - $780,053) payable to the Township of Wellington North included in accounts

payable.

The utility has an amount of $19,640 (2013 - $13,734) receivable from the Township of
Wellington North included in accounts receivable.

8. Income taxes

Corporate income tax expense differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the
federal and provincial statutory tax rates of 15.5% (2013 - 15.5%) to earings from operations.
The reasons for the differences and related tax effects are as follows:

2014 2013
Earnings before income taxes $ 219,819 $ 217,916
Expected income tax expense $ 34,072 S 33,777
Permanent differences 252 155
Capttal cost allowance in excess of amortization (12,177) (14,842)
Other differences (1486) -
Income tax expense $ 22.001 $ 19,090

13
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2014

8. Income taxes (continued):

As prescribed by a regulatory rate order, income tax expense is recovered through customer
rates based on the taxes payable method based on regulatory taxable income. Therefore, rates
do not include the recovery of future income taxes related to temporary differences between the
tax basis of property, plant and equipment and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes,
while the Company has recognized future income taxes asscciated with these differences.

9. Commitments:

Bank letters of credit have been issued to provide security for the Company's liabifity for power
purchases from the Independent Electricity System Operator ("IESO"). These letters of credit will
be drawn upon if the Company is in default of payment of its obligation to the IESO. The
maximum potential payment is the face value of the bank letters of credit. At December 31,
2014, the letters of credit outstanding totalled $558,879 (2013 - $558,879).

10. Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards:

Publicly accountable enterprises in Canada were required to adopt International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") in place of Canadian GAAP for annual reporting purposes for
fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The Accounting Standards Board granted an
optional deferral up to January 1, 2015 for IFRS adoption for entities subject to rate regulation.
The Company elected to take the optional deferral of its adoption of IFRS; therefore, it continues
to prepare its consolidated financial statements in accordance with Part V of the CPA Canada
Handbook.

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") has approved IFRS 14 Regulatory
Deferral Accounts in January 2014, This standard provides specific guidance on accounting for
the effects of rate regulation and permits first-time adopters of IFRS to continue using previous
GAAP to account for regulatory account balances while the IASB completes its comprehensive
project in this area. Adoption of this standard is optional for entities eligible to use it. Deferral
account balances and movements in the balances will be required to be presented as separate
line items on the face of the financial statements distinguished from assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are recognized in accordance with other IFRSs. Extensive disclosures will
be required to enable users of the financial statements to understand the features and nature of
the risks associated with rate regulation and the effect of rate regulation on the entity’s financial
position, performance and cash flows.

14
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

Motes to Financial Statements (continwed)

Year ended December 31, 2014

11. Correction of an immaterial prior period error:

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company becanve aware of certain liabilities that
were overaccrued. The impact of the cormection has been recorded retrospectively resulting in a
decrease in accounts payable and accrued liahbilities of 386,512, an increasa in income laxes
payable of $14,959, and an increase in retained eamings of 581,553 at December 31, 2012
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. Appendix 1E — Reconciliation: RRR filings
2 to AFS (2012-2014)

RRR 2.1.13

Uniform System of Account Balances Mapped and
Reconciled to Wellington North Power Inc.'s Audited
2012 Financial Statements

Part 1:

Cash Flow
Balance Sheet
Income Statement
Retained Earnings

Part 2:
Trial Balance by Account  Data Entry

Wellington North Power Inc Contents
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Account
Oporating Activities
Net Loss for the year
Rems not Involving cash
Amortization of capial assets

Increase in post-emplioyment benefits

Loss (gain) on Ssposal of capital assets

Change in non-cash working capital balances

Accounts recewvabtie

Prepaid expenses

Ivertory

Accounts payabie and accrued llabilties

Paymants in liew of income taxes receivable or

Change in customer deposts

Welington North Power Inc

C¥ Section CIF Line GL Accourt Cusrent Year Cash Flows Statement
20800
1895 Asset Propaty and Equipment  Coniibuted Capitel «17.084
2105 Assat Propecty and Equipment  Acc Amont + Buldings 10,884
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amont - Sub Station Equip 14,650
2105 Assat Propecty and Equpment  Acc Amon - Lines OH 55134
2108 Asset Property and Equipment  Ace Amont - Lines WG 9,688
2105 Assat Propecty and Equipment  Acc Amort - Transformers 23750
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amort - Services 3333
2105 Asset Propecty and Equipment  Acc Amort - Meters 130,111
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amort - Ofice 10,480
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Ace Amon - Computer Hardware 43,538
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amont - Sokware 258970
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amon - Roling Stock 62,157
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Aco Amort - Misc Equip/Tools 25622
2105 Asset Property and Equipment  Ace Amon - Supecvincry Equip 13844
621,934
2308 Labity QPEB labilty Employee Future Benefts 12570
12570
Reverue Other Revenue Loss on dposition 2237
rald
657,344
1100 Current Asset  Recoivabies Customer AR - Energy Sales -300,115
1102 Current Asset  Receivabies Accounts Recoivable - Services 2328
1104 Cumrent Asst  Receivabies AR - Recoverable Werk 22.403
N0 Curent Asset  Unbiled Revenuve Unibilled Revenuve 48,57
1130 Current Asset  Recoivaties Uncolictible Accts - Credit 4,955
1140 Current Asset  Recewabies Interest & Dividends Receivable -0
1150 CumentAsset  Receivobies Reets Recoivable 1515
47 490
1180 Current Asset  Prepayments Prepayments 10,640
10840
1330 Curent Asset  lnventory kwertory 14 571
1450
2205 Currert Linbities Payable Accounts Payable 84,005
2208 Currert Uabities Customer Credt Cust Crect Balance 3,609
2220 Currert Labitios Payables & Accruals Actrued Ascounts Payatle 3849
2260 Currert Liabities Payable Debt Retroment AP 143
2290 Currert Liabities Payable HST Federal 1047
$5873
payable
2284  Cutrent Usbiity  Lisbises Acerunl - Payments I Lisu 45143
45143
435,084
n¥ Liabsty Customer Deposts Long Term Customer Deposits -13.245
S13.248
4239

Part 1 « Cash Flow (as per OEB Decision £8.2011.0248)
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Investing activities
Purchate of capital assets

Net change in regulatory assets

Net change In reguiatony kabilties

Net change in future ncome taxes

Welington North Power e

AT

22540

O e O L O O e A MO OO O Vour,_ Cogh Pows Satetent,
Asset Intangitie Assets Land - Rights/Easements 1,650
Asset Property and Equipment  Bulldngs & Fidures 55 564
Assat Property snd Equipment  Sub Staticns. -9.565
Assat Property and Equipment  Poles Towers & Fidures 86,072
Asset Property and Equipment OMH Conductors & Devices 70,268
Assat Propecty and Equipment 15
Astet and UIG Conductors & Devices 8,101
Asset Property and Equipment  Une Transfarmers 99,196
Asset Property and Equipment  Services - Distribution 27,651
Asset Property and Equipment  Meters 716178
Asset Property and Equipment  Ofice Furniture & Equp 0
Astat and Equipment  Computer Hardware 62087
Asset Property and Equipment  Sotware 314,202
Assat Property and E Equi 1,842
Asset Property and Equipment  Tools and Equipment -4.400
Asset Property and & C E -4 005
Asset Property and System Sup y Equy -3810
Asset Property and Equipeent  Contruction Work i Progress 11727
Asset Reguiiory Assets Cthee Rogdstory Astets 11,410
Asset Regulatory Assets RCVA Retad and Varance Account 121 841
Seet Reguistory Assets Deferrod Debits 5
Astat Regulatory Assets RCVA STR and Variance Account 6,289
Assat Regulatory Assets Smart Meter Cap and Viariance Account 461 968
Asset Reguiatory Aasets Senart Moter OMEA Vadance Account 220491
Assat Regulatory Assats 1563 Contra PILS Vardance 1"7314
Aszet Regutatory Asvets 1592 PILS Variance 3781
Liabity Regulatory Labites Spec Purpose and Viasance Account 1,220
Asset Reguistory Assets RCVA Retai and Viariance Account 32010
Assat Rogulatory Assets RCVA STR and Variance Account 1978
Liabisty Regulatory Uablties RSVA LV and Variance Account 7078
Lisbisity Regulstory Lisbities  RSVAWMS and Varlance Account 1,173
Lisbasty Rogulatory Uablties REVANW- Varance 46434
Llabaty Regutatory UabiBes RSVA CN and Variance Azcount ~370,024
Liabdity Rogulstory Liabites RSVA Power and Varance Accourt -170.454
Liabiity Rogulatory Uabites REVA Power and Varance Accourt-GA 204,951

Dispostion and Recovery/Relund of
Llabiity Roguiatory Uabies 0 Balances Contral Accoust 147,787
Liabaity Future Income Tax Non Current Future Income Tax =700
Avtet Future Income Taxes  Other - Future lacome Tax 7,000

760,758

Part 1 - Cash-Flow (a3 per OEB Decisicn EB-2011-0040)
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[P 1; Cash-Fiow per OB decialon 1o ransler S Moo tocagial) |
Account CIF Bection CIF Liree Grouping S Account Description Curent Vear Cash Flows Stalemant
Financing activities
2520 Current Lishilties  Payable Lang Term Dubs 50155
S9.108
BB Capited Azzats  Ansels Contributions and Grants 4831
4501
T
Decreste in cash during (e year I A
Cash, beginning of the year
1005 Curreni fasets  Cash Bt - TD Carada Trend 0 152
W0 Cument fssels  Cash Cash - Float 380
S32
Cagh, end of the year 10,892
Wlington North Powes Inc. Part 1 - Cash-Flow (s per OEB De<ision EB-2011-024%)

PAGE 195 OF 230



| Part1: CashFlow (per BDO Audited Financial Statement)

Accournt CIF Secton CIF Line Grouping GAL Account Description Current Yeur Cash Plows Statement
Operating Activities
Net Loss for e year 20800
oms not kvvalving cash
Amertization of capital assets
1966 Asset Property and Equipment Contituted Captal 17,084
2106 Asset Prepecty and Equipent  Acc Amont - 10,664
2105 Asset Propecty and Equipement  Acc Amort - Sub Sation Equip 14,680
2106 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amon - Lines 55134
2106 Asset Propecty and Equipemnt  Acc Amont - Lines UG 9,655
206 Asvet Property and Equipment  Acc Amort - Transformers 7%
2106 Asset Propecty and Equipment  Azc Amon - Seevices 3333
2106 Asset Propecty and Equipement  Acc Amon - Meters. 8843
2108 Asset Property and Equipment Acc Amon - Ofice Equip 10,480
2106 Asset Propecty and Equipment  Acc Amort - Compater Hardware 20925
2106 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amort - Sobware 162406
2106 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amont - Roling Stock 62,157
2106 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amort - Misc Equip/Todls 2522
2106 Asset Property and Equipment  Acc Amon - Supervisory Equip 13864
400,579
Increase in post-employment benefis
2308 Lisbaty OPER liatitty Emgloyee Futre Benefits 12570
12570
Loas (gaim) on desposal of capital assets
Revenue Othe Reverroe Loss on disposkion 2237
207
435930
Change in nom-cash working capital balances
Accounts recolvabie
1100  Cuvert Asst  Recoivation Customer AR - Energy Sales 300115
102 Curent Asset R A Ry - Services 23,398
1104 Curent Asset  Receivaties AR - Recoverable Work 22,403
1120 Cuvent Asset  Unbiled Reverue Unb¥ed Revenue 42678
1130 Cuvent Asset L Accts - Croct 4,065
1140 Cuvent Asset  Recovaties Irterest & Dividencs Recewvatle 300
1150  Cuvent Asset  Recevables Rents Recoivable 1518
347 4%0
Prepeid expenses
1980 CuvetAsset  Prepay —0
10840
ventory
1330 Curest Asst  Wventory Inventory 14571
"Hsn
o\ puyable and
206 Current Labites Payable Accounts 84,005
208 Current Labiities Customer Credt Cust Crec Balance ~30,608
2220 Current Labites Payables & Accruals Accrued Accounts Payable 3,648
250 Current Labilties Payable Dottt Retirernent AP 143
260 Current Labites Payable HST Fedecal 1.047
55875
Payments i lieu of income taxes receivable o payable
2294 Cuvent Lisbizy Lisbases Accrual - Payments I Liew 45 143
45,143
MR
Change In customer deposts
235 Liabaity Customer Deposits Long Term Customar Deposits 13245

Welingten Nerth Pawer Ine

13,245
201483

Part 1- Cash Row (as por Audited Financisl Statement)
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| Part1: Cash-Flow (per BDO Audited Financial Statement)

Accourd CAF Section CF Line Crouping G Account Description _____ Currerd Yeaw ___ Cavh Plows Siatement
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets
1806 Asset ntangbie Assets Land « +1,650
1608 Asset Property and Equigenant  Buldings & Fotures 56,564
1820 Asset Property and Equipment  Sub Staions -9.665
1830 Assat Property and Equipennt  Pdies Towers & Fitures 134,77
1935 Asset Propecty and Equipeant  OM Conductors & Devices ~108,008
1840 Asset Property and Equipment  Undergrovad Condult 1178
1845 Asset Propecty and Equipement  U/G Conductors & Devices 21,000
1850 Asset Propecty and Equipment  Une Transformers 9,196
1885 Asset Property and Equipment  Services - Distribution «27,851
1880 Asvet Property and Equipment  Meters TATY
1916 Asset Preperty and Equipment  Ofice Furniture & Equip 0
1920 Asset Preperty and Equipement  Computer Hardware 17,411
1926 Asset Property and Equipment Sotware $1,620
1830 Asset and 1,842
10 Asset Propecty and Equipessnt  Tools and Equipment -4.400
19656 Asset Property and [= Equé 4,895
1960 Asset Propecty and Ex System Supec 'y Equi -3810
2065 Asset Property and Equipment  Contruction Work in Progress ~11.727
562,905
Net change in regulatory assats
1508 Asset Regulatory Assets Cther Reguiatory Assets 11,410
1518 Asvet Regutatory Assets RCVA Retad and Vasance Account 121,841
1526 Seet Regulatory Assets Defecred Detsts 13
1548 Asset Regulatory Astats RCVA STR and Vadance Account 6289
16586 Asset Regulatory Assets Smart Meter Cap and Variance Account 124,736
1658 Avnet Regulatory Assets Smart Meter OMEA Vardance Account 2040
1663 Asset Regulatory Assets 1563 Contra PALS Varience 7,384
1882 Asset Regulatory Assets 1502 PILS Varance 3,781
24150
Net change in regulatory liabvites
1521 Liabiity Regulatory Lisbities Spec Purpose and Variance Account -1,229
1518 Asset Regulstory Assets RCVA Retad and Vasance Account 200
1548 Asset Regulatery Assats RCVA STR and Vadance Account -1,976
1650 Llabiity Regulatory Liabites RSVA LV and Variance Account 117,076
1580 Liadaity Regulatory Lisbities RSVAWMS and Vaariance Account 11,473
1584 Liabty Regulatory Liabites REVANWN- Variance 48434
1584 Liabaity Regulatory Uabities RSVA CN and Variante Account 370,004
1588 Liakity Regulatory Liabities RSVA Power and Variance Account 170454
1689 Labisty Regulatory Uablties RSVA Power and Variance Accours-GA 204,851
Reausl Dispositon and RecoveryRetind of
1595 Llabaty Usbities guatory Control Account 147,767
250 Liakdity Future ncome Tax Non Carrert Future income Tax -7,000
22540
Net change in future income taces
1480 Asset Futte ncome Taxes  Other - Future Income Tax 7,000
7,000
539403

Welington North Power Ine

Part 1- Cosh Row (as por Autited Financial Statement)
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I Fart 1: CashFlow (per BDO Ausdied Financial Statemant)

A ound CiF Secon MLM G‘-".‘EMM Cunrent Year Cash Flows Stabement
Financing activities
220 Curest Labiles  Payabls Long Taesn Dbt &0, 1885
<S0005
RS Copital Assets  Aswely Contritations and Granty 4,891
4,801
Ty
Dorease in cash during the year S ATR
Cash, beginming of th year
1000 Curent Aseels  Gash Bank - TD Canseda Tt o062
010 Cusment Aaiets  Cadh Caah - Float 380
ST

Cash, end of the year

Wnlinglon Morth Pawar Inc

A0, BiE

Part 1 - Cath Flow (% pr Sudied Finascial Statament)

PAGE 198 OF 230



Wellington North Power Inc.

EB-2015-0110

Exhibit 1 — Administrative Documents

Account S Section

ASSETS

Current Assets
1006 Current Assats
1010 Current Assets
1100 Cument Asset
1@ Current Assat
1104 Current Asset
120 Current Assat
1130 Cument Asset
1140 Curmrent Asset
1150 Current Asset
2284  Cument Labity
10 Current Asset
1330 Current Asset

Total Current Assets

Capal Assets
1806 Asset
1906 Asset
1808 Assat
1820 Asset
1830 Astet
18% Asset
1840 Asset
1845 Asset
1850 Asset
1855 Asset
1900 Asset
1916 Asset
1920 Asset
1925 Asset
1830 Asset
1936 Asset
1840 Assnt
1845 Asset
1956 Astet
1980 Asset
1965 Asset
1886 Asset
2056 Asset
2106 Asset

Total Capital Assets

Other Assets
1480 Asset

Total Other Assets

Welington North Power Inc

B/S Line

Propedy and Equipment
etanghie Assets

Proparty and Equipemnent
Propedty and Equipment
Propacty and Equapement
Property and Equipment
Propecty and Equipment
Proparty and Equpment
Property and Equipment
Property and Equipenent
Property and Equipment
Propecty and Equipment
Property and Equipment
Property and Equipment
Property and

GA Account Descri)

Bank - TO Conacla Trust
Cash - Float

Customer AR - Enecgy Sales
Accounts Recevable - Services
AR« Recoverable Work
Unbiled Reverce
Uncollectibdie Accts « Credt
Irterest & Dividends Recevable
Rents Recetvable

Accrusd « Payments n Leu
Propayments

Iverory - Materials and Supples

Poles Towers & Fotures
O Conductors & Devices
Undecground Condut

WG Conductors & Devices
Une Transkomens
Services - Datribution
Meters

OfSice Fumiure & Equip
Computer Hardware
Sofware

Property and Equipment

Soces Equipment
Tools, Shop & Garage Equipenent

& Testog E:
Py Eest

Future hcome Taxes

System
Seatinel Uighting Rectal Units
Convduted Capial

Wiork in Progress

Ace Amonn

Cthee - Non Current Assots

Cusrent Year
1-1006- 1000-005-001 10272
1-1010- 1000010001 380
1-1100- 1100-100-001 1,508,639
1-1102-1100-102-001 578
1-1504- §100-104.001 27,384
1-1120-1100-120-001 1058413
11130 1100-130.001 15,883
1-1140-1100-140-001 754
1-1160- 1100150001 1515
1+ 2294 2200-264.001 12610

1-1180- 1100-190-001 0441

£5.582

1-1330- 1300-330-001

1-1805- 1800-805-001 41,988
1-1606- 1800-06-001 8471
1-1808-1800-806-001 501,443
11620-1800.820001 1010423
1-1630-1900-830-001 788,718
1-1836.1000805.001 2026487
1-1840- 1900 40-001 151,377
118451800 845001 477,061
1-1850-1000-850.001 1,270,606
1-1885-1800-855-001 563,415
1:1860-1600-860-001 916,897
1-1915-1900-915-001 149,740
1:1520-1800-620-001 261,660
1-1925- 1900-925-001 921,105
11530 1900-800.001 751,812
1-1935 1900-006-001 16,640
1-1840 1900940001 %979
141945 1900-845-001 1964
1-1955-1900-965-001 30,281
1:1960-1900-880.001 M8127
1-195- 1900-995-001 0
1.1965.1900.996.001 -331,863
1.2065-2000-056-001 1,727
1:21062100-105.002 __-6508816

1-1480- 1400-480-001 2,145

Balance Sheet

«101,892

2,380,135

12,510

2435575

2345

Part 1- Balance Sheet
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GA Account Description

Currend Year  Balance Sheet

Etulnlud 1
Account BUE Section 15 Lin Grouping
Reguiabony Astets
1508 LT Ragaatory Autats
151 Anpet Rl 10y A uels
1525 Aaset Regudatory Aty
1548 Aszel Regdaiory Assels
1585 Adiat Regulatory Assats
1855 Anzet Ragdatory Asuly
Total Rgulatony Assets
Fuaiturs bncoime Taosd
1480 Asat Futune hcome Tanes
Total Fubure Incoma Taxes
Total Asseis
Liabdites and Bhareholders” Equity
Current Lisbilities
2208  Cument Liab#Ser Payabls
P8 Cufénl Lisb#%et  Customes Crsdi
ZE0  Cument LabStes  Fayables & Accruah
Z2M)  Curment Labites Payable
I Cument LabEter Payable
2280 Cument Labétes Payable
THT  Cyrment LabSe: Payable
50 Cument Lisbiiter  Payable
ZXB  Cureat LabBter Payable
Total Cument Liabdites

Welington Narth Power Inc.

Oehr Rugolatory Asvety

RO RSt &g W arand & A oot
Dufd Dedbits - Price 42 2008

RCWE 5TR and Vaisnce Account
Trvart Mater Cop and Varence Account
Ermart Mates DMEA Variansa Ase sun

Ot - Future Bsarme Tax

Az poanis Pagabls

Cust Crecit Bal - Equal Blling
Azerupd Azcounis Payabie

Cebl Retirement A'F - Residential
Cuirend Porion of Lang Term Dubl
HET Federsl 5% - AP

Azow OIT - All Labour

Current Portion of Mctes Payabie

Cutrenl Pertion of Cutlomes Deperuts

11508 1 500-508- 102 48,845
1=151 8 150051 8- 100 -5.010
11525 150052500 ]
1158 1 500-5a8- 101 1,876
1-155E5- 1ED0-E25-1H 180,437
1=16545 1500-255-101 a
11480 1400430002 2410, 000
1008 2200 206-001 1821012
1-2208- 2200-208-002 «3812
10 TR0 22000 4002 GHY
-0 00 250-000 T4
1- 380 2200 250-00H -1&i, 885
1- 2250 2200 250-020 8,383
1-Z192- 1200-292-010 L]
-0 2500-530-008 L]

1-Z335 300335004 L]

E—
TAWAST

10T

F418.313

“TAMAST
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Account /S Section ulmmg G Account Description Current Year  Balance Sheet

Notes Payable

2620 Uabiley Omhar Non-Currest Dotz Long Term Dete 4.2620- 2500520001 <16008612
Total Notes Paywble -1930,012
Customer Deposits

23% Uabidy Customer Ceposts Long Term Customes Deposits $-2335-2300:335-000 ____ 267812
Total Custonser Deposits 207,912
Reguiatory Liabilities

235 Uabiry Future Income Tax Non Current Futere income Tax +-2350-2300-350-001 -240.000

1521 Uabiliey Reguatory Lisbiities Spec Purpose and Vadance Account 1.1521-1500.521.101 14

1560 Uabiry Reguiatory Lisbiites RSVA LV and Vasance Azcount 1-1560-1500.550-101 -40 445

1562 Liabiity Reguatory Liabisties Defd Prots In Ueu Of Taxes 1-1562-1500-562-101 0

1563 Uabiey Reguiatery Lisbdties. Defd PILS Conten Acet 51563 1500-863-101 .

1580 Uably Reguatory Liabities RSVA WMS and Variance Account 1-1580-1500-580-101 285827

1584 Uabily Regulatory Liskites RSVA NW - Varance $.1584. 1600684101 1,832

1508 Uablity Reguiatory Liablities RSVA CN and Variance Account 1-1506-1500-586-101 -8A774

1588 Uabiy Reguiatory Lisbilties RSVA Power and Varance Account 1-1588-1500-588.101 300,105

1565 Uablry Reguiatory Liabiites RSVA Power - GA 1-1589- 1500 589-201 208 951

1592 Uabidy Reguatory Liabitas PILS & Yax Var - Cortra improv 1-1562-1500-591-211 3781

a : Dispostion and efund of

1505 Uabiey Reguiatory Lisbites Regulatory Balsnces € Aoswai 1-1505-1500-505-201 568 463
Total Reguiatory Liabllities 1,063,041
PostEmpioyment Benefits

2308 Labdiy OPEB Usbiity Empioyee Futwre Benelts 1.2306- 2300206001 426 821
Total Post-Employment Benefits 124 021
Total Liabisties 3,801,042
Shareholders’ Equity

3005 Sharehoiders’ Equty Common Shaes Common Shares 1:3005- 3000306000 1,638 404 -1,634,404

3045 Shareholders’ Equity Retaned Eamings Unappropristed Retained Earnings. 1-3045- 3000 345-000 $R4TS

3056 Sharehoiders’ Equty Retained Eamings Adystmant To Reteined Eamings 4.3055 3000 355-001 76488

3045 Shareholders’ Equity Retaned Eamings Nat Loss %o Date -20605 .

979,56

Total Liabilties and Shareholders’ Equity

Welington North Power Inc.

BA15012
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Account s on VS Line Account Current Yewr
Expenses
Operations and Maintenance
5005 Operatoes and Mantenance SPOS00 Scpenvsonand - Openitke Supenision 30 4 ooss00500.100 70973
5012 Operations and Mantenance Station Bulldings and Fufures Stn Bidg & Fidwres - Expenses  1-5012:5000-500-500 12226
" . O 3 Dist Stn ~ Qutside
5016 Operations and Maintenance Labowr Labeur 1.50165000-500-100 LA
5017 Opecations and Manienance prncovs 1-5017-5000-500-300 211
5020 Operatoes and Mantenance O Dveeution Lines & Feeders.  OH Disirkbuticn Lines & Feeders - 1.540.5000.500.100 14440
5025 Operations and Maintenance OH Distribution Lines & Feeders- mmnmmutrm-‘mmm 0849
P € !
5030 Operations and Mantenance OM Sub-Transmission Feeders  OM Sub-Transmission Feeders  1-5030-5000-500-100 1159
5035 Operatons and J OH D¥ 1-5035-5000-500-100 11063
" - U/G Distrution Lines & Feeders- UG Distributicn Lines & Feeders-
5040 Operations and Maintenance Lebosr Labioor 1-5040-5000-500-100 1506
5045 Operatons and Matanance 1o over 2uton Lnes & FEeders: g o 11 & Feoders - Expense 1.4045.6000-500-200 2261
us % WGDist - Qutside
5055 Operations and Mantenance o Lat 1.5055.5000-500-100 1215
5085 Operations and Mantenance Meter Expense Meter Expense 1.5065.5000-500-100 46,006
5070 Operations and Mantenance Customer Premises-Labour Cust Premises - Outside Labour  1-5070.5000-500-100 18867
5075 Operations and Maintenance Customer Premises-Expense Customer Premises - Expense 1-5075-5000-500-300 7485
5085 Operatons and Mantenance Mese. Distrtution Expense Misc, Distributicn Expense 1-8085-5000-500-100 10120
5085 Optratoes and Mantenance G 01 24800 Lnes & FE0T o g iy Foeder- Reotal  1-5095-5000-500.518 0
& REM - Suprvsn & Engneer «
5105 Operabioas and W Outside Labour 1-5105-5100-500-100 78,765
5110 Op and i Buidnged REM - Buidings & Fistures 1-5110:5100-500-534 323
5114 Operations and Malntenance E 1-5114-5100-500-500 36,505
Maintenance of Poles, Towers & Maistenance of Poles, Towers &
5120 Operatons and Mantenance F Foch 1-51205100-500-100 7408
< of O & of OH
5125 Operations and Maintenance h and O 1-5126-5100-500-100 15285
5130 Operations and Mantenance Maintenance of O/H Services Maintenance of OH services 1-51305100-500-100 620
5135 Operations and Mantenance OM Distribution Lines & Feeders  OM Distribution Lines & Feeders  1-51355100-500-100 81340
5145 Op and of UG Condut Maintenance of UAS Conduit 1-51455100-500-100 808
5150 Operations and Mantenance Sy " o 010 . suac & 1.5150.5100.500-100 0
5155 Op and cfUG of U/G services 1-5155.5100-500-100 517
5160 Operations and of Line of Line 1-5180-5100-500-100 354
5175 Operatices and Mantenance Maintenance of Meters Maienenance of Meters 1-5175-5100-500-100 41827
Total Operations and Maintenance

Welington North Power Inc.

Part 1 - Income Statement
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Wellington North Power Inc.
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VS Section VS Line G Account Desc
Billing & Collection
5305 Baling & Collection Supeevon BAC Supervision - BICollect
5310 Bling & Collection Meter Readng BAC Mir Read - Outside Labour
5315 Bilng & Collection Customer Blling BAC - Cust Bling
5320 Biling & Collection Colecing BAC - Collecting expenses
5325 B8iling & Colection Colectng-Cash Over & Short BA&C - Cash Over & Shont
5335 Biling & Colection Bad Dett B2C - Bad Debt Expense
5340 & Collection Misc. Customer Accounts BAC - Musc Customer Acvet
5410 & Colection Communty Relations Mese Communily Relasons
5415 Biting & Colection Energy Conservaton Expense  Enecgy Conservation Expense
5420 Biing & Collection Community Safety Program Community Safety Program
5515 Baling & Collection Advertising Expenses
Total Billing & Collection
Administrative & General
5605 Administratve & General  Executive Salaries & Expenses  Executive Salary
5610 Adminisyatve & Genenal  ponegrent Saaries & Management Sary
5615 Adminisraive & General  Strers AT SIS gririarative Salry Expense
5620 Administratve & General  Ofice Supples & Expenses Ofice Supples - Expenses
5630 Administratve & General  Qutside Service Employed Qutside Service Employed
5635  Administatve & General  Property nsurance Insurance
5640 Administratve & General  Injunes & Damages Creckt Risk Insurance
5845 Adminisratve & General  OMERS Pensions & Benefts Emgloyee Pensicn & Benefts
5655 Administratve & General  Regulatery Expense Regulatory Expense
5665 Adweistative & General  Miscellanecus General Expenses  Miscellanecus Ganeral Expenses
5670 Administratve & General  Rent Admin Rent Expense
5680 Admnistratve & General  Blacrical Safety Authorty Fees  Admin Electrical Safety Auth Fee
Total Adminkstrative & General
Amortization
R Amortzation - Property, Plant and
5705 Amcaizaton Depreciation Expease Eaui
5725 Misc « Contributed Cagital
Total Amortization
Interest Expense
6005 Interest Expense Inferest on LT debt Ltd Interest - SM nfrastructure
6035 Interest Expense Cther Interest Expense It Exp - Short Term
Total Interest Expense
Property taxes
6105 Propecty taxes Taxes Cther Than kncome Taxes  Taxes - Other Than Iscome
Recovery in lieu of income taxes
6110 Propecty taxes Income Taxes Income Taxes - FediProv
Donations
6205 Donatens Donatons. Donatons.
Total Expenses

Net Loss for the
Vietigain Nect Powas nc

1-5305-5300-510-527
1.5310-5300-510-100

1-5335-5300-510-544
1-5340-5300-510-150
1-8410-5400-510-556
1.5415.5400-510.557
1-5420-5400-510-558
1-5515-5400-510-556

1-5705-5700-530-010
1-5725-5700-530-005

1-6005-6000-540-001
1-6035-6000-540-001

1-6105-6100-550-001

1-6110-6100-550-001

1-6205-6200-550-013

Current Yewr income Statement

0
132,036
63,800
61917

33,648

659,195

639018
~17.084

621934

68,347
35,302
133849

12495
12485
9
—_—
2310

— z30

77874

p—
T hcceme Statement
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[Part 1: Income Statement |
Account S Section US Line Grouping G Account Description Current Year Income Statement

Service Revenue

4008 Serdce Revenue Residential Energy Sales Residential Sales 1-4006-0000-420-000 1,861,089

4025 Service Revenue Sveet Lighting Sales Street Light - Energy Sales 1.4025-0000-400.000 18,381

4030 Service Revenue Sentnel Lighting Energy Sales  Sentinel Light Sales 1-4030-0000-420-000 1655

4035 Service Revenue General Energy Sales General - RSVA 1-4035-0000-410-000 4878146

4050 Service A UnZded Rev - Residensal 1-4050-4 -8668

4055 Secvice Revenue Energy Sales fr Resale Resale 1-4055-0000-420-705 1,061,103

4062 Service Revenue Blled WMS Biled WMS - Residential 1-4062-4000-310-000 553462

4066 Service Revenue Blled NW Biled NW - Residential 1-4066-4000-340-000 520,883

4068 Service Revenue Blled CN Biled CN - Residential 1-4068-4000-350-000 -344 028

4075 Service Revenue BledLV LV Bdlled - Residental 1-4075-4000-350-000 -144 954

a2 Service Revenve :""" Purpose Charge Spec Pup Chg- Residentil  1-4324-4000-370-000 0
Total Service Revenue 5,393,450
Cost of Power

4705 Cost of Power Power Purchased Power - Perchased 1-4705-4400-200-000 7.830022

4708 Cost of Power Charges WMS WMS Charges 1-4708-4400-110-003 553462

4710 Cost of Power Cost of Power Adustments Power Adustment 1-4710-4400-250-005 0

4714 Cost of Power Charges NW Charges NW 1-4714-4400-140-005 520983

4718 Cost of Power Charges CN Charges CN 1-4716-4400-150-005 344028

ATS0 Cont of Power Charges LV LV Charges 1-4750-4400-160-010 144 954

5681 Cost of Power Special Purpese Charge Special Purpose - RSVA 1-5681-4400-170-010 9
Total Cost of Power !&%
Total
Distribution Services

4080 o Services R. [ 1-4080-4000-610-000  -2.265551

4082 O Retail S R Retad Services Revenve 1-4082-4300-655-801 6867

4084 Ox Servic STRR STR - Roquests 14084-4300-660-800 =113
Total Distribution Services 226250
Cther Operation Revenue

4210 Cther Operation Revenue  Rent fom Electric Property Rent from Electric Property 1-4210-4340-710-800 -28341

4225 Cther Operation Revenue  Late Payment Charges Late Penalty Charges 1-4225-4340-720-800 -28.204

4235  Other Operation Revenue  Misc. Service Revenues Misc Rev - Utiismarnt Access 1-4235-4340-730-800 55383

4325 Cther Op R: R fom Merchand Jobbing Rev « Outside Labour 1-4325-4360-740-100 -31.749

43 Cher Operation Revenue  Govey ang EXenses of Jobbing Exp - Misc AR - Labour  1-£3304360.745.120 19730

4355 Other Operation R Gain o0 Dispostion of Assets Gain - Disposttion Of Assets 1-4355-4360-750.001 123

4350 Omer Op R Loss on Dt Bon of Assets Loss - Disposition Of Assets 1-4360-4360-755-001 5076

Revenue from Neo Rate-

4375 Cther Operation Revenue Regulated Uity Operaticns Neauty Rev - Qutside Labour 1-4375-4360-760-100 22691

4300 Ciher Opecation Revenue  roeroes oxticn e REUAMS ooy Bup. Jobbing Labour  1-43804360-765-120 M7

4380  Cther Operation Revenue  Misc, ncome Misc Nonops Rev - SCRA 1.4300-4360-770-003 J459

4405 Cther Operation Revenue  Interest and Dividend Income Interest - Interest Eamed 1-4405-4380-810.001 =21.481
Total Other Operating Revenue -135.807
Total 5 A
Welington Nerth Power ne. Part 1 - Income Statement
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Current Yoear  Astained Earmings

IE:rt 1: Rotained Eamings |
Accaun RIE Section RJE Line Grouping G4 Accourt Bescription
Retained aarfings, bagnning of e yoar
M5 Shareholdars’ Equily Retained Earnings Unispproprated Retaned Eamings -B24T3
Retained Eamings Adjusiment To Retained Eamings =T 488
M Incoms (Loss) 1o Date 0605
=3T3, 565

3055 Ehareholders” Equity

3045 Ehareholders” Equily Retaned Eamings

Retained sarmings, end of ihe year

Part 1 - Retaired Eamings

Wellington Morth Poswer Inc
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RRR 2.1.13

Uniform System of Account Balances Mapped and
Reconciled to Wellington North Power Inc.'s
Audited 2013 Financial Statements

Part 1:
Cash Flow
Balance Sheet
Income Statement
Retained Earnings

Part 2:
Trial Balance by Account

Wellington North Power Inc
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Accouind CIF Seclion CIF Lirw Grouping /L Acoount Desoription Cumand ¥ear Cash Flows Sabement
Operating Activilies
Fot Incomae for Bhe year 158,806
Rens not invoiing cash
ArnpBEioh of SRl e
1995 Avaat Property and Equipmant  Contibuled Capal (515
ST05 Asaat Proparty and Equipmant  Daprecalion - Bulldngs 458,750
451,78
Inoreass in post-employment benadts
ILiabiity CPER labilty Employes Future Benefits 14,402
orlrd
670,963
Change in rronecarsh working capial balances
Aczounts mecetvable
100 Curreni Assel  Recshables Customer AR - Energy Sales { 134024 )
1902 Curranl Al Racsivabiog Agmiurts Raceivable - Serviors 34.844
104 Curent Assel  Recshables AR - Racovarable Werk {12444
1020 Current Assel Unbdled Revenue Unbilesd Resenos | 204815 )
113 Cuorrenl Assel  Recshables Uncoliectible Accls - Credd 4,400
1140 Current Assel Receivables interect & Dhadends Recehable i 1,008 )
1150 Currant Assel Recsivables Rents Recsrable 1,515
{401,334 )
Irrcanfory
1330 Currend Assel  Invenbory Irvenitory 181
3,984
Prepaid expenises
1180 Curent Assel  Prepayment Prepayment 1,043
1,043
Agaounts payable and aansed batiltes
2205 Cumen! Liabliies Payable Azzourts Payakle 248,778
228 Cumen LinbBties  Cusbomaer Cradst Cust Credd Balance 20,885
220 Current Liabilities  Payables & Accruals Acoued Accounts Payable {46,035 )
20 Cumen| Liablities  Payable Dabt Retirement AP 7
2280 Cumeni Liabiities Payable HET Federal L2875
3,1
Paymients in §eu of Inoomis taoss recehable o payabls
224 Cusrent Liabilty  Liabilties Agenual - Payments In Lisu 16 0a0
18, 050
2335 Lupby Custemar Deposts Leng Toem Cuslomas Daposis 33157
—_— (JET)
400,545
Finanoing aciivities
22y Curent Liabikty  Liabilties Prepayment of long term debt 71,884 )
2520 ILiabality Liabikties Proceeds from nes detit 16545 240
4,573,556
Wellingion North Power Inc,
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lh 1 Cash-Flow |
Account CIF Section CIF Line Grouping G Account Description Current Year Cash Flows Statement
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets
1806 Asset Intangible Assets Land - RightwEasements (10.789)
1808 Asset Property and Equipmert Buildings & Fixtures (3.450)
1820 Assat Property and Equipmert  Sub Stations (49.669)
180 Asset Property and Equipmert Poles Towers & Fotures (102842)
1835 Asset Property and Equipment OM Conductars & Devices (69664 )
1845 Asset Property and Equipment U/G Conductors & Devices (5537)
1850 Assat Property and Equipment  Line Transformens (74377)
1855 Asset Property and Eq Services - Distrib (46,628)
1830 Asset Property and Equipmert Meters (25440)
1915 Asset Property and Equipmert Office Fumiture & Equip ( 16.600)
1920 Asset Property and E C F (8888)
1925 Asset Property and Equipment  Software (10,143)
1900 Asset Property and Equi Trarsp E (309,831)
1985 Asset Property and E: C E (2008)
(735844
Net change in regulatory assets
1508 Asset/Uab Regulatory Assete/Lisb  Other Reguistory Assets (675)
1518 Asset/Uab Regulatory Assete/Lisb  RCVA Retal and Variance Account (15187)
1548 Asset/Uab Regulatory Asseta/Liab  RCVA STR and Variance Account (902)
1550 Asset/Lab Regulatery Assete/Liad  RSVA LV and Variance Accourd (35821)
1551 Asset/Uab Regulatory Assete/Liab  SM Erity Charge (5473)
1565 Asset/Lab Regulatory Assete/Lisb  Smact Meter Cap and Variance Account 122541
1553 AssetiLab Regulatory Assete/Liab  Defd PILS Contra Acct (5372)
1568 AssetLab Regulatory Assete/Liad  LRAM 660
1580 AssetiLab Reogulatory Assete/Liad  RSVA WMS and Variance Account 74290
1584 Assat/Lab Regulatory Assete/Lisd  RSVA NW - Vardance 14805
1586 Asset/Uab Regulatory Assete/Lisb  RSVA CN and Variance Account 1888
1588 AssetiUab Regulatory Assete/Liab  RSVA Power and Variance Account 46207
1589 Asset/Uab Regulatory Assete/Liad  RSVA CN and Variance Account (89.204)
Disposition and RecoveryRefund of
1565 AssetiUad Regulatory Assets/Liad Reguatory Batances Control Account (406,875)
(223,006 )
Net change in cther kabiities
2335 Liabilty Other Labities Non.Cuyrrent Customer Deposits ( 30.020)
020
(1,048,870 )
Cash, beginning of the year
1005 Curmert Assets Cash Bank - TO Canada Trust (102272)
1010 Currert Assets  Cash Cash - Float 380
10
Cash, end of the yoar 913,338
Welington North Power Inc.
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Account B/S Section B/S Line GIL Account Descripti
ASSETS
Current Assets
1005  Current Assets  Cash Bank - TD Canada Trust
1010 Current Assets  Cash Cash - Float
1100  Cument Asset  Recehvables Customer AR « Energy Sales
1102 Current Asset Receivables Accounts Receivable - Services
1104  CurrentAsset  Receivables AR - Recoverabie Work
1120 Current Asset Unbiled R Unbilled Revenue
1130 Current Asset Receivabh ! Accts - Credit
1140 Current Asset Receivadles Interest & Dividends Receivadle
1330 Current Asset inventory Inventory
1180 Current Asset Prepayments Prepayments
Total Current Assets
Capital Assets
1805 Asset Property and Equipment  Land
1612 Assat Intanghble Assats Land - Rights/Easements
1808 Asset Property and Equipment  Buildings &
1820 Asset Propesty and Equipment  Sub Stations
1830 Asset Property and Equipment  Poles Towers & Fudures
1835 Asset Property and Equipment  OH Conductors & Devices.
1840 Asset Propecty and Equipmant  Underground Condul
1845 Assat Property and Equipment UG Conductors & Denvices
1850 Asset Property and Equipment  Line Transformers.
1855 Asset Property and Equi Services - D
1850 Asset Property and Equipment  Meters
1915 Assat Property and Equipment  Office Furniture & Equip
1920 Assot Property and C t
1925 Assat Property and Equipment  Software
1630 Asset Property and E Transp: jon Equip
1638 Asset Property and Equipment  Stores Equipment
1940 Asset Property and Equipment  Tools, Shop & Garage Equpment
1945 Asset Propenty and Equs M & Testing Equip
1955 Asset Property and E: C Equip
1880 Assal Property and Equipment  System Supervisory Equipment
19958 Asset Property and Equipment  Contriduted Capital
2088 Asset Property and Equipment  Work In Process
2105 Assot Propecty and E Ace Amort - I
Total Capital Assets
Other Assets
1450 Asset Future Income Taxes Ceher - Non Current Assets
Total Other Assets
Weilington North Power Inc.

1-1005-1000-005-001
1-1010-1000-010-001

1-1100-1100-100-001
1-1102-1100-102-001
1-1104-1100-104-001
1-1120-1100-120-001
1-1120-1100-130-001
1-1140-1100-140-001

1-1330-1300-330-001

1-1180-1100-150-001

1-1805-1800-805-001
1-1612-1600-612-001
1-1808-1800-806-001
1-1820-1800-820-001
1-1830-1200-830-001
1-1835-1800-835-001
1-1840-1200-840-001
1-1845-1800-845-001
1-1850-1800-850-001
1-1855-1800-855-001
1-1880-1200-850-001
1-1915-1600-915-001
1-1920-1500-920-001
1-1625-1600-625-001
1-1630-1600-630-001
1-1605-1600-535-001
1-1640-1600-940-001
1-1945-1600-945-001
1-1965-1600-955-001
1-1620-1500-880-001
1-1665-1600-695-001
1-2085-2000-005-001

912,650
380
813,330

1442563
(35421)

30,828

1,353,028
(20283)

1764

2,781,469

221
82221

58,398

—

388
3835427

1-2105-2100-105002 (8807611)

1-1480-1400-450-001

5,818,357

2,145

——

2,145

Currort Year  Balance Sheet
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Cunranl Yoai  Balance Sheat

IFI'! 1i Balarce Sheat I
Ao BiS Section B/S Line Grouping Gl Account Description
Regulatony Asseis
1508 Ansed Fegulaiory Assets Reg = Incremental Cap-Hydro
1525 Agssl Ragulaiory Assats Defd Debits - Prior 1o 2008
1551 Assel Fegulaiory Assats SM entity charge vanance
1555 Asssl Regulslory Assals S Mater Inerest Improvament
1563 Assst Reguiatory Assats Dafd PILS Conira Acct
1562 Asset Feegulatory Assets PILSETax Var - Fram 2008 Cos
Total Regulaiory Asseis
Future Income Taxes
1450 Assel Future Income Taxes bt - Fubure Income Tax
Total Future Income Taxes
Tolal Assels
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilitiss
X5 Current Linkbdities Accounts Payabls
X8 Curent Linbiities Cust Credit Bal - Equal Billing
T2 Cument Lakd e Actroed Aocounts Payable
250 Current Liabdities Dot Retiremant AP - Residential
20 Current Lakdities HET Fadaral 5% - AP
24 Cument Liabdities Agcneal - Payments In Lisw
260 Current Lisbdities  Payable Current Peetion of Long Term Debl
1518  Curent Liabdities  Regulaiory Labditiss RCWA Retal - Varianos
1521 Current Liabdities  Rsgulatory Liabdities Spec Purpose - inbenest Improvement
1548 Cument Labdites  Regulatory Labdities RCVA STR - Vananssy
1550 Curent Lnbiities  Regulsiory Lnbiities REMA LV = Variancs
1588 Curent Lubdities  Reguldlory Labdiies LRAM Resigential - Varancs
1580 Curent Linbdities  Rsguistory Labditiss REVA VS - Variance
1584 Curent Liabdities  Regulaiory Labditiss REVA NW - Varianca
1585 Curent Liabdities  Regulatony Labdities R5UA CN - Variance
1558 Cument Labdites  Regulatory Lakdities REMA Power - Vanance
1580 Curenl Lubdities  Reguldiory Labidities REVA NonsRIFF GA = Varanos
1585 Cument Labdities  Reguldiory Labidities 00 COG Inferedd Improvement
2350 Current Liabidities  Future income Taoes Deferrad Tax - Hon-Curnent Linbity

Total Current Liabilities

Wellingion Morh Power Inc

1= 1508 1500508102 a7 &
1-1525-1500-528-101 15
1=1551=1500-551-101 5473
1-1555-1500-555-202 57,508
1-1563-1500-563-101 [2012)
1-15602-1500-592-101 3,781
112,753
1- 1450 1400480002 0,000
390,000
1-2X05-200-205-001 2,071,500
1= 2208 7200-208-002 88 5T
1-2220-Z200-230-0010 195 358
12250 2200-250-000 (T4 )
-2 Z200-200-020 (12385 )
2,3536, 400
1-Z204-200-204-001 8550
B,580
1=2260- 2200280001 1h4 26T
184,267
1-1518-1500-518-100 18,524
11521+ 15005219201 14
1-1548- 1500548101 CTETE )
1=1550- 1500550101 3024
1-1588-1500-588- 101 B0
1-1550-1500-580-101 350,117
1-1584-1500-584- 100 2053
1= 1586 1500-8808-101 43 880
1-1558- 1500588101 (256808 )
1= 15581500585 101 15,748
1-1505-1900-505-201 191,587
1-ZR50-ZH00-350-001 310,000
Y.
EF-FITH
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IF&T 1: Balance Sheat I
Accouri B3 Section B/S Line Grouping

Notes Payable

2520 Liabikky it Non-Cunman? Dabt
Ol Ligbililios

2520 Lisbilty Other Lisibities
Customer Deposits

2335 Linbikty Cihar Lisbities
Post-Employmart Benafits

o] Liahility OPER Liabdity

Total Lisbilities

Fharsholders” Equity

3005 Shareholders' Equily Common Shares

3045 Shareholders’ Equity Retained Eamings
3055 Sharaholders’ Equity Refained Eamings

Total Lisbilsties ared Sharehalders’ Equity

Weillinglon Morth Powesr Inc

GIL Account Description

Currenl Tear  Balance Sheat

Long Term Dabd

Hon-Cumrent Miscelaneous Liaiblites

Mor-Cumant Cusbomar Deposts

Employee Future Benedts

Comenon Shanes

Unagpropniated Retansd Eamings
Adjustmact To Ralained Eamings

1-2530-2500-520-001

1= 20065~ 2000-308-001

1-300e5- 3000 305000

1-2330-2300-320-001

1-2335-2300-335-001

=304 53000 34 5000
1-3065-3000- 255-001

3 451 TES

3481, 766

127,348
127,348

734755
734,755

138,53
139,323
3,683,182

1,634 404
1,624,404

1,101,500

76,4885
178388
ZB1Z,782

10,078,683
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Account VS Section /S Line GIL Account
Service Revenue
4005 Service Revenue Residentiad Energy Sales Residential Sales
4025 Senvice Revenue Street Lighting Energy Sales Street Light - Energy Sales
4020 Senvice Revenue Sertinel Ughting Energy Sales  Sentinel Sales
4035 Service Revenue Genrwral Enecgy Sales General - RSVA
4050 Senice Adpustm Unbitied Rev - Residential
4055 Service Revenue Enecgy Sales for Resale Resale
4052 Senvice Revenue Blled VLS Billed VWIS - Residertial
4058 Service Revenue Bated NW Bibed NW - Residential
4058 Senvice Revenue Baled CN Biled CN - Residential
4075 Senvice Revenue Blled LV LV Blied - Residential
4078 Senvice Revenue SM Entity Charge EM Entity Charge
Total Service Revenue
Cost of Power
4705 Cost of Power Power Purchased Power - Purchased
4707 Cost of Power Power Purchased Power - Purchased
4708 Cost of Power Charges WMS WMS Charges
4714 Cost of Power Charges NW Charges NW
4716 Cost of Power Charges CN Charges CN
4780 Cost of Power Charges LV LV Charges
4751 Cost of Power
Total Cost of Power
Total
Distribution Services
4080 Distritastion Services Destritustion Services R D Volumetrs
Total Distribution Services
Other Operation Reverne
4082 D S s Retail S R Retail Services Revenue
4024 Destrizestion Senvices STR Revenue STR - Requests
4210 Other Operaticn Revenue  Rent from Electric Property Rent #om Electric Property
4225 Other Operation Revenue  Late Payment Charges Late Penaity Charges
4235 Other Operation Revenue  Misc. Service Revenues Misc Rev - Utismart Access
4325 Other Op R R from Jobbing Rev - Outside Labour
4330 Other Cperation Revenue <o nd Expenses of Jebbing Exp - Mise AR - Labour
4355 Other Op R Gain on D of Assets Gain - Disposition Of Assets
4350 Other Op R Loss - Disp of Assets Loss - Dispostion of Assets
Revenue fom Non Rate-
4375  Other Operation Revenue Reguisted Usity Operaticns Nonuty Rev - Outside Labour
® Expenses of Non Rate-Regulated 'y .
4330 Other Operaticn Revenue Utiity Operations Nonuty Exp - Jebding Labour
4360 Other Operaticn Revenue  Msc, NonOperating Income Misc Nonops Rev - SCRA
4405 Other Opeoration interest and Dividend income Interest - Interest Eamed
Total Other Operating Reverue
Total
Wielington North Power Inc

Currort Yoar Income Statement
1-4006-0000-420-000 2092797
1-4025-0000-400-000 59,802
1-4030-0000-420-000 1,775
1-4035-0000-410-000 5.277.967
1-4050-4000-400-000 282,763
1-4055-0000-420-705 1,888 438
1-4062-4000-310-000 541,501
1-4066-4000-340-000 637,831
1-4088-4000-350-000 389,080
1407 54000-360-000 204,500
1407 6-4000-370-000 25418

11,381,869
1-4705-4400-200-000 5200014
1-4707-4400-221-000 4374528
1-4708-4400-110-003 541,501
1-4714-4400-140-005 637,80
1+4716-4400-150-005 386,080
1-4750-4400-160-010 204,500
25415

{11,381,859)

1-4080-4000-610-000 2420762

2420792
1-4082-4300-655-801 6317
1-4084-4300-660-200 49
1-4210-4340-710-500 28,685
1-4225-4340-720-500 26,085
1-4235-4340-730-800 52,709
1-4325-4300-740-100 0
1:4330-4360-745-120 185
1-4355-4360-750-001 5,000

1-4360-4360-755-001 (21,426)
1-4375-4360-760-100 4076
1-4380-4360-765-120 {42658)

1-4390-4360-770-003 135
1-4405-4380-810-001 18,328

114,262

2,544,054
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Account 1S Section US Line Grouping G/L Account Description Current Year Income Statement

Exporses
Operations and Mairtenance

5005 Operations and Maintenance ororowcn Supenision and Qpativn Spaision s 1-5005-5000-500-100 02,107

012 O and Swation ings and Fodures Sin Bldg & Fodures - Expenses 1-5012-5000-500-500 14,109

Sulop Sunde o iyt gt

5016 Operations ang Maintenance D DA Dt o0 Outside 4 116.5000-500-100 3940

5017 Operations and Maintenance Draacy oo " Caupment- D Equiement | <17-5000-500-300 1,808

B0 Coisllens wid i O Ditrbuion Linas & Feadars- O Disibuson Lines & Fosda 14020, 0000.600-100 .

5025 Operations and Maintenance Src Droa D4o" Lines & Feeders: OM Distibution Lines & Feeders * 1.5025.5000-500-200 21,548

5030 Operations and Maintenance O Sub-Transmission Feeders O Sub-Transmission Feeders  1-5030-5000-500-100 363

535 O and O Distribution T s OMDN T s 1-5035-5000-500-100 39,989

5040 Operations and Maintenance roor>wo0n Lines & Feeders: IS Distibution Lines & Feeder™” 1.5040.5000-500-100 250

5045 Operations and Maintenance bio vy 0oon Lines & FR8G8(S (11q bt Ln & Feeders - Expense 1:6045:5000-500200 558

5055 Operations and Maintenance m:n‘m SO “Lf:,"""" mers - Outdide | <055.5000-500-100 1314

50585 O and Mai Meter Meoter Expense 1-50685-5000-500-100 52,353

570 Op and M P Premises-Labour  Cust Premises - Outside Labour  1-5070-5000-500-100 2542

75 O and M P Pr € . Premises - Exp 1-5075-5000-500-300 9,888

5085 Op. and e O € Mise. O € 1-5085-5000-500- 100 08,789

5105 Operations and Maintenance mm"“'”‘ Swpenkebnd e Sopem & Engrieet 1-5105-5100-500-100 55,011

5110 Oparations and Maintenance porrtenance of Buldngs & REM - Builgings & Fitures 1-5110-5100-500-534 255

114 O and o Station Equip o Station Equip 1:5114-5100-500-500 48,451

Maintenance of Poles. Towers & Maintenance of Poles, Towers &

$120 Operations and Maintenance Fi Fi 1-5120:5100-500-100 6,374

5125 Operations and Maintenance o Ll Nk inance cEOH G 1-5125-5100-500-100 6.288

5130 O and of OH Services Maintenance of O/H services 1-5130-5100-500-100 10,337

5135 O and Mal O DI Lines & Feeders O Distribution Lines & Feeders 1-51355100-500-100 62,897

5145 O and of WG Condutt Maintenance of WG Condutt 1-51455100-500-100 3620

5150 Operations and Maintenance 5o AWGC o AU G 1-5150-5100-500-100 1,035

5155 O and Mai M of UG send ) of UG services  1-5155-5100-500-100 4922

5160 Operations and Maintenance Jearienaros of L akisagoce of ive 1-5160-5100-500-100 6912

5175 Op ana of Meters Maintenance of Meters 1.61755100-500-100 35 140
Total Operations and Mairtenance 587,974
Welington North Power inc
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E.I:“:Im_-idlmul 1

. A3 Jecticn
Billing & Collsction
SM0 Bdling & Caollaction Mastar Reading
SM8 Billing & Callection Customer Biling
5330 Edling & Callection Cellecting
5335 Edling & Callaction Coilgeting-Cash Ovar & Shin
S35 Ediing & Callection Bad Dakt
5340 Biding & Callection Misc. Customer Accounts
5410 Biliing & Collection Community Relations
5415 Edling & Callection Eregy Conservation Exp
G420 Bdiing & Callection Community Safely Program
Total Billing & Collsction
Adminisirative & Genaral
5805  Adminisirathee & Gensral  Execulive Salares & Expenses
Managamant Saanies &
S8I0 Adminisirathe & Gensral [
Gerseral Adminisirative Salanes 5
5815  Administrative & General £
SGI0  Administratioe & General  Office Supplbes & Expenses
5830  Administratiee & General  Outside Service Employed
5835 Adminisirathe & Gensral  Froperly Insurance
G640 Adminisdratios & General  Injuries & Damages
5845 Adminisiraitee & General  OMERS Pansions 5 Benafile
5855 Adminisiratiee & General  Regulatory Expense
5885  Adminisirative & General  Gersal Expenss
5640  Administrative & General  Elecirical Safisty Authority Fees
Total Administrative & Genaral
Aot on
708 Amacrtization Depredaton Expense
G725 Amortization Misc. Depreciation
Total Arartization
Interest Expenss
BO0& Inferest Expenss Irkerest on LT debt
S35 Infnrest Exponse Oifver Inferest Expense
Total Interast Expere
Property taves
ai0s Propaety taoss. Taxws Ceher Than Incom e Takes
6205 Propasty o Denation
Total Expanses
Earnings before income taxes
o Takes
a1o Impome Tax Income Taxes
Het Eamings

Rtasined Eamings, begirming of year

Retsineed Esmings, ond of yesr

Welington Morth Power inc.

VE Line Grovptng OV, Becound Description

BEC Mr Read - Oulsida Labour
BAC - Cust Biling

B&C - Collecting sxpenses
BEC - Cash O 5 St

BEC - Bad Debl Expanss

BAC - Wisc Customer Acvct
Misc Community Relations
Ensigy Consarvation Exp
Communily Safely Program

Executive Salary
Management Salary

Administrative Salary Expense

Cfcn Supplies - Expented
Outside Serdoe Employed
Ingirancs

Credt Risk Insursnce
Esnployes Pension & Banafits
Reguiatory Expenes

Ganeral Expeanise

Admin Electrical Safety Auth Fee

Asmortizalion - Prapey, Plant and
Equipment
Amortization - Contrbuted Captal

Lid Interest - S infrastructurs
Int Exp = Sher Tem

Taeias - Ofher Than Incomae
Domataon

Income Taxes - FeddProy

1-5310-5300-510-100
1-5315-5200-210-150
H-5370-5300-510-100
53T5-5200-510-543
1-5335-5300-510-544
1-5340-5300-310-150
154 10-5400-810-855
B-5415-5400-510-557
-S40 5400-510-558

15605 5600-520- 150
1-EH10-5600-520-150

=561 5-5800-520-150

-5 I0-SE00-520- 500
1-5630-5800-5.20- 548
1-5E35-5A00-520-553
154 0-5600-520- 585
1-5645-5600-520-563
1-5855-5600-520-150
U-5505-5000-520-511

1-5880-5600-520- 565

1-5704-5700-230-010

1-57 F5-5700-530-005

1 -B00E-H000-240-001
1-5035-5000-540-001

<61 0561 00-550-001

1
HH200-6200-550-002

-0 1RGN O0-550-001

2540

1B

86202
111,354
TTASH
0
10,954
58260
3547
3220
3118
M3
284,374
163.185
(320
56940
102,000
33,565
11270
14,402
75,762
34078
4384
HOE
450,240
1515
457,735
5400
14,591
11,301
12930
15770
2,028,138
HT.HE
R R
192028
678562
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Wellington North Power Inc.
RRR 2.1.13

Uniform System of Account Balances Mapped and
Reconciled to Wellington North Power Inc.'s
Audited 2014 Financial Statements

Contents

2.1.13 Cash Flow

2.1.13 Balance Sheet
2.1.13 Income Statement
2.1.13 Trial Bal by Account

Wellington North Power Inc
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[Emntow ]
Account CJF Section CIF Line Grouping Gl Aceount Deseription Currant Year Cach Flows Statement
Oparating Activities
et Income b the year 197, 548,01
Ihemes not Invohing cash
Amodisation of capRal assels
1968 Agset Property and Equipment  Confributed Capital 10,194 .02
570 Apeat Properly and Equipment  Depresiabion - Buldings AT4204 47
464,000.45
Increass in post-smploymant Bsnefits
F306 Liatsly OPEB liabity Employee Future Benefis 271700
2700
43854350 Agset Property and Equipment  Gain on Dispesal of Capital Assets 45400
=184.00
B4, 051,46
Changs in non-cash warking caplal balanoss
Mccounts recerable
1100 Current Assst  Recshables Customer AR - Energy Sales -143, 3403 568
102 Current Assat  Recehables Accounts Recervable - Services -3.508.57
M4 Curmend Assat  Recerables AR - Recoverable Work 8,806 52
M0 Current Assat  Unbiled Reverme Urbillad Revenug TOBTE 26
1130 Current Asset Recetables Urszoll gctitle Accts - Craait 1,727 40
1140 Curreni Assat  Recehables Inberest & Dividands Recedable 1.400.73
1150 Current Assst  Recshables Renfts Recevable 0.00
<53, 800,12
Inveendory
1330 Current Asset  Invenlory Invvenbory 2T 83123
“ITEIE
Propaid axpendss
1180 Current Asset  Prepayments Prepayments 40 61295
40,012.05
Accounts payabie and accnsed liabiites
Z205  Current Lisbilties Payakle Accounts Payasble and Accruad AP 51723436
ZHE Current Liabilties Customer Credt Cust Credil Balance -6, 118 88
220 Current Liabilties Payables & Accruals Accrued Accounts Payable -85, 854 31
2150 Currend Liabilies Payakle Db Retiremant AP -267.00
2200 Current Liabilties Payakls HET Fadaral -17.500.00
266, T84.07
Payroents in Beu of neome [ recehvable o payable
2 Curmrent Liakilty Liabdkies Accrual - Payments In Lisu B.073.00
BOTa00
233 Liatslty Cugtomar Depasds Ling Tarms Cusbomer Daposils 1877372
877372
SB1,E07.41
Financing actiwiies
2260 Cuveni Liakilgy  Liabidiies Pregaymend of [ong bem dett -164,267.00
25 Listslaty Liabdties Procaeds from new debt 0.00
-184, 267,00

Walington Morth Power Inc
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[Cash-Fig ]
Account Cif Section __ CIFlineGrouping G/ Accourd Description Current Year ___ Cash Flows Statemert
Investing activities
Purchase of capital assets
1805 Asset Intangdle Assets Land - Rights/Easements 941110
1808 Asset Property and Equipment Buiidings & Fudures -4.25000
1820 Asset Property and Equipment  Sub Stations 23638 2N
1830 Asset Property and Equipment Poles Towers 8 Focures -91,243.18
18385 Asset Property and Equipment OM Conductors & Devices 51,847 17
1848 Asset Property and Equipment /G Conductors & Devices 123,020 26
1850 Asset Property and Equipment  Line Transformers 007308
18556 Asset Property and Equipment Services - De -83,349.30
1880 Assat Property and Equipment Meters -15,062 00
1815 Asset Property and Equipment OfSce Fumntture & Equip 000
1920 Asset Property and Equpment Comp 18,484 .30
1925 Asset Property and Equipment Software «1031664
1930 Asset Property and Equip t Transp Equip 000
1840 Asset Property and Equipment Tools, Shop & Garage Equipment -333968
1985 Asset Property and Equipment Contributed Capital 113.207.00
£23,49800
Net change in regulatory assets
1508 Asset/Liab Regulatory Assets/Liab  Other Regulatory Assets +1.361,090.09
1510 Asset/Liab Regulstory Assets/liab  Prelminary Survey and investigation Charg ~ -50,358.10
1518 Asset/Liab Regulatory Assets/Uab  RCVA Retal and Variance Acocount ~19,664 47
1548 Asset/Liad Regulatory Assets/lUab  RCVA STR and Vanance Account 98277
1550 Asset/Liab Regulatory Assets/Uab  RSVA LV and Vanance Account <84 452 49
1551 Asset/Liad Regulatory Assets/liad  SM EntRy Charge 320573
1585 Asset/Liab Regulatory Assets/Uab  Smart Meter Cap and Vanance Account 51,308 32
1563 Asset/Liab Regulstory Assets/liab  Def'd PILS Contra Acct -2576.51
1568 AssetLiab Regulatory Assets/Uab  LRAM 27689
1580 Asset/Liab Regulatory Assats/Uab  RSVA WMS and Variance Account ~248.249 92
1584 Asset/Liad Regulatory Assets/Uab  RSVA NW - Variance 5082196
1583 Asset/Liad Regulstory Assats/liab  RSVA CN and Variance Account 44,524 34
1588 Asset/Liab Regulatory Assets/Uab  RSVA Power and Variance Account 18212625
1589 Asset/Liab Regulitory Assets/liab  RSVA CN and Variance Account 20877723
Disposition and R yYRetund of 2
1568 Asset/Liab Reguistory Assetailiab o B0l 0 pasances C. s 142,275 42
1,933, 88567
Net change in other kabilties
4335 Asset Property and Equipment Proceeds from sale of PPE 17,500.00
17.500.00
-2.539,883.97
Cash, beginning of the year
1005  Current Assets  Cash Bank - TD Canada Trust 21295000
1010 Curent Assets Cash Cash - Float 380.00
913,339.00
Cash, end of the yewr -820,204.56

Welington North Power Inc.
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Account

ASSTTS

Current Assets
1005 Cument Adsets
WIe  Cumert Aawets
100 Curert Asset
1102 Currect Aset
1104 Correet Assat
120 Curreet Asset
MW Currert Assat
140 Cument Asset
1330 Currect Asset
180 Curen Asset
1518 Currect Lintades
1548 Cumet Listvioes
1950 Curmeet Liadaiten
1550 Curmet Latites
1584 Curment Lisbaoes
1598 Curmpet Liatetes
1558 Cument Listdtes
1559 Curent Listsioes

Total Current Assets

Captal Assets
1808 Assat
w12 Aguat
08 Anat
1620 Agsat
ww At
1835 At
1640 Adat
1845 As st
1850 Assat
we At
1600 Assat
W Asset
5o Assat
1908 Assat
e Aswe
s Assat
1940 Agat
e At
158 Assat
el At
s Arsat
255 Adtet
105 Assat

Total Capital Assets

Other Assets
ued Assat

Total Other Assets

Velnggon homn Power N

Cawh
Con

Recoraies
Hocenatins
Untled Revens

FHeconaties
Reconatirs

futire oome Tace

Banki- TD Conada Trugt
Cash - Float

Custones AR - Ermegy Saies
Sacviw

Uncolectble Accts - Credat
Wtoresz & Divionss Recewatie

Invertory
Froce ety

RCVA Relal - Vanance
RCVA STR « Varlwnce
REVALY - Varurse

REVA WM - Vanancs

FSVA NW - Vanarce

REVA CN - Vinance

RSVA Pomer - Vanance
REVA N PP GA . Vanance

Land

Land - Rightwtl

Busangs & Fdures

Su Stabom

Poles Towers & Fudures
Ot Cenduntons & Devices
Uedwyround Conoust

WG Conauctors & Devices
Line Tramsoemeny
Servcen - Dnrnson
Maters

Ofsce Funture & Kgup
Computer Mardware
Sotwere

Trensportation Equpeert

Stores Equpment

Tooms, Shop & Garaoe Equpewet
Masurement & Testng Equoment

Otther - Non Cumrent Assety

3005 1000005001
1010 1000-0%0-001

91001 100- 30001
1-9102-1100-102-001
1104- 1 100- 104001
1120 1100520001
1130 1100-130-001
SO 1100- 460001

B0 1 300-330.001

11851 100- 450001

1-1518-1500-5 18- 101
1545 1500-548-101
1550 1500-550- 101
1-1500-1500-580-101
115241500554 101
1758210055101
11563 1500.555. 101
115501500559 101

1505 1800205001
19813 1600-512-091
L1008 1B00-808-001
1- 1RO 1800-520-001
1530 1600230001
- 1535 1200-835-001
1T840 1800862001
11845 1900545001
13550 1800-550001
1045 1000845001
L S805 1800 800001
1915 1000015001
- 1500 1900920001
13505 1900925001
9001900230001
1505 1900635001
1040 1000-560-001
1% 1600565001
1551900955001
1-198G- 1900-390-001
1567 1900995001
12055 2000-005-001
2105 2100- 105002

15480 1400450001

N5 10
300 0

1,585 600 71
S13 80
W14
1275040 34

Naesry

ERILES]

21500 38
B A28 45
-B1A07 0%
5376520
20,068 08
T4 884 &0
151,020 %%

L1870
2004
AT
1,230,968 53
o n
297000
151877 07
004 252 23
1,435,399 00
GTIB8505
0011 X
Ha3 s
XN &
04588 06
B33 6% 3
s4Te N
WA
1504 22
3025265
ME00
A1) 500 05
0w
7007 805 98

2148528

BESecso  @SuesGrouging  GAAscounQesigson  CueeetVes GutanceShest

T24208.19

s 08

355222

1Taaa7

T

6,960,839 04

EAL
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Reguiatery Assets

Total Regalatory Assets
Futuee income Tares
Total Future Income Taxes
Total Assats

LisbEities and Sharehoiders' Equity
Cusment Linbisties

Total Current Listiizes

Reguistery Lisbiities

Notes Payable

Ctrar Lisbiites

Cusomer Depests

PestLmpioyment Benelrs

Totsl Labistes
Sravehcidery’ Equity

Regpstory Litides
Repostory Aaiin

160 Asvet Future ncome Taees

129 Cument Ludates

2260 Curert Latsites  Payabie

Cumert Lttt Repuatony Lisbdtes
Cumert Lutdton  Regiatory Lisbates

Future income Tave

Omer Non-Cumect Dett

Lty Omer Liatines

par L

or Lintaten

1308 Ustaty OPEB Loty

3005 Shareholders' EQuty Comman Shaws

Shavenhoiseny’ Equty Retared Eamings
Sharehalers’ Equty Retaned Eamings

Total Liatibties and Shareholgers’ Equity

Welnggon Modh Power inc

Dard Ootits - Prioe 3 2008

Proterenary Suvwy a0 ne s paon Changes

M art2y char g varance
Meder Itacest STOrovemant
S Contra Acct

LRAM Rewdertel - Venance
PILSSTax Var « From 2008 Ces

Ottwr - Fudae

[

ALty Paywtiv
Cunt Creat B - Eque g
Aciund Accounts Paystie

Dot Rutramert AP - Roucutsl
HST Fadeenl 9% - AP

Actrus - Paynents bn Lwu

Currert Porton ofLong Tem Dett

Spec Purpine - FheRt Ingeoverwet
2008 COS Interest Inpavemsnt

Detered T« NonCurest Listity

Long Temm Dett

Non-Cuerent Niscelaneous Labates

Non-Curment Customee Cepoaty

Employes Fubure Beneits

Comwncn Shares

Uracgropnated Retared € amags
Adustmert To Retenes Eemngs

1050819
11825 1500-52%-

11650 1400-280- 2946000 00

00
o000
27068
1-2784-2200- 204001 2901 At
2961246
142260- 2200200001 _- 160 537 14
E—T T T T

H2350- 2300350

96 000 00
[
ABIND
000
00
2T 0L
-1£2 040 00
EEEE
1-3005-3000-305-000 _ ) 534 404 GO0
1634 AC4 0
1-5045- 3000- 34500 1207«
|} 164 040 47
SL A48T T85 .07
M e
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Avoount US Saciion
Fervice Revarne
40068 Serdice Revenus Residental Erergy Sales
025 Service Revenus Street Lighting Energy Sales
4030 Sendce Revenus Sentinal Lighting Energy Sales
45 Sardes Rivenus Ganaral Enargy Sales
4050 Sardcs Rinvinue Rigrsariua At an|
055 Sarvice Revenus Energy Sales for Resale
4062 Serdoe Revenus Blled WS
0BG Serdoe Revenus Bliled MW
4082 Serdce Ravenue Bilgd CH
75 Serdos Revenus Bilied LV
07 Serdcs Revenus SHi Eniity Change
Total Service Ravenus
Cost of Power
4705 Cartt & P Piwer Purchised
4707 Cost of Power Power Purchased
4708 Cost of Povsr Charges WS
4714 Ciot of Power Charges MW
4718 Cost of Power Charges CH
4750 Cost of Power Charges LV
4751 Cost of Power
Total Cost of Power
Taotal
Distribution Services
4080 Distribution Services Distribution Services Revenue
Total Distribution Services
Dthar Opof dlion Reverss
4087 Disiribution Sarvices Ruipil Sarvices Revenue
4084 Distribation Services STR Revene
440 Other Operation Reverwe  Rent from Electric Property
4228 Other Operation Revenwse  Late Payment Charges
4735  Other Openation Reverwe  Misc. Servics Revenues
4325 Other Operation Revenue  Revenues from Merchandise
Costs and Expendss of
4330 Othr Oparation Revenus Merthandsing
4355  Other Operation Revenus  Gain on Disposdion of Assels
4360 Other Oparalion Rivenus  Leds - Dispostion of Adsals
Revenue from Non Rale-
4375 Other Operation Reverue Regulated Usifty Operations
N Expenses of Non Rate-Regulated
4380 Other Operation Reverue Uy O o
4300 Other Operation Reverwe  Misc. Non-Operating income
4405  Otfver Oparation Reverws  Interest and Dividend income
Total Gther Operating Reverue
Total

‘Welington Morth Power Inc.

Residertial Sales

Street Light - Enargy Sales
Santinel Light Sales
Ganeral - REVA

Usibsdlad Rirs - Rasgdential
LR

Biled WIS « Residental
Biled MW - Besidential
Bilwd CH - Residential
LV Billed - Residential
SH Eraity Change

Pyt - Purchased
Provwer - Purchased
WIS Charges
Changes NW
Chirges CH

LV Charges

Distribution Volumetric

Redpil Services Revarue
ETR - Requesis

Rient from Electric Property
Labe Penalty Charges

Misc Rev - Utilismart Accrss
Jobbing Rev - Culside Labour

Jobbing Exp - Mise AR - Labour

Gain - Disposition O Assels
Loss - Dispostion of Assals

Haonuty Rew « Outside Labour

Honuty Exp - Jobbing Labour

Misc Morops Rew - SCRA
Inbesreest - Inberest Eamed

1-47 05 4400-200-000
1-4707-4400-221-000
1-47 08 4400-110-003
1-4714-4400-140-005
1-4716-4400-150-005
1-4750-44.00-160-010

2.237.720.70
15,800 20
1,881 66
4.823.4790 85
TT0R9T
1,524, 55804
32 a7 62
BOT 21818
I54.162.78
157. 2147
34.11585

5.488.330 40

3,058,331.197
532, 74T 82
07, 21918
I54.102.78
157,221.17
34.11585

1S Lires Grouping Gl Aceount Deseription Current Year Income Stabement

10,212, 15795

AR AST.05
oo

1-4080-4000-8 10-000 _2 448200 §7

1:4210:-4380-7 10-500
1:47254380- 7 20-500
1-4735 43807 30-500
1-4325-4380-740-100

1=4330- 4360745120

1-4355-4360-7 50-001
1-43E0-43:80- 7 55-001

1:4375:4360-760-100

1-4380-4360-T65-120

1-4250- 4 360- 7 T0-003
-4 054 380-8 10-001

S030.70
T1.50
28,207 86
26,747 81
92388 33
0o

0.0

17.500.00
-17.008.27

REEE k]

-128 837 .55

1,512.00
21,007 48

A48 26T

14083389
2,557,063, 56
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income Statemert |
Account US Section US Line Grouping G/ Accourt Description Currert Year Income Statement
Operations and Maintenance
Cp pecvision and Of Supendson and
Engi P 1
5005 Operations and Maintenance 1-5005-5000-500- 100
5012 Op and M Station and Fixtures Stn Bidg & Fixtures - Expenses  1-5012-5000-500-500
5016 Operaticnss and Maintenance € D Stn & “Oddde 4 £016-5000-500-100
Labour Labour
Dietri < E D% o Eovio
5017 Operaticns and Maintenance E se E 1-5017-5000-500-300
5020 © s and Mai m'mumsmm OH Distridbution Lines & Feeders - 1-5020-5000-500- 100
5025 Op 5 and Maint OMQ:MUMGFM &ummwam-‘.mmm
5030 Operations and Maintenance O Sub-Transmission Feeders  OM Sub-Transmissicn Feeders  1-5030-5000-500-100
5005 Op and Ma OH O T OM Dk s 1-50355000-500-100
5040 G and Maint &IS;:’MUMGFM WG Distribution Lines & Feeders- 1-5040-5000-500- 100

5045 Operations and Maintenance oo oo NS 8 FE830S 11 bist Ln & Feeders - Expense 1-5045-5000-500-200

5055 Operaticns and Maintsnance 017 Dot oo [ omers: G D Transformers - Ouide 1-5055.5000-500-100

5085 Op and M Meter E: Meter Expense 1-50655000-500-100

5070 Operations and Maintenance Customer Pramises-Labour Cust Premises - Outside Ladour  1-5070-5000-500-100

5075 Op and M; C Pr Exp = Premises - E 1-5075-5000-500-300

5085 Op and Misc. O jon Exp Misc. Di ion E. 1-5085-5000-500-100
Maintenance Supervision & RSM - Suprvsn & Engineer -

5105 Operations and Maintenance B ‘. Outside Lat 1-5105-5100-500-100

5110 Operaticns and Maintenance poarienoe S/BUIENGEE oy Buidings 8 Fotures 1-5110-5100-500-534

5114 Op and D Station E Dvstribution Stabon Equip 1+5114-5100-500-500
Maintenance of Poles, Towers & Maintenance of Poles, Towers &

5120 Operations and Maintenance Firt Fi 1-5120:5100-500-100

X Mai of OM C s of OH C

5125 Operations and Maintenance & Devices wnd Dovioss 1-5125-5100-500-100

5130 Op and of OH of OH 1-5130-5100-500-100

5135 Op and Mai OH O Lines & Feeders OM Distridution Lines & Feeders  1-51355100-500-100

5145 Op and M M of UIG Conduit Mairsenance of U/G Condut 1-51455100-500-100

5180 Operations and Maintenance U C s Mk of UG Cond 1-5150-5100-500-100
& Devices & Devices.

5185 Cp and of UG of UiG serv 1-51555100-500-100
Maintenance of Line Maintenarce of Line

5160 Operations and Maintenance Toaalomare Tranelnners 1-5160-5100-500-100

5175 Op and Mai Mai of Meters Maintenance of Meters 1-5175-5100-500-100

Total Operations and Maintenance

Wetlington North Power Inc.

8556283
15.489.08
787744

380103
22.260.81

2087792

46266
1322873

74969
420265

$.101.79

7347074
20.550.21
12,154.04
4523837

36.656.63

1.501.18
8562859
514515

14.218.61
10.699.67
7733594
11460
0.00
891326
1,408.51
12253.08

567,949.10
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oo LS Section
Billing & Collection
5310 Biing & Callection Meter Reading B&C Mir Read - Outside Labour
5318 Bilng & Callection Customer Biling B&C - Cust Biling
5320 Bilng & Collection Cailecting BSC - Collecting expenses
5325 Biding & Callection Cailecting-Cash Over & Short B&C - Cash Over & Short
5335 Biding & Collection Bad Dett BSC - Bad Debt Expense
5340 & C Msc. G A BAC - Misc Customer Acvet
5410 &C C y R Miso Communty Relations
5415 Biding & Callection Enrargy Conservation Exp Energy Consarvation Exp
5420 Biling & C: C y Safety Progr < ity Sa og!
5420 Bilng & Callection Community Safety Program Community Safety Program
Total Billing & Collection
Administrative & General
5605 Administrative & General  Executive Salaries & Expenses  Executive Salary
5610 Administrative & General ooy e & Management Salary
5815  Administrative & General G‘m"" Administrative Salwies & i irative Sslary Bxpanse
5620 Administrative & General  Office S &E Office S - Exp
5630 Administrative & General  Outside Service Empioyed Qutside Senvice Employed
5635 Administrative & General  Property Insurance Insurance
5640  Administrative & General  Injuries & Damages Credt Risk Insurance
5845 Administrative & General OMERS Pensions & Benefits Employee Pension & Benefits
5655  Administrative & General  Regulatory Expense Regulatory Expense
5665 Administrative & General  General Expense General Expense
5670  Administratice & General  Rent Rent
5680  Administrative & General Safety y Fees  Admin El al Safety Auth Fee
Total Administrative & General
Amortization )
5708 Oep Be Qnmwon- Property, Plant and
Quipment
5728 Amortization Misc. Depreciation Amortzation - Contributed Capital
Total Amortization
Interest Expense
6005 Interest Expense Irterest on LT debt Lid Interest - SM Infrastructure
6085 Interest Expense Other Interest Expense int Exp - Short Term
Total interest Expense
Property taxes
6105 Propecty taxes Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Taxes - Other Than Income
6205 Property taxes Donation Donation
Total Expenses
Earnings before income taxes
Income Taxes
6110 Income Tax Income Taxes income Taxes - Fed&Prov
Not Eamings
R d s, beginning of year
RN SRIPpBudel yoar

VS Line Grouping G/L Account Descripticn Currert Year _Income Statement

1-5310-5300-510-100  68.672.49
1-63155300.610-150  116,126.03
1-53205300-510-100  82.168.62
1-53255300-510-563 477
1-5335-5300-510-5¢4  17.410.21
1-5340-5300-610-150  54.691.52
1-5410-5400-510-556  6.467.47
1-54155400-510-557  4.133.22
1-5420-5400-510-558  4.948.50
1-54205400-510-558  284.24
354,896.53
1-5605-5600-520-150  213,085.15
1-5610-5600-520-150 14251671
1-56155600-520-150 6341266
1-5620-5600-520-500  50,136.68
1-5630-5600-520-549 10843251
1-5635-5600-520-553  35.067.42
1-56405600-520565  0.00
1-56455600-520-568  2717.00
1-56555600.520-150 130,165 60
1-56655600-520-511  37.937.36
1-5670-5600-520- 57.22
1-5630-5600-520-563  4.509.66
800,126.95
1-5705-5700-530-010 474,204 47
1-5726.5700.630-005  -10,164.02
464,01045
1-6005-6000-540-001 149,634 21
1-6035-6000-540-001 _14.730.60
164,372.00
1-61056100-550-001 1291548
1-62006200-650-002 __2973.33
15,888.81
7,367,284.74
T zwswez
1-61106100-550-001 __ 2200081
22,000.81
197,818.01
1,101,900.49
1.299,718.50
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. Appendix 1F — Discipline and Enforcement

2 Policy

Page 1 0f 4
Wellington North Power Inc.
Policy & Procedures
SUBJECT: Discipline and Enforcement Policy
| No: C.S.#9

Manager of Operations: Office Manager;
Signature: YW\ o= Signature: v/z Lﬁ/’ 5 ol M/%
President & CEO:/ N /
Signature: /(‘(7 VA ot (;?//~
Date: December 12, 2013 Revision#: 0 Page 1 of 4

s Purpose
The purpose of this procedure is to ensure that provisions of the Occupational Health
and Safety Act, regulations, policies and procedures are met through the application of
fair and consistent discipline with enforcement where necessary.

2. Scope
This procedure applies to all Wellington North Power Inc. employees

3. References
Discipline will be enforced on infringements of the following:

* The Occupational Health and Safety Act/Regulations for Construction Projects,
Regulations for Industrial Establishments, WHMIS and any other applicable
regulations

Ministry of Transportation, (Licensing, Traffic Control, Vehicle Operation)

EUSA (Rules and Safe Practice Procedures)

Wellington North Power Inc. Policies and Procedures, Operations Instructions.
Wellington North Power Inc. rules of personal conduct (either written or understood).

* & 0 0

Wellington North Power Inc. Policy and Procedures
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Page 2 of 4

Procedure

Employees

Employees are responsible and will be held accountable for their actions, neglect or
failures to meet required policies, procedures and practices. Accountability will be
governed and enforced through progressive discipline.

Progressive discipline will be initiated and may include, but not be limited to:

a) Verbal warning;

« Personal discussion with the employee and his/her supervisor.

« Ensure that the employee is aware of the rule or code of conduct he/she has violated and
the reason for it.

« This incident will be logged by a note from the Superviser in the employee’s file.

b) Written warning;

* The employee will be called into @ meeting with his/her supervisor.
* The employee will be given a formal written warning letter on the second occurrence and
a copy placed in the employee’s file.

c) Progressive suspension;

e The employee will be called into @ meeting with his/her Supervisor and the Department
Manager.

e A Suspension from work up to a maximum of five days will result, depending on the
circumstances and the severity of the infraction.

« A notice of suspension letter will be given to the employee and a copy placed in the
employee’s file.

d) Dismissal.

* The empioyee will be called into a meeting with his/her Department Manager and the
CEO

* Dismissal

e A notice of dismissal letter will be given to the employee and a copy placed in the
employee's file.

Discipline for failure to meet the requirements of the Occupational Health and Safety
Act, Industry Regulations and/or Health and Safety policies and procedures may not be
progressive in nature, especially in situations where significant risk or hazard occurs as
a result of the failure. In such instances, the following course of action may be taken:

a) Re-training or safety counselling;

b) Review of safety standards and procedures;

Wellington North Power Inc. Policy and Procedures
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Page 3of 4

Examples of situations that would incur a more severe and appropriate method of
discipline, up to and including dismissal include:

+ Unsafe operation of a lifting device or mobile equipment

¢ Failure to lock out

* Tampering with, or disabling of, @ machine safequarding, or other safety device
= Horseplay

¢ Verbal or physical threats

¢ Possession or use of alcohol or illicit drugs

« Such other heaith or safety violations determined to present a significant risk to oneself or
others

Supervisors

Supervisors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate disciplinary measures are
taken where workers contravene the Occupational Health and Safety Act, Industry
Regulations, policies or procedures.

Where necessary, the President and CEO or designate will be involved in disciplinary
action.

Duration:

The period of time between an employee violating a rule(s), regulation(s), or code(s) of
conduct will have some bearing on subsequent corrective steps taken. The following
time span provides guidelines for this aspect of the procedure.

Step: Action: Duration: Reoccurrence:
First Step Verbal Warning 1 Year Same or similar offence within one
year results in written warning
Second Step  Written Warning 2 Years Same or similar offence within two
years results in suspension
Third Step Suspensicn 2 Years Same or similar offence within two
(up to five (5) days) years results in dismissal

Fourth Step Dismissal

Documentation
All disciplinary actions will be documented in the worker’s personnel file using the
Corrective Action Memo form (see next page).

Wellington North Power Inc. Policy and Procedures
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WELLINGTON NORTH POWER INC.

EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINARY FORM

Date:

Employee's Name: Department

Description of the occurrence:

What policy/procedure, MTO, E&USA, OH&S Regulation or Company rule was broken?

Action taken by Supervisor/Manager:

Employvee Comments:

Supervisor/Manager Comments:

President/CEQ Supervisor/Manager Employee

Wellington Nerilt Power Inc. Policy and Procedires
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. Appendix 1G — WNP Committee Mandates

N

Wellington North Power Inc.

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Mandate of the Finance Committee

Financial Goals
Establish a set of financial goals for the Corporation, with Shareholder input, as
appropriate.

Rate Review Strateqy
Develop and obtain Board approval for the Corporation's regulated rate review

strategy.

Projections/Budgets
Develop periodic projections of revenues, expenses, capital expenditures, and
cash flow.

Financial Planning
Develop financing plans, as required to achieve the Corporation's financial and

operating goals.

Billing & Collections
Follow billing and collections practices which minimize late and / or no payments

Banking
Maintain banking arrangements that permit the Corporation to respond effectively

to short term fluctuations in its cash position.

Risk Management
Periodically review the Corporation’s risk management / insurance program,

recommending changes as appropriate.

Compliance
Ensure compliance with all applicable accounting and financial reporting

conventions, and industry regulations, and guidelines.

Internal Controls
Ensure the existence of an adequate set of internal controls

1. Board Approved FINANCE COMMITTEE MANDATE kme 28, 2011 docP\WNP_Board Meatings'3_Finance Coammitice
Mrg'2015 Finance Commitee Mig'Q1 2015 Mesting'1. Board Approved FINANCE COMMITTEE MANDATE Junc 28, 2011.do¢
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Wellington North Power Inc.

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Mandate of the Finance Committee

Financial Goals
Establish a set of financial goals for the Corporation, with Shareholder input, as
appropriate.

Rate Review Strateqy
Develop and obtain Board approval for the Corporation's regulated rate review

strategy.

Projections/Budgets
Develop periodic projections of revenues, expenses, capital expenditures, and

cash flow.

Financial Planning
Develop financing plans, as required to achieve the Corporation's financial and

operating goals.

Billing & Collections
Follow billing and collections practices which minimize late and / or no payments

Banking
Maintain banking arrangements that permit the Corporation to respond effectively
to short term fluctuations in its cash position.

Risk Management
Periodically review the Corporation’s risk management / insurance program,

recommending changes as appropriate.

Compliance
Ensure compliance with all applicable accounting and financial reporting

conventions, and industry regulations, and guidelines.

Internal Controls
Ensure the existence of an adequate set of internal controls

1. Board Approved FINANCE COMMITTEE MANDATE kme 28, 2011 docP\WNP_Board Medtings'3_Finance Commitice
Mig'2015 Finance Commitee Mig'Q1 2015 Mesting'1. Board Approved FINANCE COMMITTEE MANDATE Junc 28, 2011.doc
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Wellington North Power Inc.
290 Queen Strest West, PO Box 359, Mount Forest, ON NOG 2L0

3 WNP Phone: 518.323.1710

Fax: 519323 2425
L_ Email; wnpfEwellingtonnorthpower.com
www wellingtonnorthpower.com

MANDATE: ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL & MARKET RELATIONS COMMITTEE

The Organization, Personnel, and Market Relation Committee, assists in the development and
review of corporate policies, agreements and related documents, prior to presenting to the
Board for approval and implementation, The Committee is also responsible for human
resources, succession planning, Employment Standards, regulations and participates in

Employee Working Agreement negotiations and undertakes Market Relations activities,

Organization, Personnel, Conservation and Market Relations Committee Mandate:

1. Corporate Policies
Review Corporate Policies prepared by the Chief Operating Officer (CO0) andfor Chief

Administrative Officer (CAQ) prior to circulating to the Board for approval and adoption.

2. Drganization Structure

Assist COO0 and/or CAQ in determining and implementing an organizational structure.

3. Staff Planning
Ensure staffing plan is appropriate to achieve the company’s operational and regulatory

mandates and objectives,

4. Compensation Plans
Develop compensation practices which:
a. allow the Company to attract and retain qualified personnel

b. comply with pertinent legal guidelines
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MAMNDATE: ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL & MARKET RELATIONS COMMITTEE

. Compliance with “Employment Standards Act”

Ensure adherence to and compliance with all external personnel regulations, rules, and

guidelines,

Employee Agreements { Review Performance Evaluations

Ensure the existence and use of a suitable performance appraisal system for all Company
employees, including job descriptions, goal setting, and annual performance evaluations.
Participate in negotiations of the company’s Employee Working Agreement and prepare

recommendations to the Board for approval.

Succession Planning
Ensure plans are in place to facilitate knowledge transfer, in preparation of retirements and

transparent processes for executive recruitment.

Market Relations

Ensure the organization’s goals are being met in areas of:
a. Custorner service, billing and collections
b. Customer awareness, engagement and satisfaction

¢. Industry and media relations

9, Act as liaison to Municipal Shareholder

Prepare a concise quarterly report for Municipal Councilors to ensure they are informed of

company initiatives and performance.
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